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·1· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:

·2· · · · · · · · · ·Morning.· I'll call to order the Board

·3· ·of Directors, Louisiana Economic Development

·4· ·Corporation.

·5· · · · · · · · · ·Rollcall, please.

·6· · · · · · · ·MS. SIMMONS:

·7· · · · · · · · · ·Good morning.

·8· · · · · · · · · ·A.J. Roy, III.

·9· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:

10· · · · · · · · · ·Here.

11· · · · · · · ·MS. SIMMONS:

12· · · · · · · · · ·Alden Andre.

13· · · · · · · ·MR. ANDRE:

14· · · · · · · · · ·Here.

15· · · · · · · ·MS. SIMMONS:

16· · · · · · · · · ·Louis Reine.

17· · · · · · · ·(No response.)

18· · · · · · · ·MS. SIMMONS:

19· · · · · · · · · ·Charles E. Jackson, III.

20· · · · · · · ·MR. JACKSON:

21· · · · · · · · · ·Here.

22· · · · · · · ·MS. SIMMONS:

23· · · · · · · · · ·Mandi Mitchell.

24· · · · · · · ·(No response.)

25· · · · · · · ·MS. SIMMONS:
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·1· · · · · · · · · ·Cal Simpson.

·2· · · · · · · ·MR. SIMPSON:

·3· · · · · · · · · ·Here.

·4· · · · · · · ·MS. SIMMONS:

·5· · · · · · · · · ·Nittin Kamath.

·6· · · · · · · ·(No response.)

·7· · · · · · · ·MS. SIMMONS:

·8· · · · · · · · · ·Sue Durand.

·9· · · · · · · ·SECRETARY PIERSON:

10· · · · · · · · · ·She's here.

11· · · · · · · ·MS. SIMMONS:

12· · · · · · · · · ·Kimberly Johnson.

13· · · · · · · ·(No response.)

14· · · · · · · ·MS. SIMMONS:

15· · · · · · · · · ·Todd McDonald.

16· · · · · · · ·(No response.)

17· · · · · · · ·MS. SIMMONS:

18· · · · · · · · · ·Secretary Don Pierson.

19· · · · · · · ·SECRETARY PIERSON:

20· · · · · · · · · ·Here.

21· · · · · · · ·MS. SIMMONS:

22· · · · · · · · · ·We have a quorum.

23· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:

24· · · · · · · · · ·Very good.· Welcome, everyone.· I'll ask

25· ·everyone to please silence your cell phones.
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·1· · · · · · · · · ·The first order of business is the

·2· ·ratification and approval of minutes, and I have a

·3· ·potential duty today.· We need to do a little

·4· ·housekeeping, so bear with me.· I'll be reading from a

·5· ·document so that we get it correctly.

·6· · · · · · · · · ·The LEDC Board and Finance Company (sic)

·7· ·held a meeting on February 14th, 2019; however, the

·8· ·agenda for the meeting was not posted on the LEDC

·9· ·website 24 hours in advance of the meeting as required

10· ·by the Open Meetings Law.· Because actions were taken by

11· ·the Board during the meeting and were held without a

12· ·24-hour advanced posting of the agenda on the LEDC

13· ·website, the Board must ratify and approve all actions

14· ·taken during the February 14th, 2019 meeting.

15· · · · · · · · · ·During the February 14th, 2019 meeting,

16· ·the following actions were taken by the Finance

17· ·Committee:· Agenda Item Number 3, the audit reports,

18· ·finance statements were approved, the finance statement

19· ·as of June the 30th, 2018, and validation of the LEDC

20· ·investments as of June the 30th, 2018.

21· · · · · · · · · ·Let me stop there.

22· · · · · · · · · ·Any questions of what I've said thus

23· ·far?

24· · · · · · · ·(No response.)

25· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:
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·1· · · · · · · · · ·All right.· During the February 14th,

·2· ·2019 meeting, the following actions were taken by the

·3· ·board:· Agenda Item Number 3, approval of the meeting

·4· ·minutes of the LEDC Board meeting held on December the

·5· ·17th, 2018; and Agenda Item Number 4, the approval of

·6· ·the Finance Committee Report; Agenda Item Number 5,

·7· ·Economic Development Award Program extension request by

·8· ·Fuji Oil New Orleans, LLC; Agenda Item Number 6,

·9· ·election of officers, chairperson, vice chairman; Agenda

10· ·Item Number 7, committee appointments from the various

11· ·committees, Executive, Screening, Policy, Finance and

12· ·Government Outreach.

13· · · · · · · · · ·Do I entertain any motions or are there

14· ·any questions from the Board members?

15· · · · · · · ·(No response.)

16· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:

17· · · · · · · · · ·Comments?

18· · · · · · · ·(No response.)

19· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:

20· · · · · · · · · ·Any questions or comments from the

21· ·public?

22· · · · · · · ·(No response.)

23· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:

24· · · · · · · · · ·Hearing none, I will entertain a motion

25· ·to ratify and approve the Finance Committee and the LEDC
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·1· ·Board meetings held on February the 14th, 2019.

·2· · · · · · · ·MR. SIMPSON:

·3· · · · · · · · · ·I move to ratify and approve.

·4· · · · · · · ·MR. ANDRE:

·5· · · · · · · · · ·Second.

·6· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:

·7· · · · · · · · · ·Any discussion?

·8· · · · · · · ·(No response.)

·9· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:

10· · · · · · · · · ·Hearing none, all in favor -- any

11· ·comments from the public?

12· · · · · · · ·(No response.)

13· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:

14· · · · · · · · · ·Hearing none, all in favor, "aye."

15· · · · · · · ·(Several members respond "aye.")

16· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:

17· · · · · · · · · ·All opposed, "nay."

18· · · · · · · ·(No response.)

19· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:

20· · · · · · · · · ·Without objection.

21· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:

22· · · · · · · · · ·All right.· Next order of business is

23· ·the in-house approval of updates.

24· · · · · · · · · ·Good morning.

25· · · · · · · ·MS. DOIN:
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·1· · · · · · · · · ·Good morning.· Marissa Doin.· I have one

·2· ·loan update for y'all today.· This one is from Hancock

·3· ·Whitney Bank out of New Orleans.· The company is

·4· ·Advanced Cutting Solutions.· They're a core kitting

·5· ·company, and they supply core kits used to create wind

·6· ·turbines.

·7· · · · · · · · · ·ACS was formed in 2014, and they began

·8· ·generating revenues in 2016.· In the past 16 months, ACS

·9· ·has seen significant growth and is on the path to

10· ·continue growing.

11· · · · · · · · · ·Hancock Whitney requests a 75 percent

12· ·guaranty on a $250,000 line of credit backed by

13· ·inventories and receivables.· The funds will be used to

14· ·support working capital needs of the company as they

15· ·grow, and staff approved this loan on April 25th.

16· · · · · · · · · ·Are there any questions?

17· · · · · · · ·(No response.)

18· · · · · · · ·MS. DOIN:

19· · · · · · · · · ·Thank you.

20· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:

21· · · · · · · · · ·Thank you.

22· · · · · · · · · ·Next order of business is under the

23· ·Economic Development Award Program, Gramercy Holdings 1,

24· ·LLC, D/B/A Noranda Alumina.

25· · · · · · · · · ·Ms. Bigner.

http://www.torresreporting.com/


·1· · · · · · · ·MS. BIGNER:

·2· · · · · · · · · ·Good morning.

·3· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:

·4· · · · · · · · · ·If you could, pull the microphones up.

·5· · · · · · · ·MS. BIGNER:

·6· · · · · · · · · ·Susan Bigner.· This morning we have a

·7· ·request from Gramercy Holdings 1, LLC, doing business as

·8· ·Noranda Alumina for a $1-million unsponsored EDAP.

·9· · · · · · · · · ·The facility is located in Gramercy in

10· ·St. James Parish.· With me are Noranda Bauxite & Alumina

11· ·company representatives, Scott Croft, Stacy Miller and

12· ·Anthony Laura.

13· · · · · · · · · ·In 2018, New Day Aluminum Holdings, LLC

14· ·purchased the alumina line facility in Gramercy along

15· ·with a bauxite facility in Jamaica, which were both in

16· ·bankruptcy at the time.· The Jamaica facility mines and

17· ·ships bauxite, which is the principle ore of aluminum,

18· ·to the Gramercy facility and other New Day facilities.

19· · · · · · · · · ·The St. James facility was built by

20· ·Kaiser Aluminum and Chemicals Corporation in 1958 and

21· ·has been operational ever since.· Operations under

22· ·Noranda began in October of 2016, and the company

23· ·announced a $35-million upgrade and expansion in May of

24· ·2017.· The expansion and upgrades include designing and

25· ·installing equipment to increase productivity, storage
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·1· ·and shipping as well as moving the corporate

·2· ·headquarters to the facility.

·3· · · · · · · · · ·Currently the company is rehabilitating

·4· ·the administrative building for the headquarters and

·5· ·improving residual ponds on the property.· The EDAP will

·6· ·assist with the costs associated with the residual

·7· ·ponds.· The company has to expedite clay from one area

·8· ·of the property, transport it to the pond area and then

·9· ·build up the levee wall six to 10 feet to the permitted

10· ·height of 50 feet.

11· · · · · · · · · ·The company has recently purchased

12· ·refurbished gas turbine generator that will be used as

13· ·collateral for the unsponsored EDAP, and Gramercy

14· ·Holdings will guaranty all commitments.

15· · · · · · · · · ·Since the project was announced in 2017,

16· ·the company has commenced hiring employees and investing

17· ·CapEx.· The 42.9 projected cost listed in the EDAP

18· ·application exceeds the $35-million CapEx announced in

19· ·2017.· As of the end of March, the company imported

20· ·approximately 430 employees; therefore, it is expected

21· ·that the company will meet or exceed their first year

22· ·requirements of 432 employees with an approximate annual

23· ·payroll of 27.3-million.

24· · · · · · · · · ·Staff recommends approval of the

25· ·unsponsored EDAP for $1-million with the normal
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·1· ·contingencies listed in the term sheet.· The company has

·2· ·agreed to retain approximately 395 jobs with an

·3· ·associated annual payroll increased annually by two

·4· ·percent while creating 65 new jobs with an estimated

·5· ·annual payroll of 7.1-million by 2025.· Of the 65 new

·6· ·jobs, 15 are expected to be headquarter jobs.

·7· · · · · · · · · ·If the required jobs are created and

·8· ·retained at the stipulated annual payroll, then the EDAP

·9· ·will be considered satisfied.· However, if the company

10· ·does not create the projected jobs and payroll on an

11· ·annual basis, the unearned credit balance for that year

12· ·will be due and payable to LEDC plus interest.· All

13· ·credits will be based on payroll.

14· · · · · · · · · ·At this time, I'm going to ask the

15· ·company representatives to tell you a little bit about

16· ·the project.

17· · · · · · · ·MR. LAURA:

18· · · · · · · · · ·Thank you.· I'd like to introduce Scott

19· ·Croft, the company Chief Operating Officer.

20· · · · · · · ·MR. CROFT:

21· · · · · · · · · ·Good morning.· Can everybody hear me

22· ·okay?

23· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:

24· · · · · · · · · ·Good morning.

25· · · · · · · ·MR. CROFT:
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·1· · · · · · · · · ·As Anthony mentioned, I'm Scott Croft,

·2· ·Chief Operating Officer of Noranda Bauxite Alumina, and

·3· ·I'm one of those jobs Susan referred to.· I just joined

·4· ·the company in February, and certainly happy to be here

·5· ·and happy to help contribute.

·6· · · · · · · · · ·I'm happy to answer any questions you

·7· ·have about the project, but I just really wanted to

·8· ·thank the Board for the consideration to help us

·9· ·continue our growth story and really to add to that

10· ·sustainable platform, which we're building down in

11· ·Gramercy.· It really is something to see and something

12· ·we can all be proud of for Louisiana.

13· · · · · · · · · ·I'm happy to answer any questions.· This

14· ·project is teed up, ready to go as we are sort of

15· ·working through some of the final contract negotiations

16· ·as we sit here.· And Susan captured it quite well.

17· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:

18· · · · · · · · · ·Secretary.

19· · · · · · · ·SECRETARY PIERSON:

20· · · · · · · · · ·I don't have a question.· I just wanted

21· ·to give a corresponding thank you for the efforts being

22· ·made and presented here.· On the one hand, you would

23· ·have a bankruptcy, 395 workers going home and looking

24· ·for new work in our state, but with this company

25· ·stepping up and pledging to invest more than 35-million
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·1· ·on the site, retain all of those workers and then bring

·2· ·us and ramping an additional 65 jobs in the coming years

·3· ·and already making great progress against those goals,

·4· ·it's a tremendous credit to the company for their

·5· ·confidence.

·6· · · · · · · · · ·And I'd like to also point out that our

·7· ·team is out there working to find opportunities like

·8· ·this, to not only -- you know, you read about all the

·9· ·new companies that we're able to bring in the state, but

10· ·to working with our existing companies, and in this

11· ·case, be able to revitalize those efforts is

12· ·tremendously important.· So thank you.

13· · · · · · · ·MR. CROFT:

14· · · · · · · · · ·Thank you.

15· · · · · · · ·MR. LAURA:

16· · · · · · · · · ·Thank you.

17· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:

18· · · · · · · · · ·Anything else, or perhaps questions or

19· ·comments from the Board?

20· · · · · · · ·(No response.)

21· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:

22· · · · · · · · · ·Board members?

23· · · · · · · ·(No response.)

24· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:

25· · · · · · · · · ·What's the pleasure of the Board?
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·1· · · · · · · ·MR. JACKSON:

·2· · · · · · · · · ·I move that we accept this proposal.

·3· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:

·4· · · · · · · · · ·Motion for acceptance as presented.

·5· · · · · · · ·MS. DURAND:

·6· · · · · · · · · ·I second that.

·7· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:

·8· · · · · · · · · ·Second.

·9· · · · · · · · · ·Any discussion?

10· · · · · · · ·(No response.)

11· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:

12· · · · · · · · · ·Hearing none, all in favor, "aye."

13· · · · · · · ·(Several members respond "aye.")

14· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:

15· · · · · · · · · ·All opposed, "nay."

16· · · · · · · ·(No response.)

17· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:

18· · · · · · · · · ·Without objection.

19· · · · · · · · · ·Congratulations.· Please keep us posted

20· ·on your successes.· We always like to hear about that.

21· · · · · · · ·MR. CROFT:

22· · · · · · · · · ·Absolutely.· Thank you very much.

23· · · · · · · ·MR. LAURA:

24· · · · · · · · · ·Thank you very much.

25· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:
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·1· · · · · · · · · ·Were there any comments from the public

·2· ·on that?

·3· · · · · · · ·(No response.)

·4· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:

·5· · · · · · · · · ·Next order of business, the Treasurer's

·6· ·Report, Ms. Villa.

·7· · · · · · · ·MS. VILLA:

·8· · · · · · · · · ·Good morning.· Anne Villa,

·9· ·Undersecretary for Louisiana Economic Development

10· ·presenting the Secretary Treasurer's Report as of May

11· ·31st, 2019.

12· · · · · · · · · ·In summary, our total budget for Fy '19

13· ·is $10,538,938.· We have approved and projected

14· ·expenditures of $3,135,443, and we just had the Board

15· ·approval of a million-dollar project, so that gives us

16· ·an anticipated balance of 6,403,495.

17· · · · · · · · · ·We still have a project under review of

18· ·375,000, so we have a projected year-end balance of

19· ·6,028,495.· Details of that consists of State Small

20· ·Business Credit Initiative and/or Financial Assistance

21· ·Program, which had a budget of 2,092,796.· I'm sorry.

22· ·$2,092,737.· And we had approved project expenditures of

23· ·624,443.· We don't have any projects under review

24· ·currently, so we have a projected balance of 1,468,354.

25· · · · · · · · · ·Regarding our Capital Outlay
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·1· ·Appropriation for our EDAP programs and our EDRED

·2· ·programs, we had a budget of $8,446,141.· We had

·3· ·approved and projected expenditures of 2,511,000, and

·4· ·with the project that was just approved, we have a

·5· ·balance of 4,935,141.· And we do have a couple of

·6· ·projects that are under review that equate to 375,000,

·7· ·so we have a projected balance of 4,560,141.

·8· · · · · · · · · ·You'll see the note at the bottom there

·9· ·that for our FY '19 budget, we did have a return of

10· ·appropriation from a project of 1,235,000, so that's

11· ·accounted for as well.

12· · · · · · · · · ·Just for, I guess, for notification, we

13· ·ended the session last week, and I'll take the

14· ·opportunity now to let you know that for your EDAP

15· ·program, we do have $7-million worth of cash that was

16· ·given to in HBII in the Capital Outlay bill for our

17· ·projects, so for the Secretary's discretion to use for

18· ·upcoming projects, the ones that are in the pipeline,

19· ·and to meet any obligations we may have in FY '20 year.

20· ·So that's actually better than getting either Priority 1

21· ·or Priority 5 dollars, so it gives us -- the Secretary

22· ·some discretion to use that for big projects that he may

23· ·have in the pipeline.· So I wanted to give you a brief

24· ·update on that.

25· · · · · · · · · ·And regarding our Fund Balance, which is
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·1· ·the last page of the report, our FY '19 projected Fund

·2· ·Balance available is $14,947,976 and we have

·3· ·expenditures expected of 12,027,483, which would leave

·4· ·us an Appropriation Fund balance of 2,920,483.· I have

·5· ·to increase the size a little bit.· 493.· Sorry.

·6· ·2,920,493 is our expected balance at the end.

·7· · · · · · · · · ·Any questions?

·8· · · · · · · ·(No response.)

·9· · · · · · · ·MS. VILLA:

10· · · · · · · · · ·Okay.· Thank you.

11· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:

12· · · · · · · · · ·Questions, comments?

13· · · · · · · ·(No response.)

14· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:

15· · · · · · · · · ·Hearing none, I'll entertain a motion to

16· ·accept the Treasurer's Report.

17· · · · · · · ·MR. ANDRE:

18· · · · · · · · · ·So moved.

19· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:

20· · · · · · · · · ·Motion.

21· · · · · · · ·MR. JACKSON:

22· · · · · · · · · ·Second.

23· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:

24· · · · · · · · · ·Second.

25· · · · · · · · · ·Any discussion?
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·1· · · · · · · ·(No response.)

·2· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:

·3· · · · · · · · · ·Without objection.

·4· · · · · · · · · ·Any comments from the public?

·5· · · · · · · ·(No response.)

·6· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:

·7· · · · · · · · · ·All in favor, "aye."

·8· · · · · · · ·(Several members respond "aye.")

·9· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:

10· · · · · · · · · ·All opposed, "nay."

11· · · · · · · ·(No response.)

12· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:

13· · · · · · · · · ·Without objection.

14· · · · · · · · · ·Next order of business, the Accountant's

15· ·Report.

16· · · · · · · ·MS. DALGO:

17· · · · · · · · · ·Good morning.· Crystal Dalgo.· I'll be

18· ·presenting to you the LEDC Accountant's Status Report as

19· ·of April 30th, 2019.

20· · · · · · · · · ·We'll start off with the EDAP Loan

21· ·Portfolio, it totals $994,572.· There are currently

22· ·three loans under this portfolio that consist of the

23· ·Town of Colfax, the City of Bastrop and Morgan City.

24· ·Morgan City is set to make their final payment by the

25· ·end of July this year.
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·1· · · · · · · · · ·The allowance for the EDAP loans is set

·2· ·at 15 percent, and it totals $139,186.

·3· · · · · · · · · ·Next on there is the SSBCI Guaranty Loan

·4· ·Portfolio.· It totals $4,838,273.· There are currently

·5· ·16 loans under this portfolio.· Two of the loans, C.

·6· ·Boutte Enterprises and Acadian Cypress are listed as

·7· ·high-risk loans, and they're being carried at 100

·8· ·percent.

·9· · · · · · · · · ·The allowance for the SSBCI Guaranty

10· ·Loan Losses is calculated at 18 percent for the current

11· ·accounts and 100 percent on high-risk loans.· So as of

12· ·April 30th, 2019, the allowance totals $1,713,108.

13· · · · · · · · · ·And that concludes the report for the

14· ·EDAP and SSBCI portfolios.

15· · · · · · · · · ·Are there any questions?

16· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:

17· · · · · · · · · ·Questions, comments?

18· · · · · · · ·(No response.)

19· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:

20· · · · · · · · · ·Motion to accept the Accountant's

21· ·Report?

22· · · · · · · ·MR. SIMPSON:

23· · · · · · · · · ·Motion.

24· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:

25· · · · · · · · · ·Second?
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·1· · · · · · · ·MR. JACKSON:

·2· · · · · · · · · ·Second.

·3· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:

·4· · · · · · · · · ·Any discussions?

·5· · · · · · · ·(No response.)

·6· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:

·7· · · · · · · · · ·Hearing none, all in favor, "aye."

·8· · · · · · · ·(Several members respond "aye.")

·9· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:

10· · · · · · · · · ·All opposed, "nay."

11· · · · · · · ·(No response.)

12· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:

13· · · · · · · · · ·Without objection.· Thank you.

14· · · · · · · ·MS. DALGO:

15· · · · · · · · · ·Welcome.

16· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:

17· · · · · · · · · ·Any comments from the public?

18· · · · · · · ·(No response.)

19· · · · · · · ·MR. BAHAM:

20· · · · · · · · · ·Mr. A.J., I just passed out an

21· ·additional sheet to the Accountant's Report.· At the

22· ·previous meeting back in February, it was requested we

23· ·give an explanation of our current net asset position

24· ·for LEDC over the previous four years, and that's -- our

25· ·accountants, Crystal and Molly, put this together to
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·1· ·show our balances since Fiscal Year '14 all of the way

·2· ·through Fiscal '18, and I just wanted to give the

·3· ·information to the Board really quickly while I've still

·4· ·got Crystal up here to help me explain some of this

·5· ·stuff.

·6· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:

·7· · · · · · · · · ·This was -- just to refresh everyone,

·8· ·this is something that we requested staff to produce in

·9· ·the past, and so we appreciate you doing so.

10· · · · · · · · · ·Who's going to explain it?

11· · · · · · · ·MR. BAHAM:

12· · · · · · · · · ·You want me to go ahead?

13· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:

14· · · · · · · · · ·Or hit the high points?

15· · · · · · · ·MR. BAHAM:

16· · · · · · · · · ·I'll just give you some highlights if

17· ·you'd like.

18· · · · · · · · · ·You'll notice, just looking at it in

19· ·general, from Fiscal Year '14 all of way through Fiscal

20· ·Year '18, just looking at the total assets, you'll

21· ·notice that right off the bat they've gone down from

22· ·74-million down to approximately just under 50-million.

23· · · · · · · · · ·To highlight some of the reasons as to

24· ·why and give you an explanation as to why that is

25· ·occurring, if you look under "Current Assets," the third
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·1· ·line down, "Due From Other Funds," you'll notice back in

·2· ·Fiscal Year '14, it was at 21-and-a-half-million, and at

·3· ·the end of Fiscal Year '18, it was at 4.7-million.· This

·4· ·is due to our reduction in Capital Outlay Funds that are

·5· ·associated with the EDAP program.· So that is something

·6· ·that, as Ms. Villa pointed out earlier, we get

·7· ·appropriated every year from the legislature of these

·8· ·funds, and over the years, these funds have dwindled

·9· ·down a little bit due to budget constraints from the

10· ·legislature and so forth.· So we're working off of a

11· ·little bit less money than what we've had in the past.

12· · · · · · · · · ·Following further down, if you look

13· ·under "Noncurrent Assets," you'll notice under the first

14· ·line there, "Investments," in Fiscal Year '18 (sic), we

15· ·ended with 28-billion approximately in investment

16· ·dollars, and in Fiscal Year '18, we ended with just

17· ·21-billion.· That difference, what we attributed it to,

18· ·is back in Fiscal Year '14, we were -- our investments

19· ·have returned.· The returned investments have not been

20· ·as profitable as we had thought they would have been or

21· ·what we put into them, so that gives an explanation as

22· ·to why the investments have gone down some.

23· · · · · · · · · ·Also, some of those investments have

24· ·been moved to the cash category as they come back, and

25· ·if you notice, back in the "Current Assets," the cash
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·1· ·pretty much stays approximately the same.· So we've

·2· ·exited some investments.· Some of them have not come

·3· ·back as we had hoped in years past, but we do have some

·4· ·on the horizon hopefully that we will be able to, you

·5· ·know, recoup some of that money as well.

·6· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:

·7· · · · · · · · · ·Do you have a breakdown of the

·8· ·categories, not necessarily the individual investments,

·9· ·but the categories that, you know, comprise the

10· ·definition of investments?

11· · · · · · · ·MR. BAHAM:

12· · · · · · · · · ·Crystal may be able to help me with that

13· ·a little bit more.

14· · · · · · · · · ·To my knowledge, the investments are

15· ·those long-term Venture Capital investments that were

16· ·made years and years ago that we still on have on the

17· ·books.· The majority of them were done in the early

18· ·2000s, which a lot of those funds are in their wind-down

19· ·stage.

20· · · · · · · · · ·At this point in time, we do expect over

21· ·the next few years to have a lot of those close out.

22· ·We've actually been working -- Chaffe is getting ready

23· ·to do their valuations on those at the end of this

24· ·Fiscal Year again, and when we do the Chaffe reports in

25· ·the Finance Committee in January, it will possibly be a
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·1· ·lot clearer at that point.

·2· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:

·3· · · · · · · · · ·It's solely Venture Capital?

·4· · · · · · · ·MR. BAHAM:

·5· · · · · · · · · ·It's mostly Venture Capital, and a lot

·6· ·of it is SSBCI funds that we have injected now and --

·7· ·now, those are brand new funds since 2011, so those are

·8· ·going to be on the books for a little while until some

·9· ·of those funds start to close out, but that's nearly,

10· ·I'd say, 100 percent.· There is one existing, BIDCO,

11· ·still that we carry on the books from the early/mid-90s

12· ·that still has an active license and still making loans,

13· ·so that is the only other thing other than the Venture

14· ·Capital investments that are showing up in that

15· ·"Investment" category.· So instead of breaking it down

16· ·by fund or individual investments, that's why it's just

17· ·lumped into one big category as "Investments," and

18· ·they're obviously long-term assets.

19· · · · · · · ·MS. DALGO:

20· · · · · · · · · ·The Certificates of Deposits, 7.4, in

21· ·CDs is in that.

22· · · · · · · ·MR. BAHAM:

23· · · · · · · · · ·That's also in there.

24· · · · · · · · · ·So whenever we do a guaranteed loan, we

25· ·take a portion of that guaranty and we put it either
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·1· ·into a CD set aside or into a money market account, so

·2· ·that is also included in there as well.

·3· · · · · · · · · ·Thank you, Crystal.

·4· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:

·5· · · · · · · · · ·And so with respect to the Venture

·6· ·Capital, perhaps, BIDCO investment, that number would

·7· ·reflect Chaffe's description of what the value is as of

·8· ·those specific dates?

·9· · · · · · · ·MR. BAHAM:

10· · · · · · · · · ·Well, it should reflect it directly.· If

11· ·we go back to Fiscal Year '18, it should show that

12· ·value, because when Chaffe does their valuation, the

13· ·legislative auditor that's doing our audit of our

14· ·financials at the same time uses their valuation numbers

15· ·to reflect those investments dollars.· So, yes, to

16· ·answer your question, in short, because they work very

17· ·closely together because the auditor doesn't finish

18· ·their report until the Chaffe valuation is done.

19· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:

20· · · · · · · · · ·Any other questions?

21· · · · · · · · · ·Yes, sir.

22· · · · · · · ·MR. JACKSON:

23· · · · · · · · · ·Yes, just to clarify, obviously the

24· ·Venture funds are returning or they're suffering market

25· ·adjustments and things like that.
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·1· · · · · · · ·MR. BAHAM:

·2· · · · · · · · · ·Right.

·3· · · · · · · ·MR. JACKSON:

·4· · · · · · · · · ·But in general, shifts in our Fund

·5· ·Balance could also just be the fact that while we get

·6· ·those moneys appropriated from the legislature, we do

·7· ·the EDAPs and the EDREDs and stuff, those are actually

·8· ·expended back out.

·9· · · · · · · ·MR. BAHAM:

10· · · · · · · · · ·Correct.

11· · · · · · · ·MR. JACKSON:

12· · · · · · · · · ·So our Fund Balance could be declining

13· ·slightly because we're not receiving as much of an

14· ·appropriation to then be put out.

15· · · · · · · ·MR. BAHAM:

16· · · · · · · · · ·That's correct.

17· · · · · · · · · ·And if you scroll down to the bottom

18· ·there underneath the "Net Asset Position," you'll see

19· ·the different categories are "Restricted" and

20· ·"Unrestricted," and that is reflecting in those two

21· ·categories how it's balancing out.· The "Restricted"

22· ·account is made up of all of these EDAP balances from

23· ·previous years.· So like in Fiscal Year '14, we had a

24· ·little over 6-million in the restricted account.· Those

25· ·are committed funds to those projects that have been
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·1· ·approved this fiscal year that have just have not been

·2· ·expended yet.· The project maybe is a multiyear-phased

·3· ·project or it was approved close to the end of that

·4· ·current fiscal year, so the funds may have been

·5· ·committed in a previous fiscal year, but won't be

·6· ·expended until the following year.· So that does kind of

·7· ·play into it also because we're still carrying those

·8· ·funds on our books, even though they're committed, the

·9· ·legislature sees that you have "X" number of dollars out

10· ·there, so we're only going to commit this much because

11· ·of however.· I don't know if they have -- a lot of times

12· ·it's just gut feeling or restricted by the state budget.

13· · · · · · · ·MS. VILLA:

14· · · · · · · · · ·Right.· Just to kind of add to what

15· ·Steve just said, for the past probably three to four

16· ·years, we've been working very closely with them on what

17· ·our true needs were to meet our obligations.· So in

18· ·prior years before, you know, we were faced with the

19· ·fiscal position that we were faced with, we were

20· ·automatically getting, you know, the $10-million of EDAP

21· ·just routinely given to the department to use, but

22· ·because of the situation we were in with HBII with

23· ·meeting the limits of it, so we would always work with

24· ·them very closely saying "What truly is your cash --

25· ·What truly are your cash needs?"· And so that's what we
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·1· ·were faced with, you know, during the past years.

·2· · · · · · · ·MR. JACKSON:

·3· · · · · · · · · ·Right.· I guess what I'm getting at is

·4· ·while fund balance is important for a business,

·5· ·obviously you'd like to see that increasing because

·6· ·you're making money, we're really more investing it into

·7· ·the state, it doesn't stay on our books.

·8· · · · · · · ·MS. VILLA:

·9· · · · · · · · · ·That's correct.

10· · · · · · · ·MR. JACKSON:

11· · · · · · · · · ·So the level of our Fund Balance in any

12· ·particular year relative to other years is not

13· ·necessarily a cause for alarm.

14· · · · · · · ·MS. VILLA:

15· · · · · · · · · ·Right.

16· · · · · · · ·MR. JACKSON:

17· · · · · · · · · ·It's just a change in the way the funds

18· ·are coming together.

19· · · · · · · ·MR. BAHAM:

20· · · · · · · · · ·That's correct.

21· · · · · · · ·MR. JACKSON:

22· · · · · · · · · ·Thank you.

23· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:

24· · · · · · · · · ·Any other questions or comments at this

25· ·point?
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·1· · · · · · · · · ·I have one more.· Under "Investments,"

·2· ·you said that that number reflects the CDs

·3· ·accumulatively.· Do we have an indication or

·4· ·breakdown -- and, of course, those are pledged for

·5· ·guarantees; right?

·6· · · · · · · ·MS. DALGO:

·7· · · · · · · · · ·Correct.

·8· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:

·9· · · · · · · · · ·So do we have a breakdown of the

10· ·Guaranty Program for that year period of time and what

11· ·is happening in that respect?

12· · · · · · · ·MS. DALGO:

13· · · · · · · · · ·Yes, we do.

14· · · · · · · ·MS. VILLA:

15· · · · · · · · · ·We can have that at the next meeting.

16· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:

17· · · · · · · · · ·I'd be interested to look at that and

18· ·see where we were and where we are now.

19· · · · · · · ·MS. DALGO:

20· · · · · · · · · ·And the number for the value of the CDs

21· ·have stayed the same consistently over the years on here

22· ·after we had moved some to the money market account, so

23· ·it's not a fluctuating number, but the guarantees, we do

24· ·have that.· I can get back to you.

25· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:
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·1· · · · · · · · · ·Okay.· Yes.· So maybe I think we changed

·2· ·the formula at some point, I can't remember when, for

·3· ·the pledging.

·4· · · · · · · ·MR. BAHAM:

·5· · · · · · · · · ·I think it was when we received the

·6· ·SSBCI funds, part of the requirement on that Federal

·7· ·program was to try to obtain a 10-to-1 match, I believe,

·8· ·or leverage, and so to accomplish that, anytime we

·9· ·guaranty a loan, we would take 25 percent of that

10· ·guaranteed amount, instead of the full 100 percent that

11· ·we had done in the past, we put that in a CD so that

12· ·we're basically getting the 4-to-1 leverage on our

13· ·guaranteed loans.· And then the anticipation was with

14· ·the 4-to-1 on the guaranty and then the equity

15· ·investment, which also counts towards the leveraged

16· ·dollars, and then a portion of those SSBCI were put into

17· ·the VC investment, which also has a 20 percent

18· ·requirement of additional equity or more.· So we were

19· ·pushing -- I think our final leverage numbers at the end

20· ·of the '17 year in March when SSBCI closed was pushing

21· ·8-to-1.· So with the bulk of it being still tied up in

22· ·investments, they had not yet matured.· We feel after

23· ·those investments return, we'll hit that 10-to-1, and we

24· ·still have unspent SSBCI dollars that we still have yet

25· ·to leverage.
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·1· · · · · · · · · ·So, but, to answer your question, we did

·2· ·reduce it down to 25 percent.

·3· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:

·4· · · · · · · · · ·Right.· And given that I was focusing on

·5· ·the Guaranty Program, if we could -- I think it would be

·6· ·nice to see what's happened on the dollar of the loans

·7· ·that we've guaranteed throughout time, so if you could

·8· ·give that to us, I think that would be beneficial.· The

·9· ·CDs are indicative of some of that, and I appreciate it,

10· ·but we changed the formula, et cetera, so that's

11· ·probably not a number we want to focus on.· So if we

12· ·have a description of the guarantees themselves total.

13· · · · · · · ·MS. VILLA:

14· · · · · · · · · ·Yes.· We have -- the team does a great

15· ·job of giving internally LED a report on all of our

16· ·EDAPs every six months, and we just completed that about

17· ·six weeks ago, Susan?· So we have a pretty detailed

18· ·report that we can kind of share, you know, with the

19· ·Board.

20· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:

21· · · · · · · · · ·So, I mean, the EDAP would be nice to

22· ·see as well, but --

23· · · · · · · ·MS. VILLA:

24· · · · · · · · · ·That's what I'm referring to is the

25· ·EDAP.· And we also, as a matter of fact, I have a
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·1· ·meeting tomorrow on the investments that we're going to

·2· ·be doing as well, so we can most definitely share that

·3· ·with the Board.

·4· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:

·5· · · · · · · · · ·Okay.· So guarantees and EDAPs will be

·6· ·good.

·7· · · · · · · · · ·Anything else to add?

·8· · · · · · · ·MR. BAHAM:

·9· · · · · · · · · ·That's all I have unless you have

10· ·anymore questions.

11· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:

12· · · · · · · · · ·Any other questions from the Board?

13· ·Comments?

14· · · · · · · ·(No response.)

15· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:

16· · · · · · · · · ·All right.· Thank you.

17· · · · · · · ·MS. DALGO:

18· · · · · · · · · ·Thank you.

19· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:

20· · · · · · · · · ·All right.· It's nice to have the

21· ·Secretary with us today.· I know he's a very busy man,

22· ·and I look forward to hearing his report.

23· · · · · · · ·MS. VILLA:

24· · · · · · · · · ·Steve, did you have anything else that

25· ·you wanted to update the Board on?· I noticed you
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·1· ·included the marketing update.

·2· · · · · · · ·MR. BAHAM:

·3· · · · · · · · · ·We can just present -- we were at the

·4· ·President's Report, but I can go ahead --

·5· · · · · · · ·MS. VILLA:

·6· · · · · · · · · ·No, no, that's fine.

·7· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:

·8· · · · · · · · · ·My mistake.· I'm jumping ahead because

·9· ·the Secretary is sitting on the side of me, but, anyway,

10· ·let's let you finish on the marketing side.

11· · · · · · · ·MR. BAHAM:

12· · · · · · · · · ·Every six months or so we just do a

13· ·semi-annual update on our marketing efforts for Small

14· ·Business Loan Guaranty, and in your packet, I've

15· ·provided a short, two-page comparison.· What we decided

16· ·to do was take -- this is our year '18 effort that we

17· ·had done from June 1st of -- July 1st of 2017 through

18· ·June 30th of 2018 and compare it from the Fiscal Year of

19· ·'19.· And so for July 1st of 2018 through -- not quite a

20· ·full 12 months, but 11 months, through the end of May of

21· ·2019.

22· · · · · · · · · ·And if you look at the chart, back in

23· ·2018, we touched approximately -- when I say "we

24· ·touched," we physically met with either one-on-one or in

25· ·a bank conference room with several different bankers,

http://www.torresreporting.com/


·1· ·answering questions, going through projects or with a

·2· ·chamber in their meeting rooms -- 288 individuals or

·3· ·lenders or CPA professionals and the like, business

·4· ·owners as well are included in that.· And in 2019, for

·5· ·comparison purposes, we actually have gone up, minus one

·6· ·month, to 357 individuals.· The differences that you can

·7· ·see there is back through Fiscal Year 2018 and prior

·8· ·years to that, our marketing efforts were concentrated

·9· ·on strictly traditional bank lenders, third-party

10· ·lenders and credit unions, and that's always been our

11· ·main focus because that's who utilizes the program.· And

12· ·that's all fine and good, but because of our activity

13· ·had not been to where we need it to be or want it to be,

14· ·we decided in 2019 Fiscal Year that we're going to shift

15· ·the focus to not just hit our bankers, but also put more

16· ·of an emphasis and an effort on hitting our economic

17· ·development allies, our local business chambers and also

18· ·our business owners.

19· · · · · · · · · ·There's another area that we made a huge

20· ·effort, and staff has gone out into local communities

21· ·and been a part of local B&I groups and local chamber

22· ·meetings and just getting an on-the-ground level with

23· ·local mom and pop businesses, you know, that do

24· ·everyday, the bakers, the hair salons, the -- even auto

25· ·dealerships, I believe.· So they're meeting with anybody
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·1· ·and everybody, either if they own a business or even

·2· ·contemplating owning a business.

·3· · · · · · · · · ·We also worked very closely with our

·4· ·SBDCs across the state because they work with the

·5· ·business owners or entrepreneurs or soon-to

·6· ·entrepreneurs on a regular basis, and that explains a

·7· ·lot of the differences in our numbers here and how we've

·8· ·been able to hit so many people in a shorter amount of

·9· ·time here in Fiscal Year '19.

10· · · · · · · · · ·To give you an example of how we're

11· ·still touching our banks is if you look at 2018, we

12· ·brought to the attention of some of these new lenders,

13· ·and these aren't just individual lenders, these are new

14· ·banks that we counted approximately 37 in Fiscal Year

15· ·'18 were unique, individual banks that we had not

16· ·touched either in the previous year or the year before,

17· ·so two to three years we had not gone to that bank.· And

18· ·in Fiscal Year '19, in our efforts, while we were

19· ·focusing on outside of the lending community, we still

20· ·had to communicate with our banks.· So what we did was

21· ·we said, "Well, we are going to focus more on these

22· ·banks like we did in '18 to touch more of those banks

23· ·that hadn't heard about the program and hadn't seen it

24· ·in a couple years."· And we hit 25 new ones in that same

25· ·time period.· So while we're hitting less banks as far
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·1· ·as the one-on-one handshake and educating them on the

·2· ·program and trying to develop new relationships, we're

·3· ·still hitting new banks that we're developing these

·4· ·relationships with.

·5· · · · · · · · · ·We're starting to see the fruits of

·6· ·that.· Just this week -- I know our Secretary

·7· ·Treasurer's Report indicated that we didn't have any

·8· ·projects under review right now, but that was as of May

·9· ·31st.· Just this first two weeks of -- not even two full

10· ·weeks of June, we've got two applications in, I think

11· ·one last week and one early this week, for loans.· And

12· ·then we are expected to get another loan application in

13· ·by the end of today, and that loan, we're really excited

14· ·about because I think it's going to be a really nice

15· ·one.

16· · · · · · · · · ·We also have a fourth loan that I've

17· ·been working with a bank here in Baton Rouge to try to

18· ·secure.· It's actually a bank that's used the program

19· ·several times before, but hadn't in a couple years, so

20· ·we're trying to rekindle that relationship.· So we're

21· ·making headway, and we're trying different things to get

22· ·some activity going.· The new route seems to be getting

23· ·a little more attraction, and we're at least driving

24· ·interest because we've noticed that anytime we talk to a

25· ·business owner or a potential business owner, they learn
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·1· ·about the program, they're going knocking on their

·2· ·banker's doors with some papers and business cards and

·3· ·saying, "Here, call these guys."· And a lot of banks do.

·4· ·We're getting calls from banks that we typically would

·5· ·not work with or haven't really given us that much look

·6· ·in the past, the banks that are on that mid-tier level

·7· ·that meet more of a regional focus.· The community banks

·8· ·have always been the biggest users of our program, but

·9· ·we're starting to see some activity from these more

10· ·regionalized banks about the size of like a Hancock

11· ·Whitney.· They're starting to ask more questions and

12· ·spitball more potential projects with us.

13· · · · · · · · · ·So another big thing that we have

14· ·focused on is working internally with our BERG group in

15· ·particular.· The project earlier today was actually

16· ·brought by one of our BERG members, Charlie, and he and

17· ·the rest of BERG team has been very, very influential in

18· ·bringing especially two of the new four projects that we

19· ·have potential applications on right now, so that has

20· ·been another big success for us.

21· · · · · · · · · ·So with the staff, with myself and two

22· ·and a half other people, we're trying to cover the state

23· ·as much as possible, and we're touching a lot more

24· ·people by going to these, especially these B&I groups

25· ·and local chamber meetings, we're able to hit a lot more
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·1· ·people at one time, and we've had a lot of success with

·2· ·that.· And, of course, every other year we attend the

·3· ·LBA Banker's Association annual meeting, and that's

·4· ·always a big, big plus for us because for the next few

·5· ·weeks after that, we're constantly getting phone calls

·6· ·from new banks.· And what we've noticed, I know over the

·7· ·past 10 to 15 years, we've had a lot of changeover.

·8· ·You, yourself, may have this, Mr. Roy.· A lot of banks

·9· ·that have been in the industry for many, many years are

10· ·starting to retire and they're, you know, moving on, and

11· ·a new set of bankers are starting to take their place

12· ·and a lot of these new bankers are very, very green.

13· ·And banking has changed, especially over the last 10 to

14· ·15 years.· It's not as much of a -- it used to be a

15· ·traditional loan officer not only went out and found

16· ·that deal and worked with that client and built that

17· ·relationship, but they underwrote practically the whole

18· ·loan, pitched it to the committee and did the servicing

19· ·for the most part.· Today it's clanged differently where

20· ·it's in the house of underwriters at the main office and

21· ·a front guy that's the loan officers really just going

22· ·out there doing the marketing.· So we're having to

23· ·adjust our style a little bit.· We're trying to use the

24· ·loan officers to get us in the door and get us a

25· ·sit-down with the underwriters so we can actually
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·1· ·explain the program in detail to them, but have the loan

·2· ·officer go and sell it.

·3· · · · · · · · · ·It's a big relationship game, and staff

·4· ·has been doing a really good job of staying on top of

·5· ·that, so I've got to tip my hat to them.· In just 11

·6· ·months, I knew that we were hitting more people, but

·7· ·until you actually crunch the numbers, you really

·8· ·don't -- you really don't see it.· We're hitting quite

·9· ·almost a full 100 more people than what we did, and

10· ·that's in 11 month's time.

11· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:

12· · · · · · · · · ·Any questions or comments?

13· · · · · · · ·MR. JACKSON:

14· · · · · · · · · ·BERG group?

15· · · · · · · ·MR. BAHAM:

16· · · · · · · · · ·It's LED's Business Expansion and

17· ·Retention Group.· So we have essentially two different

18· ·groups or three different groups.· We have international

19· ·and we have our traditional marking group that goes out

20· ·and finds companies to come in or that are relocating

21· ·here.· BERG group focuses on homegrown businesses.· They

22· ·go out to the communities, they tap on the doors and

23· ·they find needs and they're meeting with companies every

24· ·single day, multiple companies.· And Secretary is very,

25· ·very familiar with what they do, probably more so than

http://www.torresreporting.com/


·1· ·what I am.· But we decided if we're going to focus on

·2· ·meeting with the companies, we need to get internally

·3· ·because they've already met with them.· So it's just a

·4· ·matter of maintaining those, getting a foot in the door,

·5· ·and once we get the foot in the door, a lot of times

·6· ·we're able -- and educating our own team sometimes,

·7· ·because a lot of times these guys are chasing, you know,

·8· ·the bigger deal, they're not sure what to do with the

·9· ·smaller company.· We told them, "Look, pass them to us.

10· ·We'll work with them.· And if they're looking for

11· ·financing, we'll definitely help them out."

12· · · · · · · · · ·And we also have a small business group

13· ·that we work side-by-side with, which is another group

14· ·that I forgot to mention.· They do a lot of the CEO

15· ·roundtables across the state, and we attend -- I'm

16· ·actually going to one across the street tomorrow to talk

17· ·about a program.

18· · · · · · · · · ·So we have really revamped how we're

19· ·doing things as far as from a marketing perspective.  I

20· ·mean, we realize that with such a small team, you kind

21· ·of have to diversify a little bit, utilize the resources

22· ·that we have available to us and let some other people

23· ·kind of do the talking for us because we can't be --

24· ·with two and a half people, we can't be in all places

25· ·within all times.
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·1· · · · · · · · · ·So, but, to answer your question, the

·2· ·BERG group is Business Expansion and Retention Group.

·3· · · · · · · ·MR. JACKSON:

·4· · · · · · · · · ·Okay.

·5· · · · · · · · · ·And, Mr. Chairman, Mr. Baham actually

·6· ·came and spoke to the CPAs at their monthly luncheon in

·7· ·Ouachita Parish a few months ago.· It was really very

·8· ·helpful.· So I guess we probably had 15 or 20 at that

·9· ·meeting, so it was a good opportunity to expose that

10· ·group of professionals as they work with their clients.

11· ·We're most appreciative.

12· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:

13· · · · · · · · · ·Very good.

14· · · · · · · · · ·One thought, you had me thinking as you

15· ·were describing your outreach to the LBA, and the staff

16· ·has done a great job of reaching out to the LBA at the

17· ·annual convention, I believe has been the primary for

18· ·us.· The LBA also does a great job on an annual basis of

19· ·training bankers, and they're really big -- Sue can echo

20· ·that, I'm sure.· And I would encourage you -- I know you

21· ·know Ginger.· Brenda does -- to reach out to Ginger

22· ·Laurent and try to get on the agenda.· They have these

23· ·regular training events for lenders, senior lenders, and

24· ·the like, and where the core lenders from these probably

25· ·primarily community banks, but you can certainly get
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·1· ·some of the bigger guys there as well, are all in

·2· ·attendance and it's right here in Baton Rouge, easy to

·3· ·access.· You know, Ginger, I think, would work with us

·4· ·on being placed on the agenda, and I think that could

·5· ·really help, because the LBA convention, you have the

·6· ·directors, the CEOs, sort of a different audience.· But

·7· ·getting right before the lenders themselves in some of

·8· ·these banks could really make some dividends, so I

·9· ·really encourage you to do that.

10· · · · · · · ·MR. BAHAM:

11· · · · · · · · · ·Definitely.

12· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:

13· · · · · · · · · ·Sue, do you have anything to add?

14· · · · · · · ·MS. DURAND:

15· · · · · · · · · ·I want to say that our chief lender

16· ·attends quarterly meetings in Baton Rouge.· His name is

17· ·Glenn Decou.

18· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:

19· · · · · · · · · ·They do a great job, as Sue's

20· ·illustrating, and would be a good place to start, or

21· ·another place, I should say.

22· · · · · · · · · ·Anyone else?

23· · · · · · · ·(No response.)

24· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:

25· · · · · · · · · ·All right.· Mr. Secretary.
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·1· · · · · · · ·SECRETARY PIERSON:

·2· · · · · · · · · ·Thank you, and as always, thank you for

·3· ·the important job and the important role that you play

·4· ·in managing the funds that we make available to

·5· ·companies that are giving us a commitment to continue

·6· ·their growth, their job growth, and their investment in

·7· ·our state, and a great team that deploys that.

·8· · · · · · · · · ·I'll just give you few highlights of

·9· ·some recent activities at the department.· I'll be happy

10· ·to answer any questions that you might have, but we're

11· ·experiencing a lot of very powerful growth in the state

12· ·at this time.· Just in really the last 30 to 45 days,

13· ·we've been with the Governor over in Lake Charles for

14· ·the decommissioning of the Lotte facility.· That is an

15· ·investment coming to us from Korea of $3.1-billion.

16· ·That's online now.· We're very pleased with that.

17· · · · · · · · · ·And in that joint venture, also Westlake

18· ·Chemical, a tremendous amount of activity related to

19· ·that.· The advanced chemical manufacturing sector has

20· ·just been very, very strong for our state.

21· · · · · · · · · ·While we have enjoyed a lot of success

22· ·basically in the Lake Charles area with the Westlake

23· ·Chemical manufacturing, with LNG facilities that are

24· ·being put online, we've not forgotten to work hard in

25· ·other parts of state, so we're really happy to report
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·1· ·that we were also able to cut the ribbon at the LaSalle

·2· ·Lumber facility, a computerized saw mill that's in one

·3· ·of our rural locations and a $115-million investment.

·4· ·That's a joint venture with a company from Canada, and

·5· ·115 new direct jobs at that lumber mill facility, but

·6· ·more importantly, in my mind, is that multiplier effect

·7· ·that it has doing a great deal for all of those that are

·8· ·engaged in the timber harvesting, all of the trucking

·9· ·and mechanics and the work that has to go on in the

10· ·forest to make all of that come together and work so

11· ·well.

12· · · · · · · · · ·And so revitalizing and being active in

13· ·our rural parishes is really something special.· It

14· ·follows on that we were able to do something very

15· ·similar, not with the forestry, but with advanced

16· ·chemical manufacturing with Delek with their

17· ·$150-million investment in St. Landry Parish, which was

18· ·also recently announced.· This contact was made by the

19· ·Governor in his trade mission and business recruit

20· ·mission to Israel last October, bringing some great web

21· ·service development activities to our community colleges

22· ·through this recent announcement with Amazon in forming

23· ·a relationship with our community technical colleges.

24· · · · · · · · · ·We just talked about a computerized saw

25· ·mill.· You know, everything is so digital, and this
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·1· ·transition is being able to bring this kind of

·2· ·instruction to our universities and community colleges

·3· ·remains an important focus.

·4· · · · · · · · · ·We participated with the Governor in a

·5· ·cyber securities symposium and summit in Shreveport.· It

·6· ·was sponsored in part by the National Governor's

·7· ·Association, so a tremendous amount of activity coming

·8· ·in from all over the nation to discuss those important

·9· ·elements of cyber security and relates to all of the

10· ·banking and financial professional that are here and,

11· ·again, just relates back to the broad digital spectrum

12· ·that's out there that we're seeking to make sure that

13· ·the state is presented with the opportunities to kind of

14· ·maintain and grow in that area.

15· · · · · · · · · ·A number of other announcements we've

16· ·had, just an entire robust, purine of engagement.· We

17· ·have a strong pipeline, I'm pleased to report to you

18· ·right now, that some will have the types of programs

19· ·that you administer being brought forward in the

20· ·not-too-distant future, sixty-seven projects that are

21· ·currently being managed by the Business Development

22· ·Group that Steve referred to, and he did a great job in

23· ·talking about the important work that our Business and

24· ·extension Retention Group does.· As part of our strategy

25· ·in that it's great to talk about new companies that we
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·1· ·want to recruit to Louisiana, but we know by this very

·2· ·focused interaction with what we call economic driver

·3· ·companies.· We select the larger companies, not in the

·4· ·retail or healthcare services sectors, but those that

·5· ·are more related to manufacturers, in that, those jobs

·6· ·have tremendous multiplier effects, and have those

·7· ·conversations occasionally.· We get to learn that this

·8· ·plant is in competition with other plants in the US, and

·9· ·we're able to, through that identification, be very

10· ·competitive about what we can bring to the table should

11· ·they choose Louisiana.· And so the BERG group does that.

12· · · · · · · · · ·A sidebar to that is working with the

13· ·regional organizations to make anywhere from between 600

14· ·and 800 total calls in a year's time, but by using LED

15· ·staff and staff that exists out of the regional economic

16· ·development organizations, all of the data is captured

17· ·in a customer management software program, and we're

18· ·able to see trends and things of that nature.· But we're

19· ·also able to make sure that we have a current database

20· ·for a lot of these senior executives that are running

21· ·these companies, and in the event of disaster, whether

22· ·it's a tornado, flooding, all kinds of operations that

23· ·can disrupt business were able to play a role in support

24· ·of business emergency operation centers, and this

25· ·current base of information and how to reach critical
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·1· ·executives that are part of these organizations and find

·2· ·out, you know, how they're being disrupted, they have

·3· ·power lines down, they have trees down or roads or rail

·4· ·or water or other types of issues impacting their

·5· ·facility, we can coordinate to help get people back to

·6· ·work faster.· And so our Expansion and Retention Group

·7· ·helps us grow jobs, but at the same time plays a very

·8· ·important rule in the resilience and recovery efforts

·9· ·when disaster strikes, and that's sometimes not noted,

10· ·but I think it's an interesting and important element of

11· ·their activities.

12· · · · · · · · · ·Legislative session just wrapped up on

13· ·the 6th of June.· We've not had a lot of focus on

14· ·economic development programs, per se.· It was a

15· ·lower-key type of session for us.· Really all of our

16· ·incentive programs have been reviewed over the last few

17· ·years.· A number of them have had certainly tweaks,

18· ·sometimes reductions, but basically they all have sunset

19· ·features now, which means that they will all be

20· ·revisited to make sure that they're effective and

21· ·efficient in doing the kinds of things that the state

22· ·seeks in order to build a vibrant economy.· So

23· ·everything from our Quality Jobs Program to our

24· ·entertainment programs have all been really put under a

25· ·lot of scrutiny over the last three and a half or so
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·1· ·years, all are positioned to be effective for the state,

·2· ·all will remain under evaluation going forward, but we

·3· ·didn't have a lot of those kind of issues as this

·4· ·particular session wrapped up.

·5· · · · · · · · · ·Probably the only significant thing I

·6· ·can report to you is I think that we have maybe $960,000

·7· ·in our budget request that was not provided to LED, so

·8· ·we'll be doing some belt tightening in certain parts of

·9· ·the department.

10· · · · · · · · · ·Some important new initiatives, I'm

11· ·pleased to say, we were granted some funding which has

12· ·to do with some coastal activities that we want to say

13· ·small businesses have a better foothold and a better

14· ·opportunity to participate in, and certainly we're also

15· ·able to and lobbied for our regional economic

16· ·development partners to get an increase in some of their

17· ·funding.· It's very difficult.· You heard Steve say it a

18· ·couple times, they're a very small staff, basically 100

19· ·people in this building, trying to cover 64 parishes,

20· ·paying attention to North Louisiana, paying attention to

21· ·Central Louisiana, where a lot of assistance is needed

22· ·in the economy today, but also reaching out in Southeast

23· ·and Southwest Louisiana.· The only way that we can

24· ·leverage our abilities and what this Board brings to

25· ·bear is to utilize these strong regional partners, which
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·1· ·we have eight of them across the state.· So I am pleased

·2· ·to report that we were able to get them a little more

·3· ·money to execute the programs that we asked them to

·4· ·participate in with us.· We don't simply write a check

·5· ·and pass it across the desk.· And actually we formed a

·6· ·contractural agreement with certain performance measures

·7· ·included in that, and sometimes it is those business

·8· ·retention calls that we ask them to make and then submit

·9· ·it to the computer software tracking system, but certain

10· ·tasks and requirements that they meet, and then

11· ·certainly they get the support from the state and some

12· ·significant funding that we do provide to them.

13· · · · · · · · · ·Our FastStart Program remains

14· ·exceptional.· It's a real asset to the state.· When we

15· ·talk to companies about either expanding here or

16· ·locating here, the ability to also indicate to them that

17· ·we will provide a turnkey workforce solution certainly

18· ·moves us to the front of the line in getting some of

19· ·these project wins.· And I'm very proud of their efforts

20· ·to have been designated as the Number 1 Workforce

21· ·Training Program in the Nation for nine years running,

22· ·and you don't maintain that position by sort of a

23· ·static, keep doing the same thing, maybe like bowling

24· ·pins are always in the same place and you can directly

25· ·bowl a 300 game.· For us in the workforce training
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·1· ·business, the goals are always moving, the types of

·2· ·technology are available that we can bring to bear are

·3· ·moving, and we're staying on the very front end of that.

·4· ·We are currently, for Exxon Mobil, executing visual

·5· ·reality training modules, actually you put on the

·6· ·goggles and you are positioned in the room and fire is

·7· ·breaking out and you've got to identify the alarm and

·8· ·the fire extinguisher and things of that nature.· It's

·9· ·revolutionary in some respects, but Louisiana and the

10· ·FastStart division are on the cutting edge of bringing

11· ·the latest technology to workforce training, and we're

12· ·pleased to see them continuing to make good progress

13· ·against that.

14· · · · · · · · · · We did host our SBA awards ceremony at

15· ·the Mansion, and also our Lantern awards, which are,

16· ·from each of the eight regions, we identify an

17· ·outstanding manufacturer that we can recognize for their

18· ·efforts.· So continue to have a very strong focus on

19· ·building small business outwork in our state and trying

20· ·to do that balance of attracting new business and having

21· ·a very robust portfolio of international state working

22· ·closely with the major economic drivers across our

23· ·state, and then all of those are supported by a very

24· ·important outwork of small businesses.· That big plant

25· ·won't run and operate if there's not maintenance and
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·1· ·services and supplies and kinds of things that need to

·2· ·run the plant available in the small business support

·3· ·system around that.

·4· · · · · · · · · ·So we've got a lot of ground to cover,

·5· ·but we're pleased to be able to execute on your behalf,

·6· ·and happy take any questions you might have.

·7· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:

·8· · · · · · · · · ·Anyone questions or comments?

·9· · · · · · · ·(No response.)

10· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:

11· · · · · · · · · ·Thank you.· Appreciate the words.

12· · · · · · · · · ·Any other business?

13· · · · · · · ·(No response.)

14· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:

15· · · · · · · · · ·All right.· Hearing none, I'll entertain

16· ·a motion to adjourn.

17· · · · · · · ·MR. ANDRE:

18· · · · · · · · · ·So moved.

19· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:

20· · · · · · · · · ·Motion.· Second.

21· · · · · · · · · ·All in favor "aye."

22· · · · · · · ·(Several members respond "aye.")

23· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:

24· · · · · · · · · ·All opposed, "nay."

25· · · · · · · ·(No response.)
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·1· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:

·2· · · · · · · · · ·Without objection.· Have a good day.

·3· ·Thank you.

·4· · · · · · · ·(Meeting concludes at 10:27 a.m.)
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 1               MR. ROY:

 2                   Morning.  I'll call to order the Board

 3   of Directors, Louisiana Economic Development

 4   Corporation.

 5                   Rollcall, please.

 6               MS. SIMMONS:

 7                   Good morning.

 8                   A.J. Roy, III.

 9               MR. ROY:

10                   Here.

11               MS. SIMMONS:

12                   Alden Andre.

13               MR. ANDRE:

14                   Here.

15               MS. SIMMONS:

16                   Louis Reine.

17               (No response.)

18               MS. SIMMONS:

19                   Charles E. Jackson, III.

20               MR. JACKSON:

21                   Here.

22               MS. SIMMONS:

23                   Mandi Mitchell.

24               (No response.)

25               MS. SIMMONS:
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 1                   Cal Simpson.

 2               MR. SIMPSON:

 3                   Here.

 4               MS. SIMMONS:

 5                   Nittin Kamath.

 6               (No response.)

 7               MS. SIMMONS:

 8                   Sue Durand.

 9               SECRETARY PIERSON:

10                   She's here.

11               MS. SIMMONS:

12                   Kimberly Johnson.

13               (No response.)

14               MS. SIMMONS:

15                   Todd McDonald.

16               (No response.)

17               MS. SIMMONS:

18                   Secretary Don Pierson.

19               SECRETARY PIERSON:

20                   Here.

21               MS. SIMMONS:

22                   We have a quorum.

23               MR. ROY:

24                   Very good.  Welcome, everyone.  I'll ask

25   everyone to please silence your cell phones.
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 1                   The first order of business is the

 2   ratification and approval of minutes, and I have a

 3   potential duty today.  We need to do a little

 4   housekeeping, so bear with me.  I'll be reading from a

 5   document so that we get it correctly.

 6                   The LEDC Board and Finance Company (sic)

 7   held a meeting on February 14th, 2019; however, the

 8   agenda for the meeting was not posted on the LEDC

 9   website 24 hours in advance of the meeting as required

10   by the Open Meetings Law.  Because actions were taken by

11   the Board during the meeting and were held without a

12   24-hour advanced posting of the agenda on the LEDC

13   website, the Board must ratify and approve all actions

14   taken during the February 14th, 2019 meeting.

15                   During the February 14th, 2019 meeting,

16   the following actions were taken by the Finance

17   Committee:  Agenda Item Number 3, the audit reports,

18   finance statements were approved, the finance statement

19   as of June the 30th, 2018, and validation of the LEDC

20   investments as of June the 30th, 2018.

21                   Let me stop there.

22                   Any questions of what I've said thus

23   far?

24               (No response.)

25               MR. ROY:
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 1                   All right.  During the February 14th,

 2   2019 meeting, the following actions were taken by the

 3   board:  Agenda Item Number 3, approval of the meeting

 4   minutes of the LEDC Board meeting held on December the

 5   17th, 2018; and Agenda Item Number 4, the approval of

 6   the Finance Committee Report; Agenda Item Number 5,

 7   Economic Development Award Program extension request by

 8   Fuji Oil New Orleans, LLC; Agenda Item Number 6,

 9   election of officers, chairperson, vice chairman; Agenda

10   Item Number 7, committee appointments from the various

11   committees, Executive, Screening, Policy, Finance and

12   Government Outreach.

13                   Do I entertain any motions or are there

14   any questions from the Board members?

15               (No response.)

16               MR. ROY:

17                   Comments?

18               (No response.)

19               MR. ROY:

20                   Any questions or comments from the

21   public?

22               (No response.)

23               MR. ROY:

24                   Hearing none, I will entertain a motion

25   to ratify and approve the Finance Committee and the LEDC
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 1   Board meetings held on February the 14th, 2019.

 2               MR. SIMPSON:

 3                   I move to ratify and approve.

 4               MR. ANDRE:

 5                   Second.

 6               MR. ROY:

 7                   Any discussion?

 8               (No response.)

 9               MR. ROY:

10                   Hearing none, all in favor -- any

11   comments from the public?

12               (No response.)

13               MR. ROY:

14                   Hearing none, all in favor, "aye."

15               (Several members respond "aye.")

16               MR. ROY:

17                   All opposed, "nay."

18               (No response.)

19               MR. ROY:

20                   Without objection.

21               MR. ROY:

22                   All right.  Next order of business is

23   the in-house approval of updates.

24                   Good morning.

25               MS. DOIN:

0008

 1                   Good morning.  Marissa Doin.  I have one

 2   loan update for y'all today.  This one is from Hancock

 3   Whitney Bank out of New Orleans.  The company is

 4   Advanced Cutting Solutions.  They're a core kitting

 5   company, and they supply core kits used to create wind

 6   turbines.

 7                   ACS was formed in 2014, and they began

 8   generating revenues in 2016.  In the past 16 months, ACS

 9   has seen significant growth and is on the path to

10   continue growing.

11                   Hancock Whitney requests a 75 percent

12   guaranty on a $250,000 line of credit backed by

13   inventories and receivables.  The funds will be used to

14   support working capital needs of the company as they

15   grow, and staff approved this loan on April 25th.

16                   Are there any questions?

17               (No response.)

18               MS. DOIN:

19                   Thank you.

20               MR. ROY:

21                   Thank you.

22                   Next order of business is under the

23   Economic Development Award Program, Gramercy Holdings 1,

24   LLC, D/B/A Noranda Alumina.

25                   Ms. Bigner.
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 1               MS. BIGNER:

 2                   Good morning.

 3               MR. ROY:

 4                   If you could, pull the microphones up.

 5               MS. BIGNER:

 6                   Susan Bigner.  This morning we have a

 7   request from Gramercy Holdings 1, LLC, doing business as

 8   Noranda Alumina for a $1-million unsponsored EDAP.

 9                   The facility is located in Gramercy in

10   St. James Parish.  With me are Noranda Bauxite & Alumina

11   company representatives, Scott Croft, Stacy Miller and

12   Anthony Laura.

13                   In 2018, New Day Aluminum Holdings, LLC

14   purchased the alumina line facility in Gramercy along

15   with a bauxite facility in Jamaica, which were both in

16   bankruptcy at the time.  The Jamaica facility mines and

17   ships bauxite, which is the principle ore of aluminum,

18   to the Gramercy facility and other New Day facilities.

19                   The St. James facility was built by

20   Kaiser Aluminum and Chemicals Corporation in 1958 and

21   has been operational ever since.  Operations under

22   Noranda began in October of 2016, and the company

23   announced a $35-million upgrade and expansion in May of

24   2017.  The expansion and upgrades include designing and

25   installing equipment to increase productivity, storage
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 1   and shipping as well as moving the corporate

 2   headquarters to the facility.

 3                   Currently the company is rehabilitating

 4   the administrative building for the headquarters and

 5   improving residual ponds on the property.  The EDAP will

 6   assist with the costs associated with the residual

 7   ponds.  The company has to expedite clay from one area

 8   of the property, transport it to the pond area and then

 9   build up the levee wall six to 10 feet to the permitted

10   height of 50 feet.

11                   The company has recently purchased

12   refurbished gas turbine generator that will be used as

13   collateral for the unsponsored EDAP, and Gramercy

14   Holdings will guaranty all commitments.

15                   Since the project was announced in 2017,

16   the company has commenced hiring employees and investing

17   CapEx.  The 42.9 projected cost listed in the EDAP

18   application exceeds the $35-million CapEx announced in

19   2017.  As of the end of March, the company imported

20   approximately 430 employees; therefore, it is expected

21   that the company will meet or exceed their first year

22   requirements of 432 employees with an approximate annual

23   payroll of 27.3-million.

24                   Staff recommends approval of the

25   unsponsored EDAP for $1-million with the normal
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 1   contingencies listed in the term sheet.  The company has

 2   agreed to retain approximately 395 jobs with an

 3   associated annual payroll increased annually by two

 4   percent while creating 65 new jobs with an estimated

 5   annual payroll of 7.1-million by 2025.  Of the 65 new

 6   jobs, 15 are expected to be headquarter jobs.

 7                   If the required jobs are created and

 8   retained at the stipulated annual payroll, then the EDAP

 9   will be considered satisfied.  However, if the company

10   does not create the projected jobs and payroll on an

11   annual basis, the unearned credit balance for that year

12   will be due and payable to LEDC plus interest.  All

13   credits will be based on payroll.

14                   At this time, I'm going to ask the

15   company representatives to tell you a little bit about

16   the project.

17               MR. LAURA:

18                   Thank you.  I'd like to introduce Scott

19   Croft, the company Chief Operating Officer.

20               MR. CROFT:

21                   Good morning.  Can everybody hear me

22   okay?

23               MR. ROY:

24                   Good morning.

25               MR. CROFT:
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 1                   As Anthony mentioned, I'm Scott Croft,

 2   Chief Operating Officer of Noranda Bauxite Alumina, and

 3   I'm one of those jobs Susan referred to.  I just joined

 4   the company in February, and certainly happy to be here

 5   and happy to help contribute.

 6                   I'm happy to answer any questions you

 7   have about the project, but I just really wanted to

 8   thank the Board for the consideration to help us

 9   continue our growth story and really to add to that

10   sustainable platform, which we're building down in

11   Gramercy.  It really is something to see and something

12   we can all be proud of for Louisiana.

13                   I'm happy to answer any questions.  This

14   project is teed up, ready to go as we are sort of

15   working through some of the final contract negotiations

16   as we sit here.  And Susan captured it quite well.

17               MR. ROY:

18                   Secretary.

19               SECRETARY PIERSON:

20                   I don't have a question.  I just wanted

21   to give a corresponding thank you for the efforts being

22   made and presented here.  On the one hand, you would

23   have a bankruptcy, 395 workers going home and looking

24   for new work in our state, but with this company

25   stepping up and pledging to invest more than 35-million
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 1   on the site, retain all of those workers and then bring

 2   us and ramping an additional 65 jobs in the coming years

 3   and already making great progress against those goals,

 4   it's a tremendous credit to the company for their

 5   confidence.

 6                   And I'd like to also point out that our

 7   team is out there working to find opportunities like

 8   this, to not only -- you know, you read about all the

 9   new companies that we're able to bring in the state, but

10   to working with our existing companies, and in this

11   case, be able to revitalize those efforts is

12   tremendously important.  So thank you.

13               MR. CROFT:

14                   Thank you.

15               MR. LAURA:

16                   Thank you.

17               MR. ROY:

18                   Anything else, or perhaps questions or

19   comments from the Board?

20               (No response.)

21               MR. ROY:

22                   Board members?

23               (No response.)

24               MR. ROY:

25                   What's the pleasure of the Board?
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 1               MR. JACKSON:

 2                   I move that we accept this proposal.

 3               MR. ROY:

 4                   Motion for acceptance as presented.

 5               MS. DURAND:

 6                   I second that.

 7               MR. ROY:

 8                   Second.

 9                   Any discussion?

10               (No response.)

11               MR. ROY:

12                   Hearing none, all in favor, "aye."

13               (Several members respond "aye.")

14               MR. ROY:

15                   All opposed, "nay."

16               (No response.)

17               MR. ROY:

18                   Without objection.

19                   Congratulations.  Please keep us posted

20   on your successes.  We always like to hear about that.

21               MR. CROFT:

22                   Absolutely.  Thank you very much.

23               MR. LAURA:

24                   Thank you very much.

25               MR. ROY:
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 1                   Were there any comments from the public

 2   on that?

 3               (No response.)

 4               MR. ROY:

 5                   Next order of business, the Treasurer's

 6   Report, Ms. Villa.

 7               MS. VILLA:

 8                   Good morning.  Anne Villa,

 9   Undersecretary for Louisiana Economic Development

10   presenting the Secretary Treasurer's Report as of May

11   31st, 2019.

12                   In summary, our total budget for Fy '19

13   is $10,538,938.  We have approved and projected

14   expenditures of $3,135,443, and we just had the Board

15   approval of a million-dollar project, so that gives us

16   an anticipated balance of 6,403,495.

17                   We still have a project under review of

18   375,000, so we have a projected year-end balance of

19   6,028,495.  Details of that consists of State Small

20   Business Credit Initiative and/or Financial Assistance

21   Program, which had a budget of 2,092,796.  I'm sorry.

22   $2,092,737.  And we had approved project expenditures of

23   624,443.  We don't have any projects under review

24   currently, so we have a projected balance of 1,468,354.

25                   Regarding our Capital Outlay

0016

 1   Appropriation for our EDAP programs and our EDRED

 2   programs, we had a budget of $8,446,141.  We had

 3   approved and projected expenditures of 2,511,000, and

 4   with the project that was just approved, we have a

 5   balance of 4,935,141.  And we do have a couple of

 6   projects that are under review that equate to 375,000,

 7   so we have a projected balance of 4,560,141.

 8                   You'll see the note at the bottom there

 9   that for our FY '19 budget, we did have a return of

10   appropriation from a project of 1,235,000, so that's

11   accounted for as well.

12                   Just for, I guess, for notification, we

13   ended the session last week, and I'll take the

14   opportunity now to let you know that for your EDAP

15   program, we do have $7-million worth of cash that was

16   given to in HBII in the Capital Outlay bill for our

17   projects, so for the Secretary's discretion to use for

18   upcoming projects, the ones that are in the pipeline,

19   and to meet any obligations we may have in FY '20 year.

20   So that's actually better than getting either Priority 1

21   or Priority 5 dollars, so it gives us -- the Secretary

22   some discretion to use that for big projects that he may

23   have in the pipeline.  So I wanted to give you a brief

24   update on that.

25                   And regarding our Fund Balance, which is
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 1   the last page of the report, our FY '19 projected Fund

 2   Balance available is $14,947,976 and we have

 3   expenditures expected of 12,027,483, which would leave

 4   us an Appropriation Fund balance of 2,920,483.  I have

 5   to increase the size a little bit.  493.  Sorry.

 6   2,920,493 is our expected balance at the end.

 7                   Any questions?

 8               (No response.)

 9               MS. VILLA:

10                   Okay.  Thank you.

11               MR. ROY:

12                   Questions, comments?

13               (No response.)

14               MR. ROY:

15                   Hearing none, I'll entertain a motion to

16   accept the Treasurer's Report.

17               MR. ANDRE:

18                   So moved.

19               MR. ROY:

20                   Motion.

21               MR. JACKSON:

22                   Second.

23               MR. ROY:

24                   Second.

25                   Any discussion?
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 1               (No response.)

 2               MR. ROY:

 3                   Without objection.

 4                   Any comments from the public?

 5               (No response.)

 6               MR. ROY:

 7                   All in favor, "aye."

 8               (Several members respond "aye.")

 9               MR. ROY:

10                   All opposed, "nay."

11               (No response.)

12               MR. ROY:

13                   Without objection.

14                   Next order of business, the Accountant's

15   Report.

16               MS. DALGO:

17                   Good morning.  Crystal Dalgo.  I'll be

18   presenting to you the LEDC Accountant's Status Report as

19   of April 30th, 2019.

20                   We'll start off with the EDAP Loan

21   Portfolio, it totals $994,572.  There are currently

22   three loans under this portfolio that consist of the

23   Town of Colfax, the City of Bastrop and Morgan City.

24   Morgan City is set to make their final payment by the

25   end of July this year.
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 1                   The allowance for the EDAP loans is set

 2   at 15 percent, and it totals $139,186.

 3                   Next on there is the SSBCI Guaranty Loan

 4   Portfolio.  It totals $4,838,273.  There are currently

 5   16 loans under this portfolio.  Two of the loans, C.

 6   Boutte Enterprises and Acadian Cypress are listed as

 7   high-risk loans, and they're being carried at 100

 8   percent.

 9                   The allowance for the SSBCI Guaranty

10   Loan Losses is calculated at 18 percent for the current

11   accounts and 100 percent on high-risk loans.  So as of

12   April 30th, 2019, the allowance totals $1,713,108.

13                   And that concludes the report for the

14   EDAP and SSBCI portfolios.

15                   Are there any questions?

16               MR. ROY:

17                   Questions, comments?

18               (No response.)

19               MR. ROY:

20                   Motion to accept the Accountant's

21   Report?

22               MR. SIMPSON:

23                   Motion.

24               MR. ROY:

25                   Second?
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 1               MR. JACKSON:

 2                   Second.

 3               MR. ROY:

 4                   Any discussions?

 5               (No response.)

 6               MR. ROY:

 7                   Hearing none, all in favor, "aye."

 8               (Several members respond "aye.")

 9               MR. ROY:

10                   All opposed, "nay."

11               (No response.)

12               MR. ROY:

13                   Without objection.  Thank you.

14               MS. DALGO:

15                   Welcome.

16               MR. ROY:

17                   Any comments from the public?

18               (No response.)

19               MR. BAHAM:

20                   Mr. A.J., I just passed out an

21   additional sheet to the Accountant's Report.  At the

22   previous meeting back in February, it was requested we

23   give an explanation of our current net asset position

24   for LEDC over the previous four years, and that's -- our

25   accountants, Crystal and Molly, put this together to
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 1   show our balances since Fiscal Year '14 all of the way

 2   through Fiscal '18, and I just wanted to give the

 3   information to the Board really quickly while I've still

 4   got Crystal up here to help me explain some of this

 5   stuff.

 6               MR. ROY:

 7                   This was -- just to refresh everyone,

 8   this is something that we requested staff to produce in

 9   the past, and so we appreciate you doing so.

10                   Who's going to explain it?

11               MR. BAHAM:

12                   You want me to go ahead?

13               MR. ROY:

14                   Or hit the high points?

15               MR. BAHAM:

16                   I'll just give you some highlights if

17   you'd like.

18                   You'll notice, just looking at it in

19   general, from Fiscal Year '14 all of way through Fiscal

20   Year '18, just looking at the total assets, you'll

21   notice that right off the bat they've gone down from

22   74-million down to approximately just under 50-million.

23                   To highlight some of the reasons as to

24   why and give you an explanation as to why that is

25   occurring, if you look under "Current Assets," the third
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 1   line down, "Due From Other Funds," you'll notice back in

 2   Fiscal Year '14, it was at 21-and-a-half-million, and at

 3   the end of Fiscal Year '18, it was at 4.7-million.  This

 4   is due to our reduction in Capital Outlay Funds that are

 5   associated with the EDAP program.  So that is something

 6   that, as Ms. Villa pointed out earlier, we get

 7   appropriated every year from the legislature of these

 8   funds, and over the years, these funds have dwindled

 9   down a little bit due to budget constraints from the

10   legislature and so forth.  So we're working off of a

11   little bit less money than what we've had in the past.

12                   Following further down, if you look

13   under "Noncurrent Assets," you'll notice under the first

14   line there, "Investments," in Fiscal Year '18 (sic), we

15   ended with 28-billion approximately in investment

16   dollars, and in Fiscal Year '18, we ended with just

17   21-billion.  That difference, what we attributed it to,

18   is back in Fiscal Year '14, we were -- our investments

19   have returned.  The returned investments have not been

20   as profitable as we had thought they would have been or

21   what we put into them, so that gives an explanation as

22   to why the investments have gone down some.

23                   Also, some of those investments have

24   been moved to the cash category as they come back, and

25   if you notice, back in the "Current Assets," the cash
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 1   pretty much stays approximately the same.  So we've

 2   exited some investments.  Some of them have not come

 3   back as we had hoped in years past, but we do have some

 4   on the horizon hopefully that we will be able to, you

 5   know, recoup some of that money as well.

 6               MR. ROY:

 7                   Do you have a breakdown of the

 8   categories, not necessarily the individual investments,

 9   but the categories that, you know, comprise the

10   definition of investments?

11               MR. BAHAM:

12                   Crystal may be able to help me with that

13   a little bit more.

14                   To my knowledge, the investments are

15   those long-term Venture Capital investments that were

16   made years and years ago that we still on have on the

17   books.  The majority of them were done in the early

18   2000s, which a lot of those funds are in their wind-down

19   stage.

20                   At this point in time, we do expect over

21   the next few years to have a lot of those close out.

22   We've actually been working -- Chaffe is getting ready

23   to do their valuations on those at the end of this

24   Fiscal Year again, and when we do the Chaffe reports in

25   the Finance Committee in January, it will possibly be a
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 1   lot clearer at that point.

 2               MR. ROY:

 3                   It's solely Venture Capital?

 4               MR. BAHAM:

 5                   It's mostly Venture Capital, and a lot

 6   of it is SSBCI funds that we have injected now and --

 7   now, those are brand new funds since 2011, so those are

 8   going to be on the books for a little while until some

 9   of those funds start to close out, but that's nearly,

10   I'd say, 100 percent.  There is one existing, BIDCO,

11   still that we carry on the books from the early/mid-90s

12   that still has an active license and still making loans,

13   so that is the only other thing other than the Venture

14   Capital investments that are showing up in that

15   "Investment" category.  So instead of breaking it down

16   by fund or individual investments, that's why it's just

17   lumped into one big category as "Investments," and

18   they're obviously long-term assets.

19               MS. DALGO:

20                   The Certificates of Deposits, 7.4, in

21   CDs is in that.

22               MR. BAHAM:

23                   That's also in there.

24                   So whenever we do a guaranteed loan, we

25   take a portion of that guaranty and we put it either
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 1   into a CD set aside or into a money market account, so

 2   that is also included in there as well.

 3                   Thank you, Crystal.

 4               MR. ROY:

 5                   And so with respect to the Venture

 6   Capital, perhaps, BIDCO investment, that number would

 7   reflect Chaffe's description of what the value is as of

 8   those specific dates?

 9               MR. BAHAM:

10                   Well, it should reflect it directly.  If

11   we go back to Fiscal Year '18, it should show that

12   value, because when Chaffe does their valuation, the

13   legislative auditor that's doing our audit of our

14   financials at the same time uses their valuation numbers

15   to reflect those investments dollars.  So, yes, to

16   answer your question, in short, because they work very

17   closely together because the auditor doesn't finish

18   their report until the Chaffe valuation is done.

19               MR. ROY:

20                   Any other questions?

21                   Yes, sir.

22               MR. JACKSON:

23                   Yes, just to clarify, obviously the

24   Venture funds are returning or they're suffering market

25   adjustments and things like that.
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 1               MR. BAHAM:

 2                   Right.

 3               MR. JACKSON:

 4                   But in general, shifts in our Fund

 5   Balance could also just be the fact that while we get

 6   those moneys appropriated from the legislature, we do

 7   the EDAPs and the EDREDs and stuff, those are actually

 8   expended back out.

 9               MR. BAHAM:

10                   Correct.

11               MR. JACKSON:

12                   So our Fund Balance could be declining

13   slightly because we're not receiving as much of an

14   appropriation to then be put out.

15               MR. BAHAM:

16                   That's correct.

17                   And if you scroll down to the bottom

18   there underneath the "Net Asset Position," you'll see

19   the different categories are "Restricted" and

20   "Unrestricted," and that is reflecting in those two

21   categories how it's balancing out.  The "Restricted"

22   account is made up of all of these EDAP balances from

23   previous years.  So like in Fiscal Year '14, we had a

24   little over 6-million in the restricted account.  Those

25   are committed funds to those projects that have been
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 1   approved this fiscal year that have just have not been

 2   expended yet.  The project maybe is a multiyear-phased

 3   project or it was approved close to the end of that

 4   current fiscal year, so the funds may have been

 5   committed in a previous fiscal year, but won't be

 6   expended until the following year.  So that does kind of

 7   play into it also because we're still carrying those

 8   funds on our books, even though they're committed, the

 9   legislature sees that you have "X" number of dollars out

10   there, so we're only going to commit this much because

11   of however.  I don't know if they have -- a lot of times

12   it's just gut feeling or restricted by the state budget.

13               MS. VILLA:

14                   Right.  Just to kind of add to what

15   Steve just said, for the past probably three to four

16   years, we've been working very closely with them on what

17   our true needs were to meet our obligations.  So in

18   prior years before, you know, we were faced with the

19   fiscal position that we were faced with, we were

20   automatically getting, you know, the $10-million of EDAP

21   just routinely given to the department to use, but

22   because of the situation we were in with HBII with

23   meeting the limits of it, so we would always work with

24   them very closely saying "What truly is your cash --

25   What truly are your cash needs?"  And so that's what we
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 1   were faced with, you know, during the past years.

 2               MR. JACKSON:

 3                   Right.  I guess what I'm getting at is

 4   while fund balance is important for a business,

 5   obviously you'd like to see that increasing because

 6   you're making money, we're really more investing it into

 7   the state, it doesn't stay on our books.

 8               MS. VILLA:

 9                   That's correct.

10               MR. JACKSON:

11                   So the level of our Fund Balance in any

12   particular year relative to other years is not

13   necessarily a cause for alarm.

14               MS. VILLA:

15                   Right.

16               MR. JACKSON:

17                   It's just a change in the way the funds

18   are coming together.

19               MR. BAHAM:

20                   That's correct.

21               MR. JACKSON:

22                   Thank you.

23               MR. ROY:

24                   Any other questions or comments at this

25   point?
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 1                   I have one more.  Under "Investments,"

 2   you said that that number reflects the CDs

 3   accumulatively.  Do we have an indication or

 4   breakdown -- and, of course, those are pledged for

 5   guarantees; right?

 6               MS. DALGO:

 7                   Correct.

 8               MR. ROY:

 9                   So do we have a breakdown of the

10   Guaranty Program for that year period of time and what

11   is happening in that respect?

12               MS. DALGO:

13                   Yes, we do.

14               MS. VILLA:

15                   We can have that at the next meeting.

16               MR. ROY:

17                   I'd be interested to look at that and

18   see where we were and where we are now.

19               MS. DALGO:

20                   And the number for the value of the CDs

21   have stayed the same consistently over the years on here

22   after we had moved some to the money market account, so

23   it's not a fluctuating number, but the guarantees, we do

24   have that.  I can get back to you.

25               MR. ROY:
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 1                   Okay.  Yes.  So maybe I think we changed

 2   the formula at some point, I can't remember when, for

 3   the pledging.

 4               MR. BAHAM:

 5                   I think it was when we received the

 6   SSBCI funds, part of the requirement on that Federal

 7   program was to try to obtain a 10-to-1 match, I believe,

 8   or leverage, and so to accomplish that, anytime we

 9   guaranty a loan, we would take 25 percent of that

10   guaranteed amount, instead of the full 100 percent that

11   we had done in the past, we put that in a CD so that

12   we're basically getting the 4-to-1 leverage on our

13   guaranteed loans.  And then the anticipation was with

14   the 4-to-1 on the guaranty and then the equity

15   investment, which also counts towards the leveraged

16   dollars, and then a portion of those SSBCI were put into

17   the VC investment, which also has a 20 percent

18   requirement of additional equity or more.  So we were

19   pushing -- I think our final leverage numbers at the end

20   of the '17 year in March when SSBCI closed was pushing

21   8-to-1.  So with the bulk of it being still tied up in

22   investments, they had not yet matured.  We feel after

23   those investments return, we'll hit that 10-to-1, and we

24   still have unspent SSBCI dollars that we still have yet

25   to leverage.
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 1                   So, but, to answer your question, we did

 2   reduce it down to 25 percent.

 3               MR. ROY:

 4                   Right.  And given that I was focusing on

 5   the Guaranty Program, if we could -- I think it would be

 6   nice to see what's happened on the dollar of the loans

 7   that we've guaranteed throughout time, so if you could

 8   give that to us, I think that would be beneficial.  The

 9   CDs are indicative of some of that, and I appreciate it,

10   but we changed the formula, et cetera, so that's

11   probably not a number we want to focus on.  So if we

12   have a description of the guarantees themselves total.

13               MS. VILLA:

14                   Yes.  We have -- the team does a great

15   job of giving internally LED a report on all of our

16   EDAPs every six months, and we just completed that about

17   six weeks ago, Susan?  So we have a pretty detailed

18   report that we can kind of share, you know, with the

19   Board.

20               MR. ROY:

21                   So, I mean, the EDAP would be nice to

22   see as well, but --

23               MS. VILLA:

24                   That's what I'm referring to is the

25   EDAP.  And we also, as a matter of fact, I have a
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 1   meeting tomorrow on the investments that we're going to

 2   be doing as well, so we can most definitely share that

 3   with the Board.

 4               MR. ROY:

 5                   Okay.  So guarantees and EDAPs will be

 6   good.

 7                   Anything else to add?

 8               MR. BAHAM:

 9                   That's all I have unless you have

10   anymore questions.

11               MR. ROY:

12                   Any other questions from the Board?

13   Comments?

14               (No response.)

15               MR. ROY:

16                   All right.  Thank you.

17               MS. DALGO:

18                   Thank you.

19               MR. ROY:

20                   All right.  It's nice to have the

21   Secretary with us today.  I know he's a very busy man,

22   and I look forward to hearing his report.

23               MS. VILLA:

24                   Steve, did you have anything else that

25   you wanted to update the Board on?  I noticed you
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 1   included the marketing update.

 2               MR. BAHAM:

 3                   We can just present -- we were at the

 4   President's Report, but I can go ahead --

 5               MS. VILLA:

 6                   No, no, that's fine.

 7               MR. ROY:

 8                   My mistake.  I'm jumping ahead because

 9   the Secretary is sitting on the side of me, but, anyway,

10   let's let you finish on the marketing side.

11               MR. BAHAM:

12                   Every six months or so we just do a

13   semi-annual update on our marketing efforts for Small

14   Business Loan Guaranty, and in your packet, I've

15   provided a short, two-page comparison.  What we decided

16   to do was take -- this is our year '18 effort that we

17   had done from June 1st of -- July 1st of 2017 through

18   June 30th of 2018 and compare it from the Fiscal Year of

19   '19.  And so for July 1st of 2018 through -- not quite a

20   full 12 months, but 11 months, through the end of May of

21   2019.

22                   And if you look at the chart, back in

23   2018, we touched approximately -- when I say "we

24   touched," we physically met with either one-on-one or in

25   a bank conference room with several different bankers,
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 1   answering questions, going through projects or with a

 2   chamber in their meeting rooms -- 288 individuals or

 3   lenders or CPA professionals and the like, business

 4   owners as well are included in that.  And in 2019, for

 5   comparison purposes, we actually have gone up, minus one

 6   month, to 357 individuals.  The differences that you can

 7   see there is back through Fiscal Year 2018 and prior

 8   years to that, our marketing efforts were concentrated

 9   on strictly traditional bank lenders, third-party

10   lenders and credit unions, and that's always been our

11   main focus because that's who utilizes the program.  And

12   that's all fine and good, but because of our activity

13   had not been to where we need it to be or want it to be,

14   we decided in 2019 Fiscal Year that we're going to shift

15   the focus to not just hit our bankers, but also put more

16   of an emphasis and an effort on hitting our economic

17   development allies, our local business chambers and also

18   our business owners.

19                   There's another area that we made a huge

20   effort, and staff has gone out into local communities

21   and been a part of local B&I groups and local chamber

22   meetings and just getting an on-the-ground level with

23   local mom and pop businesses, you know, that do

24   everyday, the bakers, the hair salons, the -- even auto

25   dealerships, I believe.  So they're meeting with anybody
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 1   and everybody, either if they own a business or even

 2   contemplating owning a business.

 3                   We also worked very closely with our

 4   SBDCs across the state because they work with the

 5   business owners or entrepreneurs or soon-to

 6   entrepreneurs on a regular basis, and that explains a

 7   lot of the differences in our numbers here and how we've

 8   been able to hit so many people in a shorter amount of

 9   time here in Fiscal Year '19.

10                   To give you an example of how we're

11   still touching our banks is if you look at 2018, we

12   brought to the attention of some of these new lenders,

13   and these aren't just individual lenders, these are new

14   banks that we counted approximately 37 in Fiscal Year

15   '18 were unique, individual banks that we had not

16   touched either in the previous year or the year before,

17   so two to three years we had not gone to that bank.  And

18   in Fiscal Year '19, in our efforts, while we were

19   focusing on outside of the lending community, we still

20   had to communicate with our banks.  So what we did was

21   we said, "Well, we are going to focus more on these

22   banks like we did in '18 to touch more of those banks

23   that hadn't heard about the program and hadn't seen it

24   in a couple years."  And we hit 25 new ones in that same

25   time period.  So while we're hitting less banks as far
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 1   as the one-on-one handshake and educating them on the

 2   program and trying to develop new relationships, we're

 3   still hitting new banks that we're developing these

 4   relationships with.

 5                   We're starting to see the fruits of

 6   that.  Just this week -- I know our Secretary

 7   Treasurer's Report indicated that we didn't have any

 8   projects under review right now, but that was as of May

 9   31st.  Just this first two weeks of -- not even two full

10   weeks of June, we've got two applications in, I think

11   one last week and one early this week, for loans.  And

12   then we are expected to get another loan application in

13   by the end of today, and that loan, we're really excited

14   about because I think it's going to be a really nice

15   one.

16                   We also have a fourth loan that I've

17   been working with a bank here in Baton Rouge to try to

18   secure.  It's actually a bank that's used the program

19   several times before, but hadn't in a couple years, so

20   we're trying to rekindle that relationship.  So we're

21   making headway, and we're trying different things to get

22   some activity going.  The new route seems to be getting

23   a little more attraction, and we're at least driving

24   interest because we've noticed that anytime we talk to a

25   business owner or a potential business owner, they learn
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 1   about the program, they're going knocking on their

 2   banker's doors with some papers and business cards and

 3   saying, "Here, call these guys."  And a lot of banks do.

 4   We're getting calls from banks that we typically would

 5   not work with or haven't really given us that much look

 6   in the past, the banks that are on that mid-tier level

 7   that meet more of a regional focus.  The community banks

 8   have always been the biggest users of our program, but

 9   we're starting to see some activity from these more

10   regionalized banks about the size of like a Hancock

11   Whitney.  They're starting to ask more questions and

12   spitball more potential projects with us.

13                   So another big thing that we have

14   focused on is working internally with our BERG group in

15   particular.  The project earlier today was actually

16   brought by one of our BERG members, Charlie, and he and

17   the rest of BERG team has been very, very influential in

18   bringing especially two of the new four projects that we

19   have potential applications on right now, so that has

20   been another big success for us.

21                   So with the staff, with myself and two

22   and a half other people, we're trying to cover the state

23   as much as possible, and we're touching a lot more

24   people by going to these, especially these B&I groups

25   and local chamber meetings, we're able to hit a lot more
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 1   people at one time, and we've had a lot of success with

 2   that.  And, of course, every other year we attend the

 3   LBA Banker's Association annual meeting, and that's

 4   always a big, big plus for us because for the next few

 5   weeks after that, we're constantly getting phone calls

 6   from new banks.  And what we've noticed, I know over the

 7   past 10 to 15 years, we've had a lot of changeover.

 8   You, yourself, may have this, Mr. Roy.  A lot of banks

 9   that have been in the industry for many, many years are

10   starting to retire and they're, you know, moving on, and

11   a new set of bankers are starting to take their place

12   and a lot of these new bankers are very, very green.

13   And banking has changed, especially over the last 10 to

14   15 years.  It's not as much of a -- it used to be a

15   traditional loan officer not only went out and found

16   that deal and worked with that client and built that

17   relationship, but they underwrote practically the whole

18   loan, pitched it to the committee and did the servicing

19   for the most part.  Today it's clanged differently where

20   it's in the house of underwriters at the main office and

21   a front guy that's the loan officers really just going

22   out there doing the marketing.  So we're having to

23   adjust our style a little bit.  We're trying to use the

24   loan officers to get us in the door and get us a

25   sit-down with the underwriters so we can actually
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 1   explain the program in detail to them, but have the loan

 2   officer go and sell it.

 3                   It's a big relationship game, and staff

 4   has been doing a really good job of staying on top of

 5   that, so I've got to tip my hat to them.  In just 11

 6   months, I knew that we were hitting more people, but

 7   until you actually crunch the numbers, you really

 8   don't -- you really don't see it.  We're hitting quite

 9   almost a full 100 more people than what we did, and

10   that's in 11 month's time.

11               MR. ROY:

12                   Any questions or comments?

13               MR. JACKSON:

14                   BERG group?

15               MR. BAHAM:

16                   It's LED's Business Expansion and

17   Retention Group.  So we have essentially two different

18   groups or three different groups.  We have international

19   and we have our traditional marking group that goes out

20   and finds companies to come in or that are relocating

21   here.  BERG group focuses on homegrown businesses.  They

22   go out to the communities, they tap on the doors and

23   they find needs and they're meeting with companies every

24   single day, multiple companies.  And Secretary is very,

25   very familiar with what they do, probably more so than
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 1   what I am.  But we decided if we're going to focus on

 2   meeting with the companies, we need to get internally

 3   because they've already met with them.  So it's just a

 4   matter of maintaining those, getting a foot in the door,

 5   and once we get the foot in the door, a lot of times

 6   we're able -- and educating our own team sometimes,

 7   because a lot of times these guys are chasing, you know,

 8   the bigger deal, they're not sure what to do with the

 9   smaller company.  We told them, "Look, pass them to us.

10   We'll work with them.  And if they're looking for

11   financing, we'll definitely help them out."

12                   And we also have a small business group

13   that we work side-by-side with, which is another group

14   that I forgot to mention.  They do a lot of the CEO

15   roundtables across the state, and we attend -- I'm

16   actually going to one across the street tomorrow to talk

17   about a program.

18                   So we have really revamped how we're

19   doing things as far as from a marketing perspective.  I

20   mean, we realize that with such a small team, you kind

21   of have to diversify a little bit, utilize the resources

22   that we have available to us and let some other people

23   kind of do the talking for us because we can't be --

24   with two and a half people, we can't be in all places

25   within all times.
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 1                   So, but, to answer your question, the

 2   BERG group is Business Expansion and Retention Group.

 3               MR. JACKSON:

 4                   Okay.

 5                   And, Mr. Chairman, Mr. Baham actually

 6   came and spoke to the CPAs at their monthly luncheon in

 7   Ouachita Parish a few months ago.  It was really very

 8   helpful.  So I guess we probably had 15 or 20 at that

 9   meeting, so it was a good opportunity to expose that

10   group of professionals as they work with their clients.

11   We're most appreciative.

12               MR. ROY:

13                   Very good.

14                   One thought, you had me thinking as you

15   were describing your outreach to the LBA, and the staff

16   has done a great job of reaching out to the LBA at the

17   annual convention, I believe has been the primary for

18   us.  The LBA also does a great job on an annual basis of

19   training bankers, and they're really big -- Sue can echo

20   that, I'm sure.  And I would encourage you -- I know you

21   know Ginger.  Brenda does -- to reach out to Ginger

22   Laurent and try to get on the agenda.  They have these

23   regular training events for lenders, senior lenders, and

24   the like, and where the core lenders from these probably

25   primarily community banks, but you can certainly get

0042

 1   some of the bigger guys there as well, are all in

 2   attendance and it's right here in Baton Rouge, easy to

 3   access.  You know, Ginger, I think, would work with us

 4   on being placed on the agenda, and I think that could

 5   really help, because the LBA convention, you have the

 6   directors, the CEOs, sort of a different audience.  But

 7   getting right before the lenders themselves in some of

 8   these banks could really make some dividends, so I

 9   really encourage you to do that.

10               MR. BAHAM:

11                   Definitely.

12               MR. ROY:

13                   Sue, do you have anything to add?

14               MS. DURAND:

15                   I want to say that our chief lender

16   attends quarterly meetings in Baton Rouge.  His name is

17   Glenn Decou.

18               MR. ROY:

19                   They do a great job, as Sue's

20   illustrating, and would be a good place to start, or

21   another place, I should say.

22                   Anyone else?

23               (No response.)

24               MR. ROY:

25                   All right.  Mr. Secretary.
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 1               SECRETARY PIERSON:

 2                   Thank you, and as always, thank you for

 3   the important job and the important role that you play

 4   in managing the funds that we make available to

 5   companies that are giving us a commitment to continue

 6   their growth, their job growth, and their investment in

 7   our state, and a great team that deploys that.

 8                   I'll just give you few highlights of

 9   some recent activities at the department.  I'll be happy

10   to answer any questions that you might have, but we're

11   experiencing a lot of very powerful growth in the state

12   at this time.  Just in really the last 30 to 45 days,

13   we've been with the Governor over in Lake Charles for

14   the decommissioning of the Lotte facility.  That is an

15   investment coming to us from Korea of $3.1-billion.

16   That's online now.  We're very pleased with that.

17                   And in that joint venture, also Westlake

18   Chemical, a tremendous amount of activity related to

19   that.  The advanced chemical manufacturing sector has

20   just been very, very strong for our state.

21                   While we have enjoyed a lot of success

22   basically in the Lake Charles area with the Westlake

23   Chemical manufacturing, with LNG facilities that are

24   being put online, we've not forgotten to work hard in

25   other parts of state, so we're really happy to report
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 1   that we were also able to cut the ribbon at the LaSalle

 2   Lumber facility, a computerized saw mill that's in one

 3   of our rural locations and a $115-million investment.

 4   That's a joint venture with a company from Canada, and

 5   115 new direct jobs at that lumber mill facility, but

 6   more importantly, in my mind, is that multiplier effect

 7   that it has doing a great deal for all of those that are

 8   engaged in the timber harvesting, all of the trucking

 9   and mechanics and the work that has to go on in the

10   forest to make all of that come together and work so

11   well.

12                   And so revitalizing and being active in

13   our rural parishes is really something special.  It

14   follows on that we were able to do something very

15   similar, not with the forestry, but with advanced

16   chemical manufacturing with Delek with their

17   $150-million investment in St. Landry Parish, which was

18   also recently announced.  This contact was made by the

19   Governor in his trade mission and business recruit

20   mission to Israel last October, bringing some great web

21   service development activities to our community colleges

22   through this recent announcement with Amazon in forming

23   a relationship with our community technical colleges.

24                   We just talked about a computerized saw

25   mill.  You know, everything is so digital, and this
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 1   transition is being able to bring this kind of

 2   instruction to our universities and community colleges

 3   remains an important focus.

 4                   We participated with the Governor in a

 5   cyber securities symposium and summit in Shreveport.  It

 6   was sponsored in part by the National Governor's

 7   Association, so a tremendous amount of activity coming

 8   in from all over the nation to discuss those important

 9   elements of cyber security and relates to all of the

10   banking and financial professional that are here and,

11   again, just relates back to the broad digital spectrum

12   that's out there that we're seeking to make sure that

13   the state is presented with the opportunities to kind of

14   maintain and grow in that area.

15                   A number of other announcements we've

16   had, just an entire robust, purine of engagement.  We

17   have a strong pipeline, I'm pleased to report to you

18   right now, that some will have the types of programs

19   that you administer being brought forward in the

20   not-too-distant future, sixty-seven projects that are

21   currently being managed by the Business Development

22   Group that Steve referred to, and he did a great job in

23   talking about the important work that our Business and

24   extension Retention Group does.  As part of our strategy

25   in that it's great to talk about new companies that we
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 1   want to recruit to Louisiana, but we know by this very

 2   focused interaction with what we call economic driver

 3   companies.  We select the larger companies, not in the

 4   retail or healthcare services sectors, but those that

 5   are more related to manufacturers, in that, those jobs

 6   have tremendous multiplier effects, and have those

 7   conversations occasionally.  We get to learn that this

 8   plant is in competition with other plants in the US, and

 9   we're able to, through that identification, be very

10   competitive about what we can bring to the table should

11   they choose Louisiana.  And so the BERG group does that.

12                   A sidebar to that is working with the

13   regional organizations to make anywhere from between 600

14   and 800 total calls in a year's time, but by using LED

15   staff and staff that exists out of the regional economic

16   development organizations, all of the data is captured

17   in a customer management software program, and we're

18   able to see trends and things of that nature.  But we're

19   also able to make sure that we have a current database

20   for a lot of these senior executives that are running

21   these companies, and in the event of disaster, whether

22   it's a tornado, flooding, all kinds of operations that

23   can disrupt business were able to play a role in support

24   of business emergency operation centers, and this

25   current base of information and how to reach critical
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 1   executives that are part of these organizations and find

 2   out, you know, how they're being disrupted, they have

 3   power lines down, they have trees down or roads or rail

 4   or water or other types of issues impacting their

 5   facility, we can coordinate to help get people back to

 6   work faster.  And so our Expansion and Retention Group

 7   helps us grow jobs, but at the same time plays a very

 8   important rule in the resilience and recovery efforts

 9   when disaster strikes, and that's sometimes not noted,

10   but I think it's an interesting and important element of

11   their activities.

12                   Legislative session just wrapped up on

13   the 6th of June.  We've not had a lot of focus on

14   economic development programs, per se.  It was a

15   lower-key type of session for us.  Really all of our

16   incentive programs have been reviewed over the last few

17   years.  A number of them have had certainly tweaks,

18   sometimes reductions, but basically they all have sunset

19   features now, which means that they will all be

20   revisited to make sure that they're effective and

21   efficient in doing the kinds of things that the state

22   seeks in order to build a vibrant economy.  So

23   everything from our Quality Jobs Program to our

24   entertainment programs have all been really put under a

25   lot of scrutiny over the last three and a half or so

0048

 1   years, all are positioned to be effective for the state,

 2   all will remain under evaluation going forward, but we

 3   didn't have a lot of those kind of issues as this

 4   particular session wrapped up.

 5                   Probably the only significant thing I

 6   can report to you is I think that we have maybe $960,000

 7   in our budget request that was not provided to LED, so

 8   we'll be doing some belt tightening in certain parts of

 9   the department.

10                   Some important new initiatives, I'm

11   pleased to say, we were granted some funding which has

12   to do with some coastal activities that we want to say

13   small businesses have a better foothold and a better

14   opportunity to participate in, and certainly we're also

15   able to and lobbied for our regional economic

16   development partners to get an increase in some of their

17   funding.  It's very difficult.  You heard Steve say it a

18   couple times, they're a very small staff, basically 100

19   people in this building, trying to cover 64 parishes,

20   paying attention to North Louisiana, paying attention to

21   Central Louisiana, where a lot of assistance is needed

22   in the economy today, but also reaching out in Southeast

23   and Southwest Louisiana.  The only way that we can

24   leverage our abilities and what this Board brings to

25   bear is to utilize these strong regional partners, which
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 1   we have eight of them across the state.  So I am pleased

 2   to report that we were able to get them a little more

 3   money to execute the programs that we asked them to

 4   participate in with us.  We don't simply write a check

 5   and pass it across the desk.  And actually we formed a

 6   contractural agreement with certain performance measures

 7   included in that, and sometimes it is those business

 8   retention calls that we ask them to make and then submit

 9   it to the computer software tracking system, but certain

10   tasks and requirements that they meet, and then

11   certainly they get the support from the state and some

12   significant funding that we do provide to them.

13                   Our FastStart Program remains

14   exceptional.  It's a real asset to the state.  When we

15   talk to companies about either expanding here or

16   locating here, the ability to also indicate to them that

17   we will provide a turnkey workforce solution certainly

18   moves us to the front of the line in getting some of

19   these project wins.  And I'm very proud of their efforts

20   to have been designated as the Number 1 Workforce

21   Training Program in the Nation for nine years running,

22   and you don't maintain that position by sort of a

23   static, keep doing the same thing, maybe like bowling

24   pins are always in the same place and you can directly

25   bowl a 300 game.  For us in the workforce training

0050

 1   business, the goals are always moving, the types of

 2   technology are available that we can bring to bear are

 3   moving, and we're staying on the very front end of that.

 4   We are currently, for Exxon Mobil, executing visual

 5   reality training modules, actually you put on the

 6   goggles and you are positioned in the room and fire is

 7   breaking out and you've got to identify the alarm and

 8   the fire extinguisher and things of that nature.  It's

 9   revolutionary in some respects, but Louisiana and the

10   FastStart division are on the cutting edge of bringing

11   the latest technology to workforce training, and we're

12   pleased to see them continuing to make good progress

13   against that.

14                    We did host our SBA awards ceremony at

15   the Mansion, and also our Lantern awards, which are,

16   from each of the eight regions, we identify an

17   outstanding manufacturer that we can recognize for their

18   efforts.  So continue to have a very strong focus on

19   building small business outwork in our state and trying

20   to do that balance of attracting new business and having

21   a very robust portfolio of international state working

22   closely with the major economic drivers across our

23   state, and then all of those are supported by a very

24   important outwork of small businesses.  That big plant

25   won't run and operate if there's not maintenance and
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 1   services and supplies and kinds of things that need to

 2   run the plant available in the small business support

 3   system around that.

 4                   So we've got a lot of ground to cover,

 5   but we're pleased to be able to execute on your behalf,

 6   and happy take any questions you might have.

 7               MR. ROY:

 8                   Anyone questions or comments?

 9               (No response.)

10               MR. ROY:

11                   Thank you.  Appreciate the words.

12                   Any other business?

13               (No response.)

14               MR. ROY:

15                   All right.  Hearing none, I'll entertain

16   a motion to adjourn.

17               MR. ANDRE:

18                   So moved.

19               MR. ROY:

20                   Motion.  Second.

21                   All in favor "aye."

22               (Several members respond "aye.")

23               MR. ROY:

24                   All opposed, "nay."

25               (No response.)
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 1               MR. ROY:

 2                   Without objection.  Have a good day.

 3   Thank you.

 4               (Meeting concludes at 10:27 a.m.)
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 2               I, ELICIA H. WOODWORTH, Certified Court

 3   Reporter in and for the State of Louisiana, as the

 4   officer before whom this meeting for the Board of

 5   Directors of the Louisiana Economic Development

 6   Corporation, do hereby certify that this meeting was

 7   reported by me in the stenotype reporting method, was

 8   prepared and transcribed by me or under my personal

 9   direction and supervision, and is a true and correct
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		234						LN		9		15		false		15   with a bauxite facility in Jamaica, which were both in				false

		235						LN		9		16		false		16   bankruptcy at the time.  The Jamaica facility mines and				false

		236						LN		9		17		false		17   ships bauxite, which is the principle ore of aluminum,				false

		237						LN		9		18		false		18   to the Gramercy facility and other New Day facilities.				false

		238						LN		9		19		false		19                   The St. James facility was built by				false

		239						LN		9		20		false		20   Kaiser Aluminum and Chemicals Corporation in 1958 and				false

		240						LN		9		21		false		21   has been operational ever since.  Operations under				false

		241						LN		9		22		false		22   Noranda began in October of 2016, and the company				false

		242						LN		9		23		false		23   announced a $35-million upgrade and expansion in May of				false

		243						LN		9		24		false		24   2017.  The expansion and upgrades include designing and				false

		244						LN		9		25		false		25   installing equipment to increase productivity, storage				false

		245						PG		10		0		false		page 10				false

		246						LN		10		1		false		 1   and shipping as well as moving the corporate				false

		247						LN		10		2		false		 2   headquarters to the facility.				false

		248						LN		10		3		false		 3                   Currently the company is rehabilitating				false

		249						LN		10		4		false		 4   the administrative building for the headquarters and				false

		250						LN		10		5		false		 5   improving residual ponds on the property.  The EDAP will				false

		251						LN		10		6		false		 6   assist with the costs associated with the residual				false

		252						LN		10		7		false		 7   ponds.  The company has to expedite clay from one area				false

		253						LN		10		8		false		 8   of the property, transport it to the pond area and then				false

		254						LN		10		9		false		 9   build up the levee wall six to 10 feet to the permitted				false

		255						LN		10		10		false		10   height of 50 feet.				false

		256						LN		10		11		false		11                   The company has recently purchased				false

		257						LN		10		12		false		12   refurbished gas turbine generator that will be used as				false

		258						LN		10		13		false		13   collateral for the unsponsored EDAP, and Gramercy				false

		259						LN		10		14		false		14   Holdings will guaranty all commitments.				false

		260						LN		10		15		false		15                   Since the project was announced in 2017,				false

		261						LN		10		16		false		16   the company has commenced hiring employees and investing				false

		262						LN		10		17		false		17   CapEx.  The 42.9 projected cost listed in the EDAP				false

		263						LN		10		18		false		18   application exceeds the $35-million CapEx announced in				false

		264						LN		10		19		false		19   2017.  As of the end of March, the company imported				false

		265						LN		10		20		false		20   approximately 430 employees; therefore, it is expected				false

		266						LN		10		21		false		21   that the company will meet or exceed their first year				false

		267						LN		10		22		false		22   requirements of 432 employees with an approximate annual				false

		268						LN		10		23		false		23   payroll of 27.3-million.				false

		269						LN		10		24		false		24                   Staff recommends approval of the				false

		270						LN		10		25		false		25   unsponsored EDAP for $1-million with the normal				false

		271						PG		11		0		false		page 11				false

		272						LN		11		1		false		 1   contingencies listed in the term sheet.  The company has				false

		273						LN		11		2		false		 2   agreed to retain approximately 395 jobs with an				false

		274						LN		11		3		false		 3   associated annual payroll increased annually by two				false

		275						LN		11		4		false		 4   percent while creating 65 new jobs with an estimated				false

		276						LN		11		5		false		 5   annual payroll of 7.1-million by 2025.  Of the 65 new				false

		277						LN		11		6		false		 6   jobs, 15 are expected to be headquarter jobs.				false

		278						LN		11		7		false		 7                   If the required jobs are created and				false

		279						LN		11		8		false		 8   retained at the stipulated annual payroll, then the EDAP				false

		280						LN		11		9		false		 9   will be considered satisfied.  However, if the company				false

		281						LN		11		10		false		10   does not create the projected jobs and payroll on an				false

		282						LN		11		11		false		11   annual basis, the unearned credit balance for that year				false

		283						LN		11		12		false		12   will be due and payable to LEDC plus interest.  All				false

		284						LN		11		13		false		13   credits will be based on payroll.				false

		285						LN		11		14		false		14                   At this time, I'm going to ask the				false

		286						LN		11		15		false		15   company representatives to tell you a little bit about				false

		287						LN		11		16		false		16   the project.				false

		288						LN		11		17		false		17               MR. LAURA:				false

		289						LN		11		18		false		18                   Thank you.  I'd like to introduce Scott				false

		290						LN		11		19		false		19   Croft, the company Chief Operating Officer.				false

		291						LN		11		20		false		20               MR. CROFT:				false

		292						LN		11		21		false		21                   Good morning.  Can everybody hear me				false

		293						LN		11		22		false		22   okay?				false

		294						LN		11		23		false		23               MR. ROY:				false

		295						LN		11		24		false		24                   Good morning.				false

		296						LN		11		25		false		25               MR. CROFT:				false

		297						PG		12		0		false		page 12				false

		298						LN		12		1		false		 1                   As Anthony mentioned, I'm Scott Croft,				false

		299						LN		12		2		false		 2   Chief Operating Officer of Noranda Bauxite Alumina, and				false

		300						LN		12		3		false		 3   I'm one of those jobs Susan referred to.  I just joined				false

		301						LN		12		4		false		 4   the company in February, and certainly happy to be here				false

		302						LN		12		5		false		 5   and happy to help contribute.				false

		303						LN		12		6		false		 6                   I'm happy to answer any questions you				false

		304						LN		12		7		false		 7   have about the project, but I just really wanted to				false

		305						LN		12		8		false		 8   thank the Board for the consideration to help us				false

		306						LN		12		9		false		 9   continue our growth story and really to add to that				false

		307						LN		12		10		false		10   sustainable platform, which we're building down in				false

		308						LN		12		11		false		11   Gramercy.  It really is something to see and something				false

		309						LN		12		12		false		12   we can all be proud of for Louisiana.				false

		310						LN		12		13		false		13                   I'm happy to answer any questions.  This				false

		311						LN		12		14		false		14   project is teed up, ready to go as we are sort of				false

		312						LN		12		15		false		15   working through some of the final contract negotiations				false

		313						LN		12		16		false		16   as we sit here.  And Susan captured it quite well.				false

		314						LN		12		17		false		17               MR. ROY:				false

		315						LN		12		18		false		18                   Secretary.				false

		316						LN		12		19		false		19               SECRETARY PIERSON:				false

		317						LN		12		20		false		20                   I don't have a question.  I just wanted				false

		318						LN		12		21		false		21   to give a corresponding thank you for the efforts being				false

		319						LN		12		22		false		22   made and presented here.  On the one hand, you would				false

		320						LN		12		23		false		23   have a bankruptcy, 395 workers going home and looking				false

		321						LN		12		24		false		24   for new work in our state, but with this company				false

		322						LN		12		25		false		25   stepping up and pledging to invest more than 35-million				false

		323						PG		13		0		false		page 13				false

		324						LN		13		1		false		 1   on the site, retain all of those workers and then bring				false

		325						LN		13		2		false		 2   us and ramping an additional 65 jobs in the coming years				false

		326						LN		13		3		false		 3   and already making great progress against those goals,				false

		327						LN		13		4		false		 4   it's a tremendous credit to the company for their				false

		328						LN		13		5		false		 5   confidence.				false

		329						LN		13		6		false		 6                   And I'd like to also point out that our				false

		330						LN		13		7		false		 7   team is out there working to find opportunities like				false

		331						LN		13		8		false		 8   this, to not only -- you know, you read about all the				false

		332						LN		13		9		false		 9   new companies that we're able to bring in the state, but				false

		333						LN		13		10		false		10   to working with our existing companies, and in this				false

		334						LN		13		11		false		11   case, be able to revitalize those efforts is				false

		335						LN		13		12		false		12   tremendously important.  So thank you.				false

		336						LN		13		13		false		13               MR. CROFT:				false

		337						LN		13		14		false		14                   Thank you.				false

		338						LN		13		15		false		15               MR. LAURA:				false

		339						LN		13		16		false		16                   Thank you.				false

		340						LN		13		17		false		17               MR. ROY:				false

		341						LN		13		18		false		18                   Anything else, or perhaps questions or				false

		342						LN		13		19		false		19   comments from the Board?				false

		343						LN		13		20		false		20               (No response.)				false

		344						LN		13		21		false		21               MR. ROY:				false

		345						LN		13		22		false		22                   Board members?				false

		346						LN		13		23		false		23               (No response.)				false

		347						LN		13		24		false		24               MR. ROY:				false

		348						LN		13		25		false		25                   What's the pleasure of the Board?				false

		349						PG		14		0		false		page 14				false

		350						LN		14		1		false		 1               MR. JACKSON:				false

		351						LN		14		2		false		 2                   I move that we accept this proposal.				false

		352						LN		14		3		false		 3               MR. ROY:				false

		353						LN		14		4		false		 4                   Motion for acceptance as presented.				false

		354						LN		14		5		false		 5               MS. DURAND:				false

		355						LN		14		6		false		 6                   I second that.				false

		356						LN		14		7		false		 7               MR. ROY:				false

		357						LN		14		8		false		 8                   Second.				false

		358						LN		14		9		false		 9                   Any discussion?				false

		359						LN		14		10		false		10               (No response.)				false

		360						LN		14		11		false		11               MR. ROY:				false

		361						LN		14		12		false		12                   Hearing none, all in favor, "aye."				false

		362						LN		14		13		false		13               (Several members respond "aye.")				false

		363						LN		14		14		false		14               MR. ROY:				false

		364						LN		14		15		false		15                   All opposed, "nay."				false

		365						LN		14		16		false		16               (No response.)				false

		366						LN		14		17		false		17               MR. ROY:				false

		367						LN		14		18		false		18                   Without objection.				false

		368						LN		14		19		false		19                   Congratulations.  Please keep us posted				false

		369						LN		14		20		false		20   on your successes.  We always like to hear about that.				false

		370						LN		14		21		false		21               MR. CROFT:				false

		371						LN		14		22		false		22                   Absolutely.  Thank you very much.				false

		372						LN		14		23		false		23               MR. LAURA:				false

		373						LN		14		24		false		24                   Thank you very much.				false

		374						LN		14		25		false		25               MR. ROY:				false

		375						PG		15		0		false		page 15				false

		376						LN		15		1		false		 1                   Were there any comments from the public				false

		377						LN		15		2		false		 2   on that?				false

		378						LN		15		3		false		 3               (No response.)				false

		379						LN		15		4		false		 4               MR. ROY:				false

		380						LN		15		5		false		 5                   Next order of business, the Treasurer's				false

		381						LN		15		6		false		 6   Report, Ms. Villa.				false

		382						LN		15		7		false		 7               MS. VILLA:				false

		383						LN		15		8		false		 8                   Good morning.  Anne Villa,				false

		384						LN		15		9		false		 9   Undersecretary for Louisiana Economic Development				false

		385						LN		15		10		false		10   presenting the Secretary Treasurer's Report as of May				false

		386						LN		15		11		false		11   31st, 2019.				false

		387						LN		15		12		false		12                   In summary, our total budget for Fy '19				false

		388						LN		15		13		false		13   is $10,538,938.  We have approved and projected				false

		389						LN		15		14		false		14   expenditures of $3,135,443, and we just had the Board				false

		390						LN		15		15		false		15   approval of a million-dollar project, so that gives us				false

		391						LN		15		16		false		16   an anticipated balance of 6,403,495.				false

		392						LN		15		17		false		17                   We still have a project under review of				false

		393						LN		15		18		false		18   375,000, so we have a projected year-end balance of				false

		394						LN		15		19		false		19   6,028,495.  Details of that consists of State Small				false

		395						LN		15		20		false		20   Business Credit Initiative and/or Financial Assistance				false

		396						LN		15		21		false		21   Program, which had a budget of 2,092,796.  I'm sorry.				false

		397						LN		15		22		false		22   $2,092,737.  And we had approved project expenditures of				false

		398						LN		15		23		false		23   624,443.  We don't have any projects under review				false

		399						LN		15		24		false		24   currently, so we have a projected balance of 1,468,354.				false

		400						LN		15		25		false		25                   Regarding our Capital Outlay				false

		401						PG		16		0		false		page 16				false

		402						LN		16		1		false		 1   Appropriation for our EDAP programs and our EDRED				false

		403						LN		16		2		false		 2   programs, we had a budget of $8,446,141.  We had				false

		404						LN		16		3		false		 3   approved and projected expenditures of 2,511,000, and				false

		405						LN		16		4		false		 4   with the project that was just approved, we have a				false

		406						LN		16		5		false		 5   balance of 4,935,141.  And we do have a couple of				false

		407						LN		16		6		false		 6   projects that are under review that equate to 375,000,				false

		408						LN		16		7		false		 7   so we have a projected balance of 4,560,141.				false

		409						LN		16		8		false		 8                   You'll see the note at the bottom there				false

		410						LN		16		9		false		 9   that for our FY '19 budget, we did have a return of				false

		411						LN		16		10		false		10   appropriation from a project of 1,235,000, so that's				false

		412						LN		16		11		false		11   accounted for as well.				false

		413						LN		16		12		false		12                   Just for, I guess, for notification, we				false

		414						LN		16		13		false		13   ended the session last week, and I'll take the				false

		415						LN		16		14		false		14   opportunity now to let you know that for your EDAP				false

		416						LN		16		15		false		15   program, we do have $7-million worth of cash that was				false

		417						LN		16		16		false		16   given to in HBII in the Capital Outlay bill for our				false

		418						LN		16		17		false		17   projects, so for the Secretary's discretion to use for				false

		419						LN		16		18		false		18   upcoming projects, the ones that are in the pipeline,				false

		420						LN		16		19		false		19   and to meet any obligations we may have in FY '20 year.				false

		421						LN		16		20		false		20   So that's actually better than getting either Priority 1				false

		422						LN		16		21		false		21   or Priority 5 dollars, so it gives us -- the Secretary				false

		423						LN		16		22		false		22   some discretion to use that for big projects that he may				false

		424						LN		16		23		false		23   have in the pipeline.  So I wanted to give you a brief				false

		425						LN		16		24		false		24   update on that.				false

		426						LN		16		25		false		25                   And regarding our Fund Balance, which is				false

		427						PG		17		0		false		page 17				false

		428						LN		17		1		false		 1   the last page of the report, our FY '19 projected Fund				false

		429						LN		17		2		false		 2   Balance available is $14,947,976 and we have				false

		430						LN		17		3		false		 3   expenditures expected of 12,027,483, which would leave				false

		431						LN		17		4		false		 4   us an Appropriation Fund balance of 2,920,483.  I have				false

		432						LN		17		5		false		 5   to increase the size a little bit.  493.  Sorry.				false

		433						LN		17		6		false		 6   2,920,493 is our expected balance at the end.				false

		434						LN		17		7		false		 7                   Any questions?				false

		435						LN		17		8		false		 8               (No response.)				false

		436						LN		17		9		false		 9               MS. VILLA:				false

		437						LN		17		10		false		10                   Okay.  Thank you.				false

		438						LN		17		11		false		11               MR. ROY:				false

		439						LN		17		12		false		12                   Questions, comments?				false

		440						LN		17		13		false		13               (No response.)				false

		441						LN		17		14		false		14               MR. ROY:				false

		442						LN		17		15		false		15                   Hearing none, I'll entertain a motion to				false

		443						LN		17		16		false		16   accept the Treasurer's Report.				false

		444						LN		17		17		false		17               MR. ANDRE:				false

		445						LN		17		18		false		18                   So moved.				false

		446						LN		17		19		false		19               MR. ROY:				false

		447						LN		17		20		false		20                   Motion.				false

		448						LN		17		21		false		21               MR. JACKSON:				false

		449						LN		17		22		false		22                   Second.				false

		450						LN		17		23		false		23               MR. ROY:				false

		451						LN		17		24		false		24                   Second.				false

		452						LN		17		25		false		25                   Any discussion?				false

		453						PG		18		0		false		page 18				false

		454						LN		18		1		false		 1               (No response.)				false

		455						LN		18		2		false		 2               MR. ROY:				false

		456						LN		18		3		false		 3                   Without objection.				false

		457						LN		18		4		false		 4                   Any comments from the public?				false

		458						LN		18		5		false		 5               (No response.)				false

		459						LN		18		6		false		 6               MR. ROY:				false

		460						LN		18		7		false		 7                   All in favor, "aye."				false

		461						LN		18		8		false		 8               (Several members respond "aye.")				false

		462						LN		18		9		false		 9               MR. ROY:				false

		463						LN		18		10		false		10                   All opposed, "nay."				false

		464						LN		18		11		false		11               (No response.)				false

		465						LN		18		12		false		12               MR. ROY:				false

		466						LN		18		13		false		13                   Without objection.				false

		467						LN		18		14		false		14                   Next order of business, the Accountant's				false

		468						LN		18		15		false		15   Report.				false

		469						LN		18		16		false		16               MS. DALGO:				false

		470						LN		18		17		false		17                   Good morning.  Crystal Dalgo.  I'll be				false

		471						LN		18		18		false		18   presenting to you the LEDC Accountant's Status Report as				false

		472						LN		18		19		false		19   of April 30th, 2019.				false

		473						LN		18		20		false		20                   We'll start off with the EDAP Loan				false

		474						LN		18		21		false		21   Portfolio, it totals $994,572.  There are currently				false

		475						LN		18		22		false		22   three loans under this portfolio that consist of the				false

		476						LN		18		23		false		23   Town of Colfax, the City of Bastrop and Morgan City.				false

		477						LN		18		24		false		24   Morgan City is set to make their final payment by the				false

		478						LN		18		25		false		25   end of July this year.				false

		479						PG		19		0		false		page 19				false

		480						LN		19		1		false		 1                   The allowance for the EDAP loans is set				false

		481						LN		19		2		false		 2   at 15 percent, and it totals $139,186.				false

		482						LN		19		3		false		 3                   Next on there is the SSBCI Guaranty Loan				false

		483						LN		19		4		false		 4   Portfolio.  It totals $4,838,273.  There are currently				false

		484						LN		19		5		false		 5   16 loans under this portfolio.  Two of the loans, C.				false

		485						LN		19		6		false		 6   Boutte Enterprises and Acadian Cypress are listed as				false

		486						LN		19		7		false		 7   high-risk loans, and they're being carried at 100				false

		487						LN		19		8		false		 8   percent.				false

		488						LN		19		9		false		 9                   The allowance for the SSBCI Guaranty				false

		489						LN		19		10		false		10   Loan Losses is calculated at 18 percent for the current				false

		490						LN		19		11		false		11   accounts and 100 percent on high-risk loans.  So as of				false

		491						LN		19		12		false		12   April 30th, 2019, the allowance totals $1,713,108.				false

		492						LN		19		13		false		13                   And that concludes the report for the				false

		493						LN		19		14		false		14   EDAP and SSBCI portfolios.				false

		494						LN		19		15		false		15                   Are there any questions?				false

		495						LN		19		16		false		16               MR. ROY:				false

		496						LN		19		17		false		17                   Questions, comments?				false

		497						LN		19		18		false		18               (No response.)				false

		498						LN		19		19		false		19               MR. ROY:				false

		499						LN		19		20		false		20                   Motion to accept the Accountant's				false

		500						LN		19		21		false		21   Report?				false

		501						LN		19		22		false		22               MR. SIMPSON:				false

		502						LN		19		23		false		23                   Motion.				false

		503						LN		19		24		false		24               MR. ROY:				false

		504						LN		19		25		false		25                   Second?				false

		505						PG		20		0		false		page 20				false

		506						LN		20		1		false		 1               MR. JACKSON:				false

		507						LN		20		2		false		 2                   Second.				false

		508						LN		20		3		false		 3               MR. ROY:				false

		509						LN		20		4		false		 4                   Any discussions?				false

		510						LN		20		5		false		 5               (No response.)				false

		511						LN		20		6		false		 6               MR. ROY:				false

		512						LN		20		7		false		 7                   Hearing none, all in favor, "aye."				false

		513						LN		20		8		false		 8               (Several members respond "aye.")				false

		514						LN		20		9		false		 9               MR. ROY:				false

		515						LN		20		10		false		10                   All opposed, "nay."				false

		516						LN		20		11		false		11               (No response.)				false

		517						LN		20		12		false		12               MR. ROY:				false

		518						LN		20		13		false		13                   Without objection.  Thank you.				false

		519						LN		20		14		false		14               MS. DALGO:				false

		520						LN		20		15		false		15                   Welcome.				false

		521						LN		20		16		false		16               MR. ROY:				false

		522						LN		20		17		false		17                   Any comments from the public?				false

		523						LN		20		18		false		18               (No response.)				false

		524						LN		20		19		false		19               MR. BAHAM:				false

		525						LN		20		20		false		20                   Mr. A.J., I just passed out an				false

		526						LN		20		21		false		21   additional sheet to the Accountant's Report.  At the				false

		527						LN		20		22		false		22   previous meeting back in February, it was requested we				false

		528						LN		20		23		false		23   give an explanation of our current net asset position				false

		529						LN		20		24		false		24   for LEDC over the previous four years, and that's -- our				false

		530						LN		20		25		false		25   accountants, Crystal and Molly, put this together to				false

		531						PG		21		0		false		page 21				false

		532						LN		21		1		false		 1   show our balances since Fiscal Year '14 all of the way				false

		533						LN		21		2		false		 2   through Fiscal '18, and I just wanted to give the				false

		534						LN		21		3		false		 3   information to the Board really quickly while I've still				false

		535						LN		21		4		false		 4   got Crystal up here to help me explain some of this				false

		536						LN		21		5		false		 5   stuff.				false

		537						LN		21		6		false		 6               MR. ROY:				false

		538						LN		21		7		false		 7                   This was -- just to refresh everyone,				false

		539						LN		21		8		false		 8   this is something that we requested staff to produce in				false

		540						LN		21		9		false		 9   the past, and so we appreciate you doing so.				false

		541						LN		21		10		false		10                   Who's going to explain it?				false

		542						LN		21		11		false		11               MR. BAHAM:				false

		543						LN		21		12		false		12                   You want me to go ahead?				false

		544						LN		21		13		false		13               MR. ROY:				false

		545						LN		21		14		false		14                   Or hit the high points?				false

		546						LN		21		15		false		15               MR. BAHAM:				false

		547						LN		21		16		false		16                   I'll just give you some highlights if				false

		548						LN		21		17		false		17   you'd like.				false

		549						LN		21		18		false		18                   You'll notice, just looking at it in				false

		550						LN		21		19		false		19   general, from Fiscal Year '14 all of way through Fiscal				false

		551						LN		21		20		false		20   Year '18, just looking at the total assets, you'll				false

		552						LN		21		21		false		21   notice that right off the bat they've gone down from				false

		553						LN		21		22		false		22   74-million down to approximately just under 50-million.				false

		554						LN		21		23		false		23                   To highlight some of the reasons as to				false

		555						LN		21		24		false		24   why and give you an explanation as to why that is				false

		556						LN		21		25		false		25   occurring, if you look under "Current Assets," the third				false

		557						PG		22		0		false		page 22				false

		558						LN		22		1		false		 1   line down, "Due From Other Funds," you'll notice back in				false

		559						LN		22		2		false		 2   Fiscal Year '14, it was at 21-and-a-half-million, and at				false

		560						LN		22		3		false		 3   the end of Fiscal Year '18, it was at 4.7-million.  This				false

		561						LN		22		4		false		 4   is due to our reduction in Capital Outlay Funds that are				false

		562						LN		22		5		false		 5   associated with the EDAP program.  So that is something				false

		563						LN		22		6		false		 6   that, as Ms. Villa pointed out earlier, we get				false

		564						LN		22		7		false		 7   appropriated every year from the legislature of these				false

		565						LN		22		8		false		 8   funds, and over the years, these funds have dwindled				false

		566						LN		22		9		false		 9   down a little bit due to budget constraints from the				false

		567						LN		22		10		false		10   legislature and so forth.  So we're working off of a				false

		568						LN		22		11		false		11   little bit less money than what we've had in the past.				false

		569						LN		22		12		false		12                   Following further down, if you look				false

		570						LN		22		13		false		13   under "Noncurrent Assets," you'll notice under the first				false

		571						LN		22		14		false		14   line there, "Investments," in Fiscal Year '18 (sic), we				false

		572						LN		22		15		false		15   ended with 28-billion approximately in investment				false

		573						LN		22		16		false		16   dollars, and in Fiscal Year '18, we ended with just				false

		574						LN		22		17		false		17   21-billion.  That difference, what we attributed it to,				false

		575						LN		22		18		false		18   is back in Fiscal Year '14, we were -- our investments				false

		576						LN		22		19		false		19   have returned.  The returned investments have not been				false

		577						LN		22		20		false		20   as profitable as we had thought they would have been or				false

		578						LN		22		21		false		21   what we put into them, so that gives an explanation as				false

		579						LN		22		22		false		22   to why the investments have gone down some.				false

		580						LN		22		23		false		23                   Also, some of those investments have				false

		581						LN		22		24		false		24   been moved to the cash category as they come back, and				false

		582						LN		22		25		false		25   if you notice, back in the "Current Assets," the cash				false

		583						PG		23		0		false		page 23				false

		584						LN		23		1		false		 1   pretty much stays approximately the same.  So we've				false

		585						LN		23		2		false		 2   exited some investments.  Some of them have not come				false

		586						LN		23		3		false		 3   back as we had hoped in years past, but we do have some				false

		587						LN		23		4		false		 4   on the horizon hopefully that we will be able to, you				false

		588						LN		23		5		false		 5   know, recoup some of that money as well.				false

		589						LN		23		6		false		 6               MR. ROY:				false

		590						LN		23		7		false		 7                   Do you have a breakdown of the				false

		591						LN		23		8		false		 8   categories, not necessarily the individual investments,				false

		592						LN		23		9		false		 9   but the categories that, you know, comprise the				false

		593						LN		23		10		false		10   definition of investments?				false

		594						LN		23		11		false		11               MR. BAHAM:				false

		595						LN		23		12		false		12                   Crystal may be able to help me with that				false

		596						LN		23		13		false		13   a little bit more.				false

		597						LN		23		14		false		14                   To my knowledge, the investments are				false

		598						LN		23		15		false		15   those long-term Venture Capital investments that were				false

		599						LN		23		16		false		16   made years and years ago that we still on have on the				false

		600						LN		23		17		false		17   books.  The majority of them were done in the early				false

		601						LN		23		18		false		18   2000s, which a lot of those funds are in their wind-down				false

		602						LN		23		19		false		19   stage.				false

		603						LN		23		20		false		20                   At this point in time, we do expect over				false

		604						LN		23		21		false		21   the next few years to have a lot of those close out.				false

		605						LN		23		22		false		22   We've actually been working -- Chaffe is getting ready				false

		606						LN		23		23		false		23   to do their valuations on those at the end of this				false

		607						LN		23		24		false		24   Fiscal Year again, and when we do the Chaffe reports in				false

		608						LN		23		25		false		25   the Finance Committee in January, it will possibly be a				false

		609						PG		24		0		false		page 24				false

		610						LN		24		1		false		 1   lot clearer at that point.				false

		611						LN		24		2		false		 2               MR. ROY:				false

		612						LN		24		3		false		 3                   It's solely Venture Capital?				false

		613						LN		24		4		false		 4               MR. BAHAM:				false

		614						LN		24		5		false		 5                   It's mostly Venture Capital, and a lot				false

		615						LN		24		6		false		 6   of it is SSBCI funds that we have injected now and --				false

		616						LN		24		7		false		 7   now, those are brand new funds since 2011, so those are				false

		617						LN		24		8		false		 8   going to be on the books for a little while until some				false

		618						LN		24		9		false		 9   of those funds start to close out, but that's nearly,				false

		619						LN		24		10		false		10   I'd say, 100 percent.  There is one existing, BIDCO,				false

		620						LN		24		11		false		11   still that we carry on the books from the early/mid-90s				false

		621						LN		24		12		false		12   that still has an active license and still making loans,				false

		622						LN		24		13		false		13   so that is the only other thing other than the Venture				false

		623						LN		24		14		false		14   Capital investments that are showing up in that				false

		624						LN		24		15		false		15   "Investment" category.  So instead of breaking it down				false

		625						LN		24		16		false		16   by fund or individual investments, that's why it's just				false

		626						LN		24		17		false		17   lumped into one big category as "Investments," and				false

		627						LN		24		18		false		18   they're obviously long-term assets.				false

		628						LN		24		19		false		19               MS. DALGO:				false

		629						LN		24		20		false		20                   The Certificates of Deposits, 7.4, in				false

		630						LN		24		21		false		21   CDs is in that.				false

		631						LN		24		22		false		22               MR. BAHAM:				false

		632						LN		24		23		false		23                   That's also in there.				false

		633						LN		24		24		false		24                   So whenever we do a guaranteed loan, we				false

		634						LN		24		25		false		25   take a portion of that guaranty and we put it either				false

		635						PG		25		0		false		page 25				false

		636						LN		25		1		false		 1   into a CD set aside or into a money market account, so				false

		637						LN		25		2		false		 2   that is also included in there as well.				false

		638						LN		25		3		false		 3                   Thank you, Crystal.				false

		639						LN		25		4		false		 4               MR. ROY:				false

		640						LN		25		5		false		 5                   And so with respect to the Venture				false

		641						LN		25		6		false		 6   Capital, perhaps, BIDCO investment, that number would				false

		642						LN		25		7		false		 7   reflect Chaffe's description of what the value is as of				false

		643						LN		25		8		false		 8   those specific dates?				false

		644						LN		25		9		false		 9               MR. BAHAM:				false

		645						LN		25		10		false		10                   Well, it should reflect it directly.  If				false

		646						LN		25		11		false		11   we go back to Fiscal Year '18, it should show that				false

		647						LN		25		12		false		12   value, because when Chaffe does their valuation, the				false

		648						LN		25		13		false		13   legislative auditor that's doing our audit of our				false

		649						LN		25		14		false		14   financials at the same time uses their valuation numbers				false

		650						LN		25		15		false		15   to reflect those investments dollars.  So, yes, to				false

		651						LN		25		16		false		16   answer your question, in short, because they work very				false

		652						LN		25		17		false		17   closely together because the auditor doesn't finish				false

		653						LN		25		18		false		18   their report until the Chaffe valuation is done.				false

		654						LN		25		19		false		19               MR. ROY:				false

		655						LN		25		20		false		20                   Any other questions?				false

		656						LN		25		21		false		21                   Yes, sir.				false

		657						LN		25		22		false		22               MR. JACKSON:				false

		658						LN		25		23		false		23                   Yes, just to clarify, obviously the				false

		659						LN		25		24		false		24   Venture funds are returning or they're suffering market				false

		660						LN		25		25		false		25   adjustments and things like that.				false

		661						PG		26		0		false		page 26				false

		662						LN		26		1		false		 1               MR. BAHAM:				false

		663						LN		26		2		false		 2                   Right.				false

		664						LN		26		3		false		 3               MR. JACKSON:				false

		665						LN		26		4		false		 4                   But in general, shifts in our Fund				false

		666						LN		26		5		false		 5   Balance could also just be the fact that while we get				false

		667						LN		26		6		false		 6   those moneys appropriated from the legislature, we do				false

		668						LN		26		7		false		 7   the EDAPs and the EDREDs and stuff, those are actually				false

		669						LN		26		8		false		 8   expended back out.				false

		670						LN		26		9		false		 9               MR. BAHAM:				false

		671						LN		26		10		false		10                   Correct.				false

		672						LN		26		11		false		11               MR. JACKSON:				false

		673						LN		26		12		false		12                   So our Fund Balance could be declining				false

		674						LN		26		13		false		13   slightly because we're not receiving as much of an				false

		675						LN		26		14		false		14   appropriation to then be put out.				false

		676						LN		26		15		false		15               MR. BAHAM:				false

		677						LN		26		16		false		16                   That's correct.				false

		678						LN		26		17		false		17                   And if you scroll down to the bottom				false

		679						LN		26		18		false		18   there underneath the "Net Asset Position," you'll see				false

		680						LN		26		19		false		19   the different categories are "Restricted" and				false

		681						LN		26		20		false		20   "Unrestricted," and that is reflecting in those two				false

		682						LN		26		21		false		21   categories how it's balancing out.  The "Restricted"				false

		683						LN		26		22		false		22   account is made up of all of these EDAP balances from				false

		684						LN		26		23		false		23   previous years.  So like in Fiscal Year '14, we had a				false

		685						LN		26		24		false		24   little over 6-million in the restricted account.  Those				false

		686						LN		26		25		false		25   are committed funds to those projects that have been				false

		687						PG		27		0		false		page 27				false

		688						LN		27		1		false		 1   approved this fiscal year that have just have not been				false

		689						LN		27		2		false		 2   expended yet.  The project maybe is a multiyear-phased				false

		690						LN		27		3		false		 3   project or it was approved close to the end of that				false

		691						LN		27		4		false		 4   current fiscal year, so the funds may have been				false

		692						LN		27		5		false		 5   committed in a previous fiscal year, but won't be				false

		693						LN		27		6		false		 6   expended until the following year.  So that does kind of				false

		694						LN		27		7		false		 7   play into it also because we're still carrying those				false

		695						LN		27		8		false		 8   funds on our books, even though they're committed, the				false

		696						LN		27		9		false		 9   legislature sees that you have "X" number of dollars out				false

		697						LN		27		10		false		10   there, so we're only going to commit this much because				false

		698						LN		27		11		false		11   of however.  I don't know if they have -- a lot of times				false

		699						LN		27		12		false		12   it's just gut feeling or restricted by the state budget.				false

		700						LN		27		13		false		13               MS. VILLA:				false

		701						LN		27		14		false		14                   Right.  Just to kind of add to what				false

		702						LN		27		15		false		15   Steve just said, for the past probably three to four				false

		703						LN		27		16		false		16   years, we've been working very closely with them on what				false

		704						LN		27		17		false		17   our true needs were to meet our obligations.  So in				false

		705						LN		27		18		false		18   prior years before, you know, we were faced with the				false

		706						LN		27		19		false		19   fiscal position that we were faced with, we were				false

		707						LN		27		20		false		20   automatically getting, you know, the $10-million of EDAP				false

		708						LN		27		21		false		21   just routinely given to the department to use, but				false

		709						LN		27		22		false		22   because of the situation we were in with HBII with				false

		710						LN		27		23		false		23   meeting the limits of it, so we would always work with				false

		711						LN		27		24		false		24   them very closely saying "What truly is your cash --				false

		712						LN		27		25		false		25   What truly are your cash needs?"  And so that's what we				false

		713						PG		28		0		false		page 28				false

		714						LN		28		1		false		 1   were faced with, you know, during the past years.				false

		715						LN		28		2		false		 2               MR. JACKSON:				false

		716						LN		28		3		false		 3                   Right.  I guess what I'm getting at is				false

		717						LN		28		4		false		 4   while fund balance is important for a business,				false

		718						LN		28		5		false		 5   obviously you'd like to see that increasing because				false

		719						LN		28		6		false		 6   you're making money, we're really more investing it into				false

		720						LN		28		7		false		 7   the state, it doesn't stay on our books.				false

		721						LN		28		8		false		 8               MS. VILLA:				false

		722						LN		28		9		false		 9                   That's correct.				false

		723						LN		28		10		false		10               MR. JACKSON:				false

		724						LN		28		11		false		11                   So the level of our Fund Balance in any				false

		725						LN		28		12		false		12   particular year relative to other years is not				false

		726						LN		28		13		false		13   necessarily a cause for alarm.				false

		727						LN		28		14		false		14               MS. VILLA:				false

		728						LN		28		15		false		15                   Right.				false

		729						LN		28		16		false		16               MR. JACKSON:				false

		730						LN		28		17		false		17                   It's just a change in the way the funds				false

		731						LN		28		18		false		18   are coming together.				false

		732						LN		28		19		false		19               MR. BAHAM:				false

		733						LN		28		20		false		20                   That's correct.				false

		734						LN		28		21		false		21               MR. JACKSON:				false

		735						LN		28		22		false		22                   Thank you.				false

		736						LN		28		23		false		23               MR. ROY:				false

		737						LN		28		24		false		24                   Any other questions or comments at this				false

		738						LN		28		25		false		25   point?				false

		739						PG		29		0		false		page 29				false

		740						LN		29		1		false		 1                   I have one more.  Under "Investments,"				false

		741						LN		29		2		false		 2   you said that that number reflects the CDs				false

		742						LN		29		3		false		 3   accumulatively.  Do we have an indication or				false

		743						LN		29		4		false		 4   breakdown -- and, of course, those are pledged for				false

		744						LN		29		5		false		 5   guarantees; right?				false

		745						LN		29		6		false		 6               MS. DALGO:				false

		746						LN		29		7		false		 7                   Correct.				false

		747						LN		29		8		false		 8               MR. ROY:				false

		748						LN		29		9		false		 9                   So do we have a breakdown of the				false

		749						LN		29		10		false		10   Guaranty Program for that year period of time and what				false

		750						LN		29		11		false		11   is happening in that respect?				false

		751						LN		29		12		false		12               MS. DALGO:				false

		752						LN		29		13		false		13                   Yes, we do.				false

		753						LN		29		14		false		14               MS. VILLA:				false

		754						LN		29		15		false		15                   We can have that at the next meeting.				false

		755						LN		29		16		false		16               MR. ROY:				false

		756						LN		29		17		false		17                   I'd be interested to look at that and				false

		757						LN		29		18		false		18   see where we were and where we are now.				false

		758						LN		29		19		false		19               MS. DALGO:				false

		759						LN		29		20		false		20                   And the number for the value of the CDs				false

		760						LN		29		21		false		21   have stayed the same consistently over the years on here				false

		761						LN		29		22		false		22   after we had moved some to the money market account, so				false

		762						LN		29		23		false		23   it's not a fluctuating number, but the guarantees, we do				false

		763						LN		29		24		false		24   have that.  I can get back to you.				false

		764						LN		29		25		false		25               MR. ROY:				false

		765						PG		30		0		false		page 30				false

		766						LN		30		1		false		 1                   Okay.  Yes.  So maybe I think we changed				false

		767						LN		30		2		false		 2   the formula at some point, I can't remember when, for				false

		768						LN		30		3		false		 3   the pledging.				false

		769						LN		30		4		false		 4               MR. BAHAM:				false

		770						LN		30		5		false		 5                   I think it was when we received the				false

		771						LN		30		6		false		 6   SSBCI funds, part of the requirement on that Federal				false

		772						LN		30		7		false		 7   program was to try to obtain a 10-to-1 match, I believe,				false

		773						LN		30		8		false		 8   or leverage, and so to accomplish that, anytime we				false

		774						LN		30		9		false		 9   guaranty a loan, we would take 25 percent of that				false

		775						LN		30		10		false		10   guaranteed amount, instead of the full 100 percent that				false

		776						LN		30		11		false		11   we had done in the past, we put that in a CD so that				false

		777						LN		30		12		false		12   we're basically getting the 4-to-1 leverage on our				false

		778						LN		30		13		false		13   guaranteed loans.  And then the anticipation was with				false

		779						LN		30		14		false		14   the 4-to-1 on the guaranty and then the equity				false

		780						LN		30		15		false		15   investment, which also counts towards the leveraged				false

		781						LN		30		16		false		16   dollars, and then a portion of those SSBCI were put into				false

		782						LN		30		17		false		17   the VC investment, which also has a 20 percent				false

		783						LN		30		18		false		18   requirement of additional equity or more.  So we were				false

		784						LN		30		19		false		19   pushing -- I think our final leverage numbers at the end				false

		785						LN		30		20		false		20   of the '17 year in March when SSBCI closed was pushing				false

		786						LN		30		21		false		21   8-to-1.  So with the bulk of it being still tied up in				false

		787						LN		30		22		false		22   investments, they had not yet matured.  We feel after				false

		788						LN		30		23		false		23   those investments return, we'll hit that 10-to-1, and we				false

		789						LN		30		24		false		24   still have unspent SSBCI dollars that we still have yet				false

		790						LN		30		25		false		25   to leverage.				false

		791						PG		31		0		false		page 31				false

		792						LN		31		1		false		 1                   So, but, to answer your question, we did				false

		793						LN		31		2		false		 2   reduce it down to 25 percent.				false

		794						LN		31		3		false		 3               MR. ROY:				false

		795						LN		31		4		false		 4                   Right.  And given that I was focusing on				false

		796						LN		31		5		false		 5   the Guaranty Program, if we could -- I think it would be				false

		797						LN		31		6		false		 6   nice to see what's happened on the dollar of the loans				false

		798						LN		31		7		false		 7   that we've guaranteed throughout time, so if you could				false

		799						LN		31		8		false		 8   give that to us, I think that would be beneficial.  The				false

		800						LN		31		9		false		 9   CDs are indicative of some of that, and I appreciate it,				false

		801						LN		31		10		false		10   but we changed the formula, et cetera, so that's				false

		802						LN		31		11		false		11   probably not a number we want to focus on.  So if we				false

		803						LN		31		12		false		12   have a description of the guarantees themselves total.				false

		804						LN		31		13		false		13               MS. VILLA:				false

		805						LN		31		14		false		14                   Yes.  We have -- the team does a great				false

		806						LN		31		15		false		15   job of giving internally LED a report on all of our				false

		807						LN		31		16		false		16   EDAPs every six months, and we just completed that about				false

		808						LN		31		17		false		17   six weeks ago, Susan?  So we have a pretty detailed				false

		809						LN		31		18		false		18   report that we can kind of share, you know, with the				false

		810						LN		31		19		false		19   Board.				false

		811						LN		31		20		false		20               MR. ROY:				false

		812						LN		31		21		false		21                   So, I mean, the EDAP would be nice to				false

		813						LN		31		22		false		22   see as well, but --				false

		814						LN		31		23		false		23               MS. VILLA:				false

		815						LN		31		24		false		24                   That's what I'm referring to is the				false

		816						LN		31		25		false		25   EDAP.  And we also, as a matter of fact, I have a				false

		817						PG		32		0		false		page 32				false

		818						LN		32		1		false		 1   meeting tomorrow on the investments that we're going to				false

		819						LN		32		2		false		 2   be doing as well, so we can most definitely share that				false

		820						LN		32		3		false		 3   with the Board.				false

		821						LN		32		4		false		 4               MR. ROY:				false

		822						LN		32		5		false		 5                   Okay.  So guarantees and EDAPs will be				false

		823						LN		32		6		false		 6   good.				false

		824						LN		32		7		false		 7                   Anything else to add?				false

		825						LN		32		8		false		 8               MR. BAHAM:				false

		826						LN		32		9		false		 9                   That's all I have unless you have				false

		827						LN		32		10		false		10   anymore questions.				false

		828						LN		32		11		false		11               MR. ROY:				false

		829						LN		32		12		false		12                   Any other questions from the Board?				false

		830						LN		32		13		false		13   Comments?				false

		831						LN		32		14		false		14               (No response.)				false

		832						LN		32		15		false		15               MR. ROY:				false

		833						LN		32		16		false		16                   All right.  Thank you.				false

		834						LN		32		17		false		17               MS. DALGO:				false

		835						LN		32		18		false		18                   Thank you.				false

		836						LN		32		19		false		19               MR. ROY:				false

		837						LN		32		20		false		20                   All right.  It's nice to have the				false

		838						LN		32		21		false		21   Secretary with us today.  I know he's a very busy man,				false

		839						LN		32		22		false		22   and I look forward to hearing his report.				false

		840						LN		32		23		false		23               MS. VILLA:				false

		841						LN		32		24		false		24                   Steve, did you have anything else that				false

		842						LN		32		25		false		25   you wanted to update the Board on?  I noticed you				false

		843						PG		33		0		false		page 33				false

		844						LN		33		1		false		 1   included the marketing update.				false

		845						LN		33		2		false		 2               MR. BAHAM:				false

		846						LN		33		3		false		 3                   We can just present -- we were at the				false

		847						LN		33		4		false		 4   President's Report, but I can go ahead --				false

		848						LN		33		5		false		 5               MS. VILLA:				false

		849						LN		33		6		false		 6                   No, no, that's fine.				false

		850						LN		33		7		false		 7               MR. ROY:				false

		851						LN		33		8		false		 8                   My mistake.  I'm jumping ahead because				false

		852						LN		33		9		false		 9   the Secretary is sitting on the side of me, but, anyway,				false

		853						LN		33		10		false		10   let's let you finish on the marketing side.				false

		854						LN		33		11		false		11               MR. BAHAM:				false

		855						LN		33		12		false		12                   Every six months or so we just do a				false

		856						LN		33		13		false		13   semi-annual update on our marketing efforts for Small				false

		857						LN		33		14		false		14   Business Loan Guaranty, and in your packet, I've				false

		858						LN		33		15		false		15   provided a short, two-page comparison.  What we decided				false

		859						LN		33		16		false		16   to do was take -- this is our year '18 effort that we				false

		860						LN		33		17		false		17   had done from June 1st of -- July 1st of 2017 through				false

		861						LN		33		18		false		18   June 30th of 2018 and compare it from the Fiscal Year of				false

		862						LN		33		19		false		19   '19.  And so for July 1st of 2018 through -- not quite a				false

		863						LN		33		20		false		20   full 12 months, but 11 months, through the end of May of				false

		864						LN		33		21		false		21   2019.				false

		865						LN		33		22		false		22                   And if you look at the chart, back in				false

		866						LN		33		23		false		23   2018, we touched approximately -- when I say "we				false

		867						LN		33		24		false		24   touched," we physically met with either one-on-one or in				false

		868						LN		33		25		false		25   a bank conference room with several different bankers,				false

		869						PG		34		0		false		page 34				false

		870						LN		34		1		false		 1   answering questions, going through projects or with a				false

		871						LN		34		2		false		 2   chamber in their meeting rooms -- 288 individuals or				false

		872						LN		34		3		false		 3   lenders or CPA professionals and the like, business				false

		873						LN		34		4		false		 4   owners as well are included in that.  And in 2019, for				false

		874						LN		34		5		false		 5   comparison purposes, we actually have gone up, minus one				false

		875						LN		34		6		false		 6   month, to 357 individuals.  The differences that you can				false

		876						LN		34		7		false		 7   see there is back through Fiscal Year 2018 and prior				false

		877						LN		34		8		false		 8   years to that, our marketing efforts were concentrated				false

		878						LN		34		9		false		 9   on strictly traditional bank lenders, third-party				false

		879						LN		34		10		false		10   lenders and credit unions, and that's always been our				false

		880						LN		34		11		false		11   main focus because that's who utilizes the program.  And				false

		881						LN		34		12		false		12   that's all fine and good, but because of our activity				false

		882						LN		34		13		false		13   had not been to where we need it to be or want it to be,				false

		883						LN		34		14		false		14   we decided in 2019 Fiscal Year that we're going to shift				false

		884						LN		34		15		false		15   the focus to not just hit our bankers, but also put more				false

		885						LN		34		16		false		16   of an emphasis and an effort on hitting our economic				false

		886						LN		34		17		false		17   development allies, our local business chambers and also				false

		887						LN		34		18		false		18   our business owners.				false

		888						LN		34		19		false		19                   There's another area that we made a huge				false

		889						LN		34		20		false		20   effort, and staff has gone out into local communities				false

		890						LN		34		21		false		21   and been a part of local B&I groups and local chamber				false

		891						LN		34		22		false		22   meetings and just getting an on-the-ground level with				false

		892						LN		34		23		false		23   local mom and pop businesses, you know, that do				false

		893						LN		34		24		false		24   everyday, the bakers, the hair salons, the -- even auto				false

		894						LN		34		25		false		25   dealerships, I believe.  So they're meeting with anybody				false

		895						PG		35		0		false		page 35				false

		896						LN		35		1		false		 1   and everybody, either if they own a business or even				false

		897						LN		35		2		false		 2   contemplating owning a business.				false

		898						LN		35		3		false		 3                   We also worked very closely with our				false

		899						LN		35		4		false		 4   SBDCs across the state because they work with the				false

		900						LN		35		5		false		 5   business owners or entrepreneurs or soon-to				false

		901						LN		35		6		false		 6   entrepreneurs on a regular basis, and that explains a				false

		902						LN		35		7		false		 7   lot of the differences in our numbers here and how we've				false

		903						LN		35		8		false		 8   been able to hit so many people in a shorter amount of				false

		904						LN		35		9		false		 9   time here in Fiscal Year '19.				false

		905						LN		35		10		false		10                   To give you an example of how we're				false

		906						LN		35		11		false		11   still touching our banks is if you look at 2018, we				false

		907						LN		35		12		false		12   brought to the attention of some of these new lenders,				false

		908						LN		35		13		false		13   and these aren't just individual lenders, these are new				false

		909						LN		35		14		false		14   banks that we counted approximately 37 in Fiscal Year				false

		910						LN		35		15		false		15   '18 were unique, individual banks that we had not				false

		911						LN		35		16		false		16   touched either in the previous year or the year before,				false

		912						LN		35		17		false		17   so two to three years we had not gone to that bank.  And				false

		913						LN		35		18		false		18   in Fiscal Year '19, in our efforts, while we were				false

		914						LN		35		19		false		19   focusing on outside of the lending community, we still				false

		915						LN		35		20		false		20   had to communicate with our banks.  So what we did was				false

		916						LN		35		21		false		21   we said, "Well, we are going to focus more on these				false

		917						LN		35		22		false		22   banks like we did in '18 to touch more of those banks				false

		918						LN		35		23		false		23   that hadn't heard about the program and hadn't seen it				false

		919						LN		35		24		false		24   in a couple years."  And we hit 25 new ones in that same				false

		920						LN		35		25		false		25   time period.  So while we're hitting less banks as far				false

		921						PG		36		0		false		page 36				false

		922						LN		36		1		false		 1   as the one-on-one handshake and educating them on the				false

		923						LN		36		2		false		 2   program and trying to develop new relationships, we're				false

		924						LN		36		3		false		 3   still hitting new banks that we're developing these				false

		925						LN		36		4		false		 4   relationships with.				false

		926						LN		36		5		false		 5                   We're starting to see the fruits of				false

		927						LN		36		6		false		 6   that.  Just this week -- I know our Secretary				false

		928						LN		36		7		false		 7   Treasurer's Report indicated that we didn't have any				false

		929						LN		36		8		false		 8   projects under review right now, but that was as of May				false

		930						LN		36		9		false		 9   31st.  Just this first two weeks of -- not even two full				false

		931						LN		36		10		false		10   weeks of June, we've got two applications in, I think				false

		932						LN		36		11		false		11   one last week and one early this week, for loans.  And				false

		933						LN		36		12		false		12   then we are expected to get another loan application in				false

		934						LN		36		13		false		13   by the end of today, and that loan, we're really excited				false

		935						LN		36		14		false		14   about because I think it's going to be a really nice				false

		936						LN		36		15		false		15   one.				false

		937						LN		36		16		false		16                   We also have a fourth loan that I've				false

		938						LN		36		17		false		17   been working with a bank here in Baton Rouge to try to				false

		939						LN		36		18		false		18   secure.  It's actually a bank that's used the program				false

		940						LN		36		19		false		19   several times before, but hadn't in a couple years, so				false

		941						LN		36		20		false		20   we're trying to rekindle that relationship.  So we're				false

		942						LN		36		21		false		21   making headway, and we're trying different things to get				false

		943						LN		36		22		false		22   some activity going.  The new route seems to be getting				false

		944						LN		36		23		false		23   a little more attraction, and we're at least driving				false

		945						LN		36		24		false		24   interest because we've noticed that anytime we talk to a				false

		946						LN		36		25		false		25   business owner or a potential business owner, they learn				false

		947						PG		37		0		false		page 37				false

		948						LN		37		1		false		 1   about the program, they're going knocking on their				false

		949						LN		37		2		false		 2   banker's doors with some papers and business cards and				false

		950						LN		37		3		false		 3   saying, "Here, call these guys."  And a lot of banks do.				false

		951						LN		37		4		false		 4   We're getting calls from banks that we typically would				false

		952						LN		37		5		false		 5   not work with or haven't really given us that much look				false

		953						LN		37		6		false		 6   in the past, the banks that are on that mid-tier level				false

		954						LN		37		7		false		 7   that meet more of a regional focus.  The community banks				false

		955						LN		37		8		false		 8   have always been the biggest users of our program, but				false

		956						LN		37		9		false		 9   we're starting to see some activity from these more				false

		957						LN		37		10		false		10   regionalized banks about the size of like a Hancock				false

		958						LN		37		11		false		11   Whitney.  They're starting to ask more questions and				false

		959						LN		37		12		false		12   spitball more potential projects with us.				false

		960						LN		37		13		false		13                   So another big thing that we have				false

		961						LN		37		14		false		14   focused on is working internally with our BERG group in				false

		962						LN		37		15		false		15   particular.  The project earlier today was actually				false

		963						LN		37		16		false		16   brought by one of our BERG members, Charlie, and he and				false

		964						LN		37		17		false		17   the rest of BERG team has been very, very influential in				false

		965						LN		37		18		false		18   bringing especially two of the new four projects that we				false

		966						LN		37		19		false		19   have potential applications on right now, so that has				false

		967						LN		37		20		false		20   been another big success for us.				false

		968						LN		37		21		false		21                   So with the staff, with myself and two				false

		969						LN		37		22		false		22   and a half other people, we're trying to cover the state				false

		970						LN		37		23		false		23   as much as possible, and we're touching a lot more				false

		971						LN		37		24		false		24   people by going to these, especially these B&I groups				false

		972						LN		37		25		false		25   and local chamber meetings, we're able to hit a lot more				false

		973						PG		38		0		false		page 38				false

		974						LN		38		1		false		 1   people at one time, and we've had a lot of success with				false

		975						LN		38		2		false		 2   that.  And, of course, every other year we attend the				false

		976						LN		38		3		false		 3   LBA Banker's Association annual meeting, and that's				false

		977						LN		38		4		false		 4   always a big, big plus for us because for the next few				false

		978						LN		38		5		false		 5   weeks after that, we're constantly getting phone calls				false

		979						LN		38		6		false		 6   from new banks.  And what we've noticed, I know over the				false

		980						LN		38		7		false		 7   past 10 to 15 years, we've had a lot of changeover.				false

		981						LN		38		8		false		 8   You, yourself, may have this, Mr. Roy.  A lot of banks				false

		982						LN		38		9		false		 9   that have been in the industry for many, many years are				false

		983						LN		38		10		false		10   starting to retire and they're, you know, moving on, and				false

		984						LN		38		11		false		11   a new set of bankers are starting to take their place				false

		985						LN		38		12		false		12   and a lot of these new bankers are very, very green.				false

		986						LN		38		13		false		13   And banking has changed, especially over the last 10 to				false

		987						LN		38		14		false		14   15 years.  It's not as much of a -- it used to be a				false

		988						LN		38		15		false		15   traditional loan officer not only went out and found				false

		989						LN		38		16		false		16   that deal and worked with that client and built that				false

		990						LN		38		17		false		17   relationship, but they underwrote practically the whole				false

		991						LN		38		18		false		18   loan, pitched it to the committee and did the servicing				false

		992						LN		38		19		false		19   for the most part.  Today it's clanged differently where				false

		993						LN		38		20		false		20   it's in the house of underwriters at the main office and				false

		994						LN		38		21		false		21   a front guy that's the loan officers really just going				false

		995						LN		38		22		false		22   out there doing the marketing.  So we're having to				false

		996						LN		38		23		false		23   adjust our style a little bit.  We're trying to use the				false

		997						LN		38		24		false		24   loan officers to get us in the door and get us a				false

		998						LN		38		25		false		25   sit-down with the underwriters so we can actually				false

		999						PG		39		0		false		page 39				false

		1000						LN		39		1		false		 1   explain the program in detail to them, but have the loan				false

		1001						LN		39		2		false		 2   officer go and sell it.				false

		1002						LN		39		3		false		 3                   It's a big relationship game, and staff				false

		1003						LN		39		4		false		 4   has been doing a really good job of staying on top of				false

		1004						LN		39		5		false		 5   that, so I've got to tip my hat to them.  In just 11				false

		1005						LN		39		6		false		 6   months, I knew that we were hitting more people, but				false

		1006						LN		39		7		false		 7   until you actually crunch the numbers, you really				false

		1007						LN		39		8		false		 8   don't -- you really don't see it.  We're hitting quite				false

		1008						LN		39		9		false		 9   almost a full 100 more people than what we did, and				false

		1009						LN		39		10		false		10   that's in 11 month's time.				false

		1010						LN		39		11		false		11               MR. ROY:				false

		1011						LN		39		12		false		12                   Any questions or comments?				false

		1012						LN		39		13		false		13               MR. JACKSON:				false

		1013						LN		39		14		false		14                   BERG group?				false

		1014						LN		39		15		false		15               MR. BAHAM:				false

		1015						LN		39		16		false		16                   It's LED's Business Expansion and				false

		1016						LN		39		17		false		17   Retention Group.  So we have essentially two different				false

		1017						LN		39		18		false		18   groups or three different groups.  We have international				false

		1018						LN		39		19		false		19   and we have our traditional marking group that goes out				false

		1019						LN		39		20		false		20   and finds companies to come in or that are relocating				false

		1020						LN		39		21		false		21   here.  BERG group focuses on homegrown businesses.  They				false

		1021						LN		39		22		false		22   go out to the communities, they tap on the doors and				false

		1022						LN		39		23		false		23   they find needs and they're meeting with companies every				false

		1023						LN		39		24		false		24   single day, multiple companies.  And Secretary is very,				false

		1024						LN		39		25		false		25   very familiar with what they do, probably more so than				false

		1025						PG		40		0		false		page 40				false

		1026						LN		40		1		false		 1   what I am.  But we decided if we're going to focus on				false

		1027						LN		40		2		false		 2   meeting with the companies, we need to get internally				false

		1028						LN		40		3		false		 3   because they've already met with them.  So it's just a				false

		1029						LN		40		4		false		 4   matter of maintaining those, getting a foot in the door,				false

		1030						LN		40		5		false		 5   and once we get the foot in the door, a lot of times				false

		1031						LN		40		6		false		 6   we're able -- and educating our own team sometimes,				false

		1032						LN		40		7		false		 7   because a lot of times these guys are chasing, you know,				false

		1033						LN		40		8		false		 8   the bigger deal, they're not sure what to do with the				false

		1034						LN		40		9		false		 9   smaller company.  We told them, "Look, pass them to us.				false

		1035						LN		40		10		false		10   We'll work with them.  And if they're looking for				false

		1036						LN		40		11		false		11   financing, we'll definitely help them out."				false

		1037						LN		40		12		false		12                   And we also have a small business group				false

		1038						LN		40		13		false		13   that we work side-by-side with, which is another group				false

		1039						LN		40		14		false		14   that I forgot to mention.  They do a lot of the CEO				false

		1040						LN		40		15		false		15   roundtables across the state, and we attend -- I'm				false

		1041						LN		40		16		false		16   actually going to one across the street tomorrow to talk				false

		1042						LN		40		17		false		17   about a program.				false

		1043						LN		40		18		false		18                   So we have really revamped how we're				false

		1044						LN		40		19		false		19   doing things as far as from a marketing perspective.  I				false

		1045						LN		40		20		false		20   mean, we realize that with such a small team, you kind				false

		1046						LN		40		21		false		21   of have to diversify a little bit, utilize the resources				false

		1047						LN		40		22		false		22   that we have available to us and let some other people				false

		1048						LN		40		23		false		23   kind of do the talking for us because we can't be --				false

		1049						LN		40		24		false		24   with two and a half people, we can't be in all places				false

		1050						LN		40		25		false		25   within all times.				false

		1051						PG		41		0		false		page 41				false

		1052						LN		41		1		false		 1                   So, but, to answer your question, the				false

		1053						LN		41		2		false		 2   BERG group is Business Expansion and Retention Group.				false

		1054						LN		41		3		false		 3               MR. JACKSON:				false

		1055						LN		41		4		false		 4                   Okay.				false

		1056						LN		41		5		false		 5                   And, Mr. Chairman, Mr. Baham actually				false

		1057						LN		41		6		false		 6   came and spoke to the CPAs at their monthly luncheon in				false

		1058						LN		41		7		false		 7   Ouachita Parish a few months ago.  It was really very				false

		1059						LN		41		8		false		 8   helpful.  So I guess we probably had 15 or 20 at that				false

		1060						LN		41		9		false		 9   meeting, so it was a good opportunity to expose that				false

		1061						LN		41		10		false		10   group of professionals as they work with their clients.				false

		1062						LN		41		11		false		11   We're most appreciative.				false

		1063						LN		41		12		false		12               MR. ROY:				false

		1064						LN		41		13		false		13                   Very good.				false

		1065						LN		41		14		false		14                   One thought, you had me thinking as you				false

		1066						LN		41		15		false		15   were describing your outreach to the LBA, and the staff				false

		1067						LN		41		16		false		16   has done a great job of reaching out to the LBA at the				false

		1068						LN		41		17		false		17   annual convention, I believe has been the primary for				false

		1069						LN		41		18		false		18   us.  The LBA also does a great job on an annual basis of				false

		1070						LN		41		19		false		19   training bankers, and they're really big -- Sue can echo				false

		1071						LN		41		20		false		20   that, I'm sure.  And I would encourage you -- I know you				false

		1072						LN		41		21		false		21   know Ginger.  Brenda does -- to reach out to Ginger				false

		1073						LN		41		22		false		22   Laurent and try to get on the agenda.  They have these				false

		1074						LN		41		23		false		23   regular training events for lenders, senior lenders, and				false

		1075						LN		41		24		false		24   the like, and where the core lenders from these probably				false

		1076						LN		41		25		false		25   primarily community banks, but you can certainly get				false

		1077						PG		42		0		false		page 42				false

		1078						LN		42		1		false		 1   some of the bigger guys there as well, are all in				false

		1079						LN		42		2		false		 2   attendance and it's right here in Baton Rouge, easy to				false

		1080						LN		42		3		false		 3   access.  You know, Ginger, I think, would work with us				false

		1081						LN		42		4		false		 4   on being placed on the agenda, and I think that could				false

		1082						LN		42		5		false		 5   really help, because the LBA convention, you have the				false

		1083						LN		42		6		false		 6   directors, the CEOs, sort of a different audience.  But				false

		1084						LN		42		7		false		 7   getting right before the lenders themselves in some of				false

		1085						LN		42		8		false		 8   these banks could really make some dividends, so I				false

		1086						LN		42		9		false		 9   really encourage you to do that.				false

		1087						LN		42		10		false		10               MR. BAHAM:				false

		1088						LN		42		11		false		11                   Definitely.				false

		1089						LN		42		12		false		12               MR. ROY:				false

		1090						LN		42		13		false		13                   Sue, do you have anything to add?				false

		1091						LN		42		14		false		14               MS. DURAND:				false

		1092						LN		42		15		false		15                   I want to say that our chief lender				false

		1093						LN		42		16		false		16   attends quarterly meetings in Baton Rouge.  His name is				false

		1094						LN		42		17		false		17   Glenn Decou.				false

		1095						LN		42		18		false		18               MR. ROY:				false

		1096						LN		42		19		false		19                   They do a great job, as Sue's				false

		1097						LN		42		20		false		20   illustrating, and would be a good place to start, or				false

		1098						LN		42		21		false		21   another place, I should say.				false

		1099						LN		42		22		false		22                   Anyone else?				false

		1100						LN		42		23		false		23               (No response.)				false

		1101						LN		42		24		false		24               MR. ROY:				false

		1102						LN		42		25		false		25                   All right.  Mr. Secretary.				false

		1103						PG		43		0		false		page 43				false

		1104						LN		43		1		false		 1               SECRETARY PIERSON:				false

		1105						LN		43		2		false		 2                   Thank you, and as always, thank you for				false

		1106						LN		43		3		false		 3   the important job and the important role that you play				false

		1107						LN		43		4		false		 4   in managing the funds that we make available to				false

		1108						LN		43		5		false		 5   companies that are giving us a commitment to continue				false

		1109						LN		43		6		false		 6   their growth, their job growth, and their investment in				false

		1110						LN		43		7		false		 7   our state, and a great team that deploys that.				false

		1111						LN		43		8		false		 8                   I'll just give you few highlights of				false

		1112						LN		43		9		false		 9   some recent activities at the department.  I'll be happy				false

		1113						LN		43		10		false		10   to answer any questions that you might have, but we're				false

		1114						LN		43		11		false		11   experiencing a lot of very powerful growth in the state				false

		1115						LN		43		12		false		12   at this time.  Just in really the last 30 to 45 days,				false

		1116						LN		43		13		false		13   we've been with the Governor over in Lake Charles for				false

		1117						LN		43		14		false		14   the decommissioning of the Lotte facility.  That is an				false

		1118						LN		43		15		false		15   investment coming to us from Korea of $3.1-billion.				false

		1119						LN		43		16		false		16   That's online now.  We're very pleased with that.				false

		1120						LN		43		17		false		17                   And in that joint venture, also Westlake				false

		1121						LN		43		18		false		18   Chemical, a tremendous amount of activity related to				false

		1122						LN		43		19		false		19   that.  The advanced chemical manufacturing sector has				false

		1123						LN		43		20		false		20   just been very, very strong for our state.				false

		1124						LN		43		21		false		21                   While we have enjoyed a lot of success				false

		1125						LN		43		22		false		22   basically in the Lake Charles area with the Westlake				false

		1126						LN		43		23		false		23   Chemical manufacturing, with LNG facilities that are				false

		1127						LN		43		24		false		24   being put online, we've not forgotten to work hard in				false

		1128						LN		43		25		false		25   other parts of state, so we're really happy to report				false

		1129						PG		44		0		false		page 44				false

		1130						LN		44		1		false		 1   that we were also able to cut the ribbon at the LaSalle				false

		1131						LN		44		2		false		 2   Lumber facility, a computerized saw mill that's in one				false

		1132						LN		44		3		false		 3   of our rural locations and a $115-million investment.				false

		1133						LN		44		4		false		 4   That's a joint venture with a company from Canada, and				false

		1134						LN		44		5		false		 5   115 new direct jobs at that lumber mill facility, but				false

		1135						LN		44		6		false		 6   more importantly, in my mind, is that multiplier effect				false

		1136						LN		44		7		false		 7   that it has doing a great deal for all of those that are				false

		1137						LN		44		8		false		 8   engaged in the timber harvesting, all of the trucking				false

		1138						LN		44		9		false		 9   and mechanics and the work that has to go on in the				false

		1139						LN		44		10		false		10   forest to make all of that come together and work so				false

		1140						LN		44		11		false		11   well.				false

		1141						LN		44		12		false		12                   And so revitalizing and being active in				false

		1142						LN		44		13		false		13   our rural parishes is really something special.  It				false

		1143						LN		44		14		false		14   follows on that we were able to do something very				false

		1144						LN		44		15		false		15   similar, not with the forestry, but with advanced				false

		1145						LN		44		16		false		16   chemical manufacturing with Delek with their				false

		1146						LN		44		17		false		17   $150-million investment in St. Landry Parish, which was				false

		1147						LN		44		18		false		18   also recently announced.  This contact was made by the				false

		1148						LN		44		19		false		19   Governor in his trade mission and business recruit				false

		1149						LN		44		20		false		20   mission to Israel last October, bringing some great web				false

		1150						LN		44		21		false		21   service development activities to our community colleges				false

		1151						LN		44		22		false		22   through this recent announcement with Amazon in forming				false

		1152						LN		44		23		false		23   a relationship with our community technical colleges.				false

		1153						LN		44		24		false		24                   We just talked about a computerized saw				false

		1154						LN		44		25		false		25   mill.  You know, everything is so digital, and this				false

		1155						PG		45		0		false		page 45				false

		1156						LN		45		1		false		 1   transition is being able to bring this kind of				false

		1157						LN		45		2		false		 2   instruction to our universities and community colleges				false

		1158						LN		45		3		false		 3   remains an important focus.				false

		1159						LN		45		4		false		 4                   We participated with the Governor in a				false

		1160						LN		45		5		false		 5   cyber securities symposium and summit in Shreveport.  It				false

		1161						LN		45		6		false		 6   was sponsored in part by the National Governor's				false

		1162						LN		45		7		false		 7   Association, so a tremendous amount of activity coming				false

		1163						LN		45		8		false		 8   in from all over the nation to discuss those important				false

		1164						LN		45		9		false		 9   elements of cyber security and relates to all of the				false

		1165						LN		45		10		false		10   banking and financial professional that are here and,				false

		1166						LN		45		11		false		11   again, just relates back to the broad digital spectrum				false

		1167						LN		45		12		false		12   that's out there that we're seeking to make sure that				false

		1168						LN		45		13		false		13   the state is presented with the opportunities to kind of				false

		1169						LN		45		14		false		14   maintain and grow in that area.				false

		1170						LN		45		15		false		15                   A number of other announcements we've				false

		1171						LN		45		16		false		16   had, just an entire robust, purine of engagement.  We				false

		1172						LN		45		17		false		17   have a strong pipeline, I'm pleased to report to you				false

		1173						LN		45		18		false		18   right now, that some will have the types of programs				false

		1174						LN		45		19		false		19   that you administer being brought forward in the				false

		1175						LN		45		20		false		20   not-too-distant future, sixty-seven projects that are				false

		1176						LN		45		21		false		21   currently being managed by the Business Development				false

		1177						LN		45		22		false		22   Group that Steve referred to, and he did a great job in				false

		1178						LN		45		23		false		23   talking about the important work that our Business and				false

		1179						LN		45		24		false		24   extension Retention Group does.  As part of our strategy				false

		1180						LN		45		25		false		25   in that it's great to talk about new companies that we				false

		1181						PG		46		0		false		page 46				false

		1182						LN		46		1		false		 1   want to recruit to Louisiana, but we know by this very				false

		1183						LN		46		2		false		 2   focused interaction with what we call economic driver				false

		1184						LN		46		3		false		 3   companies.  We select the larger companies, not in the				false

		1185						LN		46		4		false		 4   retail or healthcare services sectors, but those that				false

		1186						LN		46		5		false		 5   are more related to manufacturers, in that, those jobs				false

		1187						LN		46		6		false		 6   have tremendous multiplier effects, and have those				false

		1188						LN		46		7		false		 7   conversations occasionally.  We get to learn that this				false

		1189						LN		46		8		false		 8   plant is in competition with other plants in the US, and				false

		1190						LN		46		9		false		 9   we're able to, through that identification, be very				false

		1191						LN		46		10		false		10   competitive about what we can bring to the table should				false

		1192						LN		46		11		false		11   they choose Louisiana.  And so the BERG group does that.				false

		1193						LN		46		12		false		12                   A sidebar to that is working with the				false

		1194						LN		46		13		false		13   regional organizations to make anywhere from between 600				false

		1195						LN		46		14		false		14   and 800 total calls in a year's time, but by using LED				false

		1196						LN		46		15		false		15   staff and staff that exists out of the regional economic				false

		1197						LN		46		16		false		16   development organizations, all of the data is captured				false

		1198						LN		46		17		false		17   in a customer management software program, and we're				false

		1199						LN		46		18		false		18   able to see trends and things of that nature.  But we're				false

		1200						LN		46		19		false		19   also able to make sure that we have a current database				false

		1201						LN		46		20		false		20   for a lot of these senior executives that are running				false

		1202						LN		46		21		false		21   these companies, and in the event of disaster, whether				false

		1203						LN		46		22		false		22   it's a tornado, flooding, all kinds of operations that				false

		1204						LN		46		23		false		23   can disrupt business were able to play a role in support				false

		1205						LN		46		24		false		24   of business emergency operation centers, and this				false

		1206						LN		46		25		false		25   current base of information and how to reach critical				false

		1207						PG		47		0		false		page 47				false

		1208						LN		47		1		false		 1   executives that are part of these organizations and find				false

		1209						LN		47		2		false		 2   out, you know, how they're being disrupted, they have				false

		1210						LN		47		3		false		 3   power lines down, they have trees down or roads or rail				false

		1211						LN		47		4		false		 4   or water or other types of issues impacting their				false

		1212						LN		47		5		false		 5   facility, we can coordinate to help get people back to				false

		1213						LN		47		6		false		 6   work faster.  And so our Expansion and Retention Group				false

		1214						LN		47		7		false		 7   helps us grow jobs, but at the same time plays a very				false

		1215						LN		47		8		false		 8   important rule in the resilience and recovery efforts				false

		1216						LN		47		9		false		 9   when disaster strikes, and that's sometimes not noted,				false

		1217						LN		47		10		false		10   but I think it's an interesting and important element of				false

		1218						LN		47		11		false		11   their activities.				false

		1219						LN		47		12		false		12                   Legislative session just wrapped up on				false

		1220						LN		47		13		false		13   the 6th of June.  We've not had a lot of focus on				false

		1221						LN		47		14		false		14   economic development programs, per se.  It was a				false

		1222						LN		47		15		false		15   lower-key type of session for us.  Really all of our				false

		1223						LN		47		16		false		16   incentive programs have been reviewed over the last few				false

		1224						LN		47		17		false		17   years.  A number of them have had certainly tweaks,				false

		1225						LN		47		18		false		18   sometimes reductions, but basically they all have sunset				false

		1226						LN		47		19		false		19   features now, which means that they will all be				false

		1227						LN		47		20		false		20   revisited to make sure that they're effective and				false

		1228						LN		47		21		false		21   efficient in doing the kinds of things that the state				false

		1229						LN		47		22		false		22   seeks in order to build a vibrant economy.  So				false

		1230						LN		47		23		false		23   everything from our Quality Jobs Program to our				false

		1231						LN		47		24		false		24   entertainment programs have all been really put under a				false

		1232						LN		47		25		false		25   lot of scrutiny over the last three and a half or so				false

		1233						PG		48		0		false		page 48				false

		1234						LN		48		1		false		 1   years, all are positioned to be effective for the state,				false

		1235						LN		48		2		false		 2   all will remain under evaluation going forward, but we				false

		1236						LN		48		3		false		 3   didn't have a lot of those kind of issues as this				false

		1237						LN		48		4		false		 4   particular session wrapped up.				false

		1238						LN		48		5		false		 5                   Probably the only significant thing I				false

		1239						LN		48		6		false		 6   can report to you is I think that we have maybe $960,000				false

		1240						LN		48		7		false		 7   in our budget request that was not provided to LED, so				false

		1241						LN		48		8		false		 8   we'll be doing some belt tightening in certain parts of				false

		1242						LN		48		9		false		 9   the department.				false

		1243						LN		48		10		false		10                   Some important new initiatives, I'm				false

		1244						LN		48		11		false		11   pleased to say, we were granted some funding which has				false
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·1· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:


·2· · · · · · · · · ·Morning.· I'll call to order the Board


·3· ·of Directors, Louisiana Economic Development


·4· ·Corporation.


·5· · · · · · · · · ·Rollcall, please.


·6· · · · · · · ·MS. SIMMONS:


·7· · · · · · · · · ·Good morning.


·8· · · · · · · · · ·A.J. Roy, III.


·9· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:


10· · · · · · · · · ·Here.


11· · · · · · · ·MS. SIMMONS:


12· · · · · · · · · ·Alden Andre.


13· · · · · · · ·MR. ANDRE:


14· · · · · · · · · ·Here.


15· · · · · · · ·MS. SIMMONS:


16· · · · · · · · · ·Louis Reine.


17· · · · · · · ·(No response.)


18· · · · · · · ·MS. SIMMONS:


19· · · · · · · · · ·Charles E. Jackson, III.


20· · · · · · · ·MR. JACKSON:


21· · · · · · · · · ·Here.


22· · · · · · · ·MS. SIMMONS:


23· · · · · · · · · ·Mandi Mitchell.


24· · · · · · · ·(No response.)


25· · · · · · · ·MS. SIMMONS:
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·1· · · · · · · · · ·Cal Simpson.


·2· · · · · · · ·MR. SIMPSON:


·3· · · · · · · · · ·Here.


·4· · · · · · · ·MS. SIMMONS:


·5· · · · · · · · · ·Nittin Kamath.


·6· · · · · · · ·(No response.)


·7· · · · · · · ·MS. SIMMONS:


·8· · · · · · · · · ·Sue Durand.


·9· · · · · · · ·SECRETARY PIERSON:


10· · · · · · · · · ·She's here.


11· · · · · · · ·MS. SIMMONS:


12· · · · · · · · · ·Kimberly Johnson.


13· · · · · · · ·(No response.)


14· · · · · · · ·MS. SIMMONS:


15· · · · · · · · · ·Todd McDonald.


16· · · · · · · ·(No response.)


17· · · · · · · ·MS. SIMMONS:


18· · · · · · · · · ·Secretary Don Pierson.


19· · · · · · · ·SECRETARY PIERSON:


20· · · · · · · · · ·Here.


21· · · · · · · ·MS. SIMMONS:


22· · · · · · · · · ·We have a quorum.


23· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:


24· · · · · · · · · ·Very good.· Welcome, everyone.· I'll ask


25· ·everyone to please silence your cell phones.
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·1· · · · · · · · · ·The first order of business is the


·2· ·ratification and approval of minutes, and I have a


·3· ·potential duty today.· We need to do a little


·4· ·housekeeping, so bear with me.· I'll be reading from a


·5· ·document so that we get it correctly.


·6· · · · · · · · · ·The LEDC Board and Finance Company (sic)


·7· ·held a meeting on February 14th, 2019; however, the


·8· ·agenda for the meeting was not posted on the LEDC


·9· ·website 24 hours in advance of the meeting as required


10· ·by the Open Meetings Law.· Because actions were taken by


11· ·the Board during the meeting and were held without a


12· ·24-hour advanced posting of the agenda on the LEDC


13· ·website, the Board must ratify and approve all actions


14· ·taken during the February 14th, 2019 meeting.


15· · · · · · · · · ·During the February 14th, 2019 meeting,


16· ·the following actions were taken by the Finance


17· ·Committee:· Agenda Item Number 3, the audit reports,


18· ·finance statements were approved, the finance statement


19· ·as of June the 30th, 2018, and validation of the LEDC


20· ·investments as of June the 30th, 2018.


21· · · · · · · · · ·Let me stop there.


22· · · · · · · · · ·Any questions of what I've said thus


23· ·far?


24· · · · · · · ·(No response.)


25· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:
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·1· · · · · · · · · ·All right.· During the February 14th,


·2· ·2019 meeting, the following actions were taken by the


·3· ·board:· Agenda Item Number 3, approval of the meeting


·4· ·minutes of the LEDC Board meeting held on December the


·5· ·17th, 2018; and Agenda Item Number 4, the approval of


·6· ·the Finance Committee Report; Agenda Item Number 5,


·7· ·Economic Development Award Program extension request by


·8· ·Fuji Oil New Orleans, LLC; Agenda Item Number 6,


·9· ·election of officers, chairperson, vice chairman; Agenda


10· ·Item Number 7, committee appointments from the various


11· ·committees, Executive, Screening, Policy, Finance and


12· ·Government Outreach.


13· · · · · · · · · ·Do I entertain any motions or are there


14· ·any questions from the Board members?


15· · · · · · · ·(No response.)


16· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:


17· · · · · · · · · ·Comments?


18· · · · · · · ·(No response.)


19· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:


20· · · · · · · · · ·Any questions or comments from the


21· ·public?


22· · · · · · · ·(No response.)


23· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:


24· · · · · · · · · ·Hearing none, I will entertain a motion


25· ·to ratify and approve the Finance Committee and the LEDC
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·1· ·Board meetings held on February the 14th, 2019.


·2· · · · · · · ·MR. SIMPSON:


·3· · · · · · · · · ·I move to ratify and approve.


·4· · · · · · · ·MR. ANDRE:


·5· · · · · · · · · ·Second.


·6· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:


·7· · · · · · · · · ·Any discussion?


·8· · · · · · · ·(No response.)


·9· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:


10· · · · · · · · · ·Hearing none, all in favor -- any


11· ·comments from the public?


12· · · · · · · ·(No response.)


13· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:


14· · · · · · · · · ·Hearing none, all in favor, "aye."


15· · · · · · · ·(Several members respond "aye.")


16· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:


17· · · · · · · · · ·All opposed, "nay."


18· · · · · · · ·(No response.)


19· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:


20· · · · · · · · · ·Without objection.


21· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:


22· · · · · · · · · ·All right.· Next order of business is


23· ·the in-house approval of updates.


24· · · · · · · · · ·Good morning.


25· · · · · · · ·MS. DOIN:
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·1· · · · · · · · · ·Good morning.· Marissa Doin.· I have one


·2· ·loan update for y'all today.· This one is from Hancock


·3· ·Whitney Bank out of New Orleans.· The company is


·4· ·Advanced Cutting Solutions.· They're a core kitting


·5· ·company, and they supply core kits used to create wind


·6· ·turbines.


·7· · · · · · · · · ·ACS was formed in 2014, and they began


·8· ·generating revenues in 2016.· In the past 16 months, ACS


·9· ·has seen significant growth and is on the path to


10· ·continue growing.


11· · · · · · · · · ·Hancock Whitney requests a 75 percent


12· ·guaranty on a $250,000 line of credit backed by


13· ·inventories and receivables.· The funds will be used to


14· ·support working capital needs of the company as they


15· ·grow, and staff approved this loan on April 25th.


16· · · · · · · · · ·Are there any questions?


17· · · · · · · ·(No response.)


18· · · · · · · ·MS. DOIN:


19· · · · · · · · · ·Thank you.


20· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:


21· · · · · · · · · ·Thank you.


22· · · · · · · · · ·Next order of business is under the


23· ·Economic Development Award Program, Gramercy Holdings 1,


24· ·LLC, D/B/A Noranda Alumina.


25· · · · · · · · · ·Ms. Bigner.



http://www.torresreporting.com/





Page 9
·1· · · · · · · ·MS. BIGNER:


·2· · · · · · · · · ·Good morning.


·3· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:


·4· · · · · · · · · ·If you could, pull the microphones up.


·5· · · · · · · ·MS. BIGNER:


·6· · · · · · · · · ·Susan Bigner.· This morning we have a


·7· ·request from Gramercy Holdings 1, LLC, doing business as


·8· ·Noranda Alumina for a $1-million unsponsored EDAP.


·9· · · · · · · · · ·The facility is located in Gramercy in


10· ·St. James Parish.· With me are Noranda Bauxite & Alumina


11· ·company representatives, Scott Croft, Stacy Miller and


12· ·Anthony Laura.


13· · · · · · · · · ·In 2018, New Day Aluminum Holdings, LLC


14· ·purchased the alumina line facility in Gramercy along


15· ·with a bauxite facility in Jamaica, which were both in


16· ·bankruptcy at the time.· The Jamaica facility mines and


17· ·ships bauxite, which is the principle ore of aluminum,


18· ·to the Gramercy facility and other New Day facilities.


19· · · · · · · · · ·The St. James facility was built by


20· ·Kaiser Aluminum and Chemicals Corporation in 1958 and


21· ·has been operational ever since.· Operations under


22· ·Noranda began in October of 2016, and the company


23· ·announced a $35-million upgrade and expansion in May of


24· ·2017.· The expansion and upgrades include designing and


25· ·installing equipment to increase productivity, storage
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·1· ·and shipping as well as moving the corporate


·2· ·headquarters to the facility.


·3· · · · · · · · · ·Currently the company is rehabilitating


·4· ·the administrative building for the headquarters and


·5· ·improving residual ponds on the property.· The EDAP will


·6· ·assist with the costs associated with the residual


·7· ·ponds.· The company has to expedite clay from one area


·8· ·of the property, transport it to the pond area and then


·9· ·build up the levee wall six to 10 feet to the permitted


10· ·height of 50 feet.


11· · · · · · · · · ·The company has recently purchased


12· ·refurbished gas turbine generator that will be used as


13· ·collateral for the unsponsored EDAP, and Gramercy


14· ·Holdings will guaranty all commitments.


15· · · · · · · · · ·Since the project was announced in 2017,


16· ·the company has commenced hiring employees and investing


17· ·CapEx.· The 42.9 projected cost listed in the EDAP


18· ·application exceeds the $35-million CapEx announced in


19· ·2017.· As of the end of March, the company imported


20· ·approximately 430 employees; therefore, it is expected


21· ·that the company will meet or exceed their first year


22· ·requirements of 432 employees with an approximate annual


23· ·payroll of 27.3-million.


24· · · · · · · · · ·Staff recommends approval of the


25· ·unsponsored EDAP for $1-million with the normal
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·1· ·contingencies listed in the term sheet.· The company has


·2· ·agreed to retain approximately 395 jobs with an


·3· ·associated annual payroll increased annually by two


·4· ·percent while creating 65 new jobs with an estimated


·5· ·annual payroll of 7.1-million by 2025.· Of the 65 new


·6· ·jobs, 15 are expected to be headquarter jobs.


·7· · · · · · · · · ·If the required jobs are created and


·8· ·retained at the stipulated annual payroll, then the EDAP


·9· ·will be considered satisfied.· However, if the company


10· ·does not create the projected jobs and payroll on an


11· ·annual basis, the unearned credit balance for that year


12· ·will be due and payable to LEDC plus interest.· All


13· ·credits will be based on payroll.


14· · · · · · · · · ·At this time, I'm going to ask the


15· ·company representatives to tell you a little bit about


16· ·the project.


17· · · · · · · ·MR. LAURA:


18· · · · · · · · · ·Thank you.· I'd like to introduce Scott


19· ·Croft, the company Chief Operating Officer.


20· · · · · · · ·MR. CROFT:


21· · · · · · · · · ·Good morning.· Can everybody hear me


22· ·okay?


23· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:


24· · · · · · · · · ·Good morning.


25· · · · · · · ·MR. CROFT:
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·1· · · · · · · · · ·As Anthony mentioned, I'm Scott Croft,


·2· ·Chief Operating Officer of Noranda Bauxite Alumina, and


·3· ·I'm one of those jobs Susan referred to.· I just joined


·4· ·the company in February, and certainly happy to be here


·5· ·and happy to help contribute.


·6· · · · · · · · · ·I'm happy to answer any questions you


·7· ·have about the project, but I just really wanted to


·8· ·thank the Board for the consideration to help us


·9· ·continue our growth story and really to add to that


10· ·sustainable platform, which we're building down in


11· ·Gramercy.· It really is something to see and something


12· ·we can all be proud of for Louisiana.


13· · · · · · · · · ·I'm happy to answer any questions.· This


14· ·project is teed up, ready to go as we are sort of


15· ·working through some of the final contract negotiations


16· ·as we sit here.· And Susan captured it quite well.


17· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:


18· · · · · · · · · ·Secretary.


19· · · · · · · ·SECRETARY PIERSON:


20· · · · · · · · · ·I don't have a question.· I just wanted


21· ·to give a corresponding thank you for the efforts being


22· ·made and presented here.· On the one hand, you would


23· ·have a bankruptcy, 395 workers going home and looking


24· ·for new work in our state, but with this company


25· ·stepping up and pledging to invest more than 35-million
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·1· ·on the site, retain all of those workers and then bring


·2· ·us and ramping an additional 65 jobs in the coming years


·3· ·and already making great progress against those goals,


·4· ·it's a tremendous credit to the company for their


·5· ·confidence.


·6· · · · · · · · · ·And I'd like to also point out that our


·7· ·team is out there working to find opportunities like


·8· ·this, to not only -- you know, you read about all the


·9· ·new companies that we're able to bring in the state, but


10· ·to working with our existing companies, and in this


11· ·case, be able to revitalize those efforts is


12· ·tremendously important.· So thank you.


13· · · · · · · ·MR. CROFT:


14· · · · · · · · · ·Thank you.


15· · · · · · · ·MR. LAURA:


16· · · · · · · · · ·Thank you.


17· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:


18· · · · · · · · · ·Anything else, or perhaps questions or


19· ·comments from the Board?


20· · · · · · · ·(No response.)


21· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:


22· · · · · · · · · ·Board members?


23· · · · · · · ·(No response.)


24· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:


25· · · · · · · · · ·What's the pleasure of the Board?
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·1· · · · · · · ·MR. JACKSON:


·2· · · · · · · · · ·I move that we accept this proposal.


·3· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:


·4· · · · · · · · · ·Motion for acceptance as presented.


·5· · · · · · · ·MS. DURAND:


·6· · · · · · · · · ·I second that.


·7· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:


·8· · · · · · · · · ·Second.


·9· · · · · · · · · ·Any discussion?


10· · · · · · · ·(No response.)


11· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:


12· · · · · · · · · ·Hearing none, all in favor, "aye."


13· · · · · · · ·(Several members respond "aye.")


14· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:


15· · · · · · · · · ·All opposed, "nay."


16· · · · · · · ·(No response.)


17· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:


18· · · · · · · · · ·Without objection.


19· · · · · · · · · ·Congratulations.· Please keep us posted


20· ·on your successes.· We always like to hear about that.


21· · · · · · · ·MR. CROFT:


22· · · · · · · · · ·Absolutely.· Thank you very much.


23· · · · · · · ·MR. LAURA:


24· · · · · · · · · ·Thank you very much.


25· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:
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·1· · · · · · · · · ·Were there any comments from the public


·2· ·on that?


·3· · · · · · · ·(No response.)


·4· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:


·5· · · · · · · · · ·Next order of business, the Treasurer's


·6· ·Report, Ms. Villa.


·7· · · · · · · ·MS. VILLA:


·8· · · · · · · · · ·Good morning.· Anne Villa,


·9· ·Undersecretary for Louisiana Economic Development


10· ·presenting the Secretary Treasurer's Report as of May


11· ·31st, 2019.


12· · · · · · · · · ·In summary, our total budget for Fy '19


13· ·is $10,538,938.· We have approved and projected


14· ·expenditures of $3,135,443, and we just had the Board


15· ·approval of a million-dollar project, so that gives us


16· ·an anticipated balance of 6,403,495.


17· · · · · · · · · ·We still have a project under review of


18· ·375,000, so we have a projected year-end balance of


19· ·6,028,495.· Details of that consists of State Small


20· ·Business Credit Initiative and/or Financial Assistance


21· ·Program, which had a budget of 2,092,796.· I'm sorry.


22· ·$2,092,737.· And we had approved project expenditures of


23· ·624,443.· We don't have any projects under review


24· ·currently, so we have a projected balance of 1,468,354.


25· · · · · · · · · ·Regarding our Capital Outlay
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·1· ·Appropriation for our EDAP programs and our EDRED


·2· ·programs, we had a budget of $8,446,141.· We had


·3· ·approved and projected expenditures of 2,511,000, and


·4· ·with the project that was just approved, we have a


·5· ·balance of 4,935,141.· And we do have a couple of


·6· ·projects that are under review that equate to 375,000,


·7· ·so we have a projected balance of 4,560,141.


·8· · · · · · · · · ·You'll see the note at the bottom there


·9· ·that for our FY '19 budget, we did have a return of


10· ·appropriation from a project of 1,235,000, so that's


11· ·accounted for as well.


12· · · · · · · · · ·Just for, I guess, for notification, we


13· ·ended the session last week, and I'll take the


14· ·opportunity now to let you know that for your EDAP


15· ·program, we do have $7-million worth of cash that was


16· ·given to in HBII in the Capital Outlay bill for our


17· ·projects, so for the Secretary's discretion to use for


18· ·upcoming projects, the ones that are in the pipeline,


19· ·and to meet any obligations we may have in FY '20 year.


20· ·So that's actually better than getting either Priority 1


21· ·or Priority 5 dollars, so it gives us -- the Secretary


22· ·some discretion to use that for big projects that he may


23· ·have in the pipeline.· So I wanted to give you a brief


24· ·update on that.


25· · · · · · · · · ·And regarding our Fund Balance, which is
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·1· ·the last page of the report, our FY '19 projected Fund


·2· ·Balance available is $14,947,976 and we have


·3· ·expenditures expected of 12,027,483, which would leave


·4· ·us an Appropriation Fund balance of 2,920,483.· I have


·5· ·to increase the size a little bit.· 493.· Sorry.


·6· ·2,920,493 is our expected balance at the end.


·7· · · · · · · · · ·Any questions?


·8· · · · · · · ·(No response.)


·9· · · · · · · ·MS. VILLA:


10· · · · · · · · · ·Okay.· Thank you.


11· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:


12· · · · · · · · · ·Questions, comments?


13· · · · · · · ·(No response.)


14· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:


15· · · · · · · · · ·Hearing none, I'll entertain a motion to


16· ·accept the Treasurer's Report.


17· · · · · · · ·MR. ANDRE:


18· · · · · · · · · ·So moved.


19· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:


20· · · · · · · · · ·Motion.


21· · · · · · · ·MR. JACKSON:


22· · · · · · · · · ·Second.


23· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:


24· · · · · · · · · ·Second.


25· · · · · · · · · ·Any discussion?
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·1· · · · · · · ·(No response.)


·2· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:


·3· · · · · · · · · ·Without objection.


·4· · · · · · · · · ·Any comments from the public?


·5· · · · · · · ·(No response.)


·6· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:


·7· · · · · · · · · ·All in favor, "aye."


·8· · · · · · · ·(Several members respond "aye.")


·9· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:


10· · · · · · · · · ·All opposed, "nay."


11· · · · · · · ·(No response.)


12· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:


13· · · · · · · · · ·Without objection.


14· · · · · · · · · ·Next order of business, the Accountant's


15· ·Report.


16· · · · · · · ·MS. DALGO:


17· · · · · · · · · ·Good morning.· Crystal Dalgo.· I'll be


18· ·presenting to you the LEDC Accountant's Status Report as


19· ·of April 30th, 2019.


20· · · · · · · · · ·We'll start off with the EDAP Loan


21· ·Portfolio, it totals $994,572.· There are currently


22· ·three loans under this portfolio that consist of the


23· ·Town of Colfax, the City of Bastrop and Morgan City.


24· ·Morgan City is set to make their final payment by the


25· ·end of July this year.
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·1· · · · · · · · · ·The allowance for the EDAP loans is set


·2· ·at 15 percent, and it totals $139,186.


·3· · · · · · · · · ·Next on there is the SSBCI Guaranty Loan


·4· ·Portfolio.· It totals $4,838,273.· There are currently


·5· ·16 loans under this portfolio.· Two of the loans, C.


·6· ·Boutte Enterprises and Acadian Cypress are listed as


·7· ·high-risk loans, and they're being carried at 100


·8· ·percent.


·9· · · · · · · · · ·The allowance for the SSBCI Guaranty


10· ·Loan Losses is calculated at 18 percent for the current


11· ·accounts and 100 percent on high-risk loans.· So as of


12· ·April 30th, 2019, the allowance totals $1,713,108.


13· · · · · · · · · ·And that concludes the report for the


14· ·EDAP and SSBCI portfolios.


15· · · · · · · · · ·Are there any questions?


16· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:


17· · · · · · · · · ·Questions, comments?


18· · · · · · · ·(No response.)


19· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:


20· · · · · · · · · ·Motion to accept the Accountant's


21· ·Report?


22· · · · · · · ·MR. SIMPSON:


23· · · · · · · · · ·Motion.


24· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:


25· · · · · · · · · ·Second?
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·1· · · · · · · ·MR. JACKSON:


·2· · · · · · · · · ·Second.


·3· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:


·4· · · · · · · · · ·Any discussions?


·5· · · · · · · ·(No response.)


·6· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:


·7· · · · · · · · · ·Hearing none, all in favor, "aye."


·8· · · · · · · ·(Several members respond "aye.")


·9· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:


10· · · · · · · · · ·All opposed, "nay."


11· · · · · · · ·(No response.)


12· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:


13· · · · · · · · · ·Without objection.· Thank you.


14· · · · · · · ·MS. DALGO:


15· · · · · · · · · ·Welcome.


16· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:


17· · · · · · · · · ·Any comments from the public?


18· · · · · · · ·(No response.)


19· · · · · · · ·MR. BAHAM:


20· · · · · · · · · ·Mr. A.J., I just passed out an


21· ·additional sheet to the Accountant's Report.· At the


22· ·previous meeting back in February, it was requested we


23· ·give an explanation of our current net asset position


24· ·for LEDC over the previous four years, and that's -- our


25· ·accountants, Crystal and Molly, put this together to
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·1· ·show our balances since Fiscal Year '14 all of the way


·2· ·through Fiscal '18, and I just wanted to give the


·3· ·information to the Board really quickly while I've still


·4· ·got Crystal up here to help me explain some of this


·5· ·stuff.


·6· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:


·7· · · · · · · · · ·This was -- just to refresh everyone,


·8· ·this is something that we requested staff to produce in


·9· ·the past, and so we appreciate you doing so.


10· · · · · · · · · ·Who's going to explain it?


11· · · · · · · ·MR. BAHAM:


12· · · · · · · · · ·You want me to go ahead?


13· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:


14· · · · · · · · · ·Or hit the high points?


15· · · · · · · ·MR. BAHAM:


16· · · · · · · · · ·I'll just give you some highlights if


17· ·you'd like.


18· · · · · · · · · ·You'll notice, just looking at it in


19· ·general, from Fiscal Year '14 all of way through Fiscal


20· ·Year '18, just looking at the total assets, you'll


21· ·notice that right off the bat they've gone down from


22· ·74-million down to approximately just under 50-million.


23· · · · · · · · · ·To highlight some of the reasons as to


24· ·why and give you an explanation as to why that is


25· ·occurring, if you look under "Current Assets," the third
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·1· ·line down, "Due From Other Funds," you'll notice back in


·2· ·Fiscal Year '14, it was at 21-and-a-half-million, and at


·3· ·the end of Fiscal Year '18, it was at 4.7-million.· This


·4· ·is due to our reduction in Capital Outlay Funds that are


·5· ·associated with the EDAP program.· So that is something


·6· ·that, as Ms. Villa pointed out earlier, we get


·7· ·appropriated every year from the legislature of these


·8· ·funds, and over the years, these funds have dwindled


·9· ·down a little bit due to budget constraints from the


10· ·legislature and so forth.· So we're working off of a


11· ·little bit less money than what we've had in the past.


12· · · · · · · · · ·Following further down, if you look


13· ·under "Noncurrent Assets," you'll notice under the first


14· ·line there, "Investments," in Fiscal Year '18 (sic), we


15· ·ended with 28-billion approximately in investment


16· ·dollars, and in Fiscal Year '18, we ended with just


17· ·21-billion.· That difference, what we attributed it to,


18· ·is back in Fiscal Year '14, we were -- our investments


19· ·have returned.· The returned investments have not been


20· ·as profitable as we had thought they would have been or


21· ·what we put into them, so that gives an explanation as


22· ·to why the investments have gone down some.


23· · · · · · · · · ·Also, some of those investments have


24· ·been moved to the cash category as they come back, and


25· ·if you notice, back in the "Current Assets," the cash
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·1· ·pretty much stays approximately the same.· So we've


·2· ·exited some investments.· Some of them have not come


·3· ·back as we had hoped in years past, but we do have some


·4· ·on the horizon hopefully that we will be able to, you


·5· ·know, recoup some of that money as well.


·6· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:


·7· · · · · · · · · ·Do you have a breakdown of the


·8· ·categories, not necessarily the individual investments,


·9· ·but the categories that, you know, comprise the


10· ·definition of investments?


11· · · · · · · ·MR. BAHAM:


12· · · · · · · · · ·Crystal may be able to help me with that


13· ·a little bit more.


14· · · · · · · · · ·To my knowledge, the investments are


15· ·those long-term Venture Capital investments that were


16· ·made years and years ago that we still on have on the


17· ·books.· The majority of them were done in the early


18· ·2000s, which a lot of those funds are in their wind-down


19· ·stage.


20· · · · · · · · · ·At this point in time, we do expect over


21· ·the next few years to have a lot of those close out.


22· ·We've actually been working -- Chaffe is getting ready


23· ·to do their valuations on those at the end of this


24· ·Fiscal Year again, and when we do the Chaffe reports in


25· ·the Finance Committee in January, it will possibly be a
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·1· ·lot clearer at that point.


·2· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:


·3· · · · · · · · · ·It's solely Venture Capital?


·4· · · · · · · ·MR. BAHAM:


·5· · · · · · · · · ·It's mostly Venture Capital, and a lot


·6· ·of it is SSBCI funds that we have injected now and --


·7· ·now, those are brand new funds since 2011, so those are


·8· ·going to be on the books for a little while until some


·9· ·of those funds start to close out, but that's nearly,


10· ·I'd say, 100 percent.· There is one existing, BIDCO,


11· ·still that we carry on the books from the early/mid-90s


12· ·that still has an active license and still making loans,


13· ·so that is the only other thing other than the Venture


14· ·Capital investments that are showing up in that


15· ·"Investment" category.· So instead of breaking it down


16· ·by fund or individual investments, that's why it's just


17· ·lumped into one big category as "Investments," and


18· ·they're obviously long-term assets.


19· · · · · · · ·MS. DALGO:


20· · · · · · · · · ·The Certificates of Deposits, 7.4, in


21· ·CDs is in that.


22· · · · · · · ·MR. BAHAM:


23· · · · · · · · · ·That's also in there.


24· · · · · · · · · ·So whenever we do a guaranteed loan, we


25· ·take a portion of that guaranty and we put it either
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·1· ·into a CD set aside or into a money market account, so


·2· ·that is also included in there as well.


·3· · · · · · · · · ·Thank you, Crystal.


·4· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:


·5· · · · · · · · · ·And so with respect to the Venture


·6· ·Capital, perhaps, BIDCO investment, that number would


·7· ·reflect Chaffe's description of what the value is as of


·8· ·those specific dates?


·9· · · · · · · ·MR. BAHAM:


10· · · · · · · · · ·Well, it should reflect it directly.· If


11· ·we go back to Fiscal Year '18, it should show that


12· ·value, because when Chaffe does their valuation, the


13· ·legislative auditor that's doing our audit of our


14· ·financials at the same time uses their valuation numbers


15· ·to reflect those investments dollars.· So, yes, to


16· ·answer your question, in short, because they work very


17· ·closely together because the auditor doesn't finish


18· ·their report until the Chaffe valuation is done.


19· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:


20· · · · · · · · · ·Any other questions?


21· · · · · · · · · ·Yes, sir.


22· · · · · · · ·MR. JACKSON:


23· · · · · · · · · ·Yes, just to clarify, obviously the


24· ·Venture funds are returning or they're suffering market


25· ·adjustments and things like that.
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·1· · · · · · · ·MR. BAHAM:


·2· · · · · · · · · ·Right.


·3· · · · · · · ·MR. JACKSON:


·4· · · · · · · · · ·But in general, shifts in our Fund


·5· ·Balance could also just be the fact that while we get


·6· ·those moneys appropriated from the legislature, we do


·7· ·the EDAPs and the EDREDs and stuff, those are actually


·8· ·expended back out.


·9· · · · · · · ·MR. BAHAM:


10· · · · · · · · · ·Correct.


11· · · · · · · ·MR. JACKSON:


12· · · · · · · · · ·So our Fund Balance could be declining


13· ·slightly because we're not receiving as much of an


14· ·appropriation to then be put out.


15· · · · · · · ·MR. BAHAM:


16· · · · · · · · · ·That's correct.


17· · · · · · · · · ·And if you scroll down to the bottom


18· ·there underneath the "Net Asset Position," you'll see


19· ·the different categories are "Restricted" and


20· ·"Unrestricted," and that is reflecting in those two


21· ·categories how it's balancing out.· The "Restricted"


22· ·account is made up of all of these EDAP balances from


23· ·previous years.· So like in Fiscal Year '14, we had a


24· ·little over 6-million in the restricted account.· Those


25· ·are committed funds to those projects that have been
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·1· ·approved this fiscal year that have just have not been


·2· ·expended yet.· The project maybe is a multiyear-phased


·3· ·project or it was approved close to the end of that


·4· ·current fiscal year, so the funds may have been


·5· ·committed in a previous fiscal year, but won't be


·6· ·expended until the following year.· So that does kind of


·7· ·play into it also because we're still carrying those


·8· ·funds on our books, even though they're committed, the


·9· ·legislature sees that you have "X" number of dollars out


10· ·there, so we're only going to commit this much because


11· ·of however.· I don't know if they have -- a lot of times


12· ·it's just gut feeling or restricted by the state budget.


13· · · · · · · ·MS. VILLA:


14· · · · · · · · · ·Right.· Just to kind of add to what


15· ·Steve just said, for the past probably three to four


16· ·years, we've been working very closely with them on what


17· ·our true needs were to meet our obligations.· So in


18· ·prior years before, you know, we were faced with the


19· ·fiscal position that we were faced with, we were


20· ·automatically getting, you know, the $10-million of EDAP


21· ·just routinely given to the department to use, but


22· ·because of the situation we were in with HBII with


23· ·meeting the limits of it, so we would always work with


24· ·them very closely saying "What truly is your cash --


25· ·What truly are your cash needs?"· And so that's what we
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·1· ·were faced with, you know, during the past years.


·2· · · · · · · ·MR. JACKSON:


·3· · · · · · · · · ·Right.· I guess what I'm getting at is


·4· ·while fund balance is important for a business,


·5· ·obviously you'd like to see that increasing because


·6· ·you're making money, we're really more investing it into


·7· ·the state, it doesn't stay on our books.


·8· · · · · · · ·MS. VILLA:


·9· · · · · · · · · ·That's correct.


10· · · · · · · ·MR. JACKSON:


11· · · · · · · · · ·So the level of our Fund Balance in any


12· ·particular year relative to other years is not


13· ·necessarily a cause for alarm.


14· · · · · · · ·MS. VILLA:


15· · · · · · · · · ·Right.


16· · · · · · · ·MR. JACKSON:


17· · · · · · · · · ·It's just a change in the way the funds


18· ·are coming together.


19· · · · · · · ·MR. BAHAM:


20· · · · · · · · · ·That's correct.


21· · · · · · · ·MR. JACKSON:


22· · · · · · · · · ·Thank you.


23· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:


24· · · · · · · · · ·Any other questions or comments at this


25· ·point?
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·1· · · · · · · · · ·I have one more.· Under "Investments,"


·2· ·you said that that number reflects the CDs


·3· ·accumulatively.· Do we have an indication or


·4· ·breakdown -- and, of course, those are pledged for


·5· ·guarantees; right?


·6· · · · · · · ·MS. DALGO:


·7· · · · · · · · · ·Correct.


·8· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:


·9· · · · · · · · · ·So do we have a breakdown of the


10· ·Guaranty Program for that year period of time and what


11· ·is happening in that respect?


12· · · · · · · ·MS. DALGO:


13· · · · · · · · · ·Yes, we do.


14· · · · · · · ·MS. VILLA:


15· · · · · · · · · ·We can have that at the next meeting.


16· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:


17· · · · · · · · · ·I'd be interested to look at that and


18· ·see where we were and where we are now.


19· · · · · · · ·MS. DALGO:


20· · · · · · · · · ·And the number for the value of the CDs


21· ·have stayed the same consistently over the years on here


22· ·after we had moved some to the money market account, so


23· ·it's not a fluctuating number, but the guarantees, we do


24· ·have that.· I can get back to you.


25· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:
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·1· · · · · · · · · ·Okay.· Yes.· So maybe I think we changed


·2· ·the formula at some point, I can't remember when, for


·3· ·the pledging.


·4· · · · · · · ·MR. BAHAM:


·5· · · · · · · · · ·I think it was when we received the


·6· ·SSBCI funds, part of the requirement on that Federal


·7· ·program was to try to obtain a 10-to-1 match, I believe,


·8· ·or leverage, and so to accomplish that, anytime we


·9· ·guaranty a loan, we would take 25 percent of that


10· ·guaranteed amount, instead of the full 100 percent that


11· ·we had done in the past, we put that in a CD so that


12· ·we're basically getting the 4-to-1 leverage on our


13· ·guaranteed loans.· And then the anticipation was with


14· ·the 4-to-1 on the guaranty and then the equity


15· ·investment, which also counts towards the leveraged


16· ·dollars, and then a portion of those SSBCI were put into


17· ·the VC investment, which also has a 20 percent


18· ·requirement of additional equity or more.· So we were


19· ·pushing -- I think our final leverage numbers at the end


20· ·of the '17 year in March when SSBCI closed was pushing


21· ·8-to-1.· So with the bulk of it being still tied up in


22· ·investments, they had not yet matured.· We feel after


23· ·those investments return, we'll hit that 10-to-1, and we


24· ·still have unspent SSBCI dollars that we still have yet


25· ·to leverage.
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·1· · · · · · · · · ·So, but, to answer your question, we did


·2· ·reduce it down to 25 percent.


·3· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:


·4· · · · · · · · · ·Right.· And given that I was focusing on


·5· ·the Guaranty Program, if we could -- I think it would be


·6· ·nice to see what's happened on the dollar of the loans


·7· ·that we've guaranteed throughout time, so if you could


·8· ·give that to us, I think that would be beneficial.· The


·9· ·CDs are indicative of some of that, and I appreciate it,


10· ·but we changed the formula, et cetera, so that's


11· ·probably not a number we want to focus on.· So if we


12· ·have a description of the guarantees themselves total.


13· · · · · · · ·MS. VILLA:


14· · · · · · · · · ·Yes.· We have -- the team does a great


15· ·job of giving internally LED a report on all of our


16· ·EDAPs every six months, and we just completed that about


17· ·six weeks ago, Susan?· So we have a pretty detailed


18· ·report that we can kind of share, you know, with the


19· ·Board.


20· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:


21· · · · · · · · · ·So, I mean, the EDAP would be nice to


22· ·see as well, but --


23· · · · · · · ·MS. VILLA:


24· · · · · · · · · ·That's what I'm referring to is the


25· ·EDAP.· And we also, as a matter of fact, I have a
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·1· ·meeting tomorrow on the investments that we're going to


·2· ·be doing as well, so we can most definitely share that


·3· ·with the Board.


·4· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:


·5· · · · · · · · · ·Okay.· So guarantees and EDAPs will be


·6· ·good.


·7· · · · · · · · · ·Anything else to add?


·8· · · · · · · ·MR. BAHAM:


·9· · · · · · · · · ·That's all I have unless you have


10· ·anymore questions.


11· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:


12· · · · · · · · · ·Any other questions from the Board?


13· ·Comments?


14· · · · · · · ·(No response.)


15· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:


16· · · · · · · · · ·All right.· Thank you.


17· · · · · · · ·MS. DALGO:


18· · · · · · · · · ·Thank you.


19· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:


20· · · · · · · · · ·All right.· It's nice to have the


21· ·Secretary with us today.· I know he's a very busy man,


22· ·and I look forward to hearing his report.


23· · · · · · · ·MS. VILLA:


24· · · · · · · · · ·Steve, did you have anything else that


25· ·you wanted to update the Board on?· I noticed you
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·1· ·included the marketing update.


·2· · · · · · · ·MR. BAHAM:


·3· · · · · · · · · ·We can just present -- we were at the


·4· ·President's Report, but I can go ahead --


·5· · · · · · · ·MS. VILLA:


·6· · · · · · · · · ·No, no, that's fine.


·7· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:


·8· · · · · · · · · ·My mistake.· I'm jumping ahead because


·9· ·the Secretary is sitting on the side of me, but, anyway,


10· ·let's let you finish on the marketing side.


11· · · · · · · ·MR. BAHAM:


12· · · · · · · · · ·Every six months or so we just do a


13· ·semi-annual update on our marketing efforts for Small


14· ·Business Loan Guaranty, and in your packet, I've


15· ·provided a short, two-page comparison.· What we decided


16· ·to do was take -- this is our year '18 effort that we


17· ·had done from June 1st of -- July 1st of 2017 through


18· ·June 30th of 2018 and compare it from the Fiscal Year of


19· ·'19.· And so for July 1st of 2018 through -- not quite a


20· ·full 12 months, but 11 months, through the end of May of


21· ·2019.


22· · · · · · · · · ·And if you look at the chart, back in


23· ·2018, we touched approximately -- when I say "we


24· ·touched," we physically met with either one-on-one or in


25· ·a bank conference room with several different bankers,
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·1· ·answering questions, going through projects or with a


·2· ·chamber in their meeting rooms -- 288 individuals or


·3· ·lenders or CPA professionals and the like, business


·4· ·owners as well are included in that.· And in 2019, for


·5· ·comparison purposes, we actually have gone up, minus one


·6· ·month, to 357 individuals.· The differences that you can


·7· ·see there is back through Fiscal Year 2018 and prior


·8· ·years to that, our marketing efforts were concentrated


·9· ·on strictly traditional bank lenders, third-party


10· ·lenders and credit unions, and that's always been our


11· ·main focus because that's who utilizes the program.· And


12· ·that's all fine and good, but because of our activity


13· ·had not been to where we need it to be or want it to be,


14· ·we decided in 2019 Fiscal Year that we're going to shift


15· ·the focus to not just hit our bankers, but also put more


16· ·of an emphasis and an effort on hitting our economic


17· ·development allies, our local business chambers and also


18· ·our business owners.


19· · · · · · · · · ·There's another area that we made a huge


20· ·effort, and staff has gone out into local communities


21· ·and been a part of local B&I groups and local chamber


22· ·meetings and just getting an on-the-ground level with


23· ·local mom and pop businesses, you know, that do


24· ·everyday, the bakers, the hair salons, the -- even auto


25· ·dealerships, I believe.· So they're meeting with anybody
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·1· ·and everybody, either if they own a business or even


·2· ·contemplating owning a business.


·3· · · · · · · · · ·We also worked very closely with our


·4· ·SBDCs across the state because they work with the


·5· ·business owners or entrepreneurs or soon-to


·6· ·entrepreneurs on a regular basis, and that explains a


·7· ·lot of the differences in our numbers here and how we've


·8· ·been able to hit so many people in a shorter amount of


·9· ·time here in Fiscal Year '19.


10· · · · · · · · · ·To give you an example of how we're


11· ·still touching our banks is if you look at 2018, we


12· ·brought to the attention of some of these new lenders,


13· ·and these aren't just individual lenders, these are new


14· ·banks that we counted approximately 37 in Fiscal Year


15· ·'18 were unique, individual banks that we had not


16· ·touched either in the previous year or the year before,


17· ·so two to three years we had not gone to that bank.· And


18· ·in Fiscal Year '19, in our efforts, while we were


19· ·focusing on outside of the lending community, we still


20· ·had to communicate with our banks.· So what we did was


21· ·we said, "Well, we are going to focus more on these


22· ·banks like we did in '18 to touch more of those banks


23· ·that hadn't heard about the program and hadn't seen it


24· ·in a couple years."· And we hit 25 new ones in that same


25· ·time period.· So while we're hitting less banks as far
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·1· ·as the one-on-one handshake and educating them on the


·2· ·program and trying to develop new relationships, we're


·3· ·still hitting new banks that we're developing these


·4· ·relationships with.


·5· · · · · · · · · ·We're starting to see the fruits of


·6· ·that.· Just this week -- I know our Secretary


·7· ·Treasurer's Report indicated that we didn't have any


·8· ·projects under review right now, but that was as of May


·9· ·31st.· Just this first two weeks of -- not even two full


10· ·weeks of June, we've got two applications in, I think


11· ·one last week and one early this week, for loans.· And


12· ·then we are expected to get another loan application in


13· ·by the end of today, and that loan, we're really excited


14· ·about because I think it's going to be a really nice


15· ·one.


16· · · · · · · · · ·We also have a fourth loan that I've


17· ·been working with a bank here in Baton Rouge to try to


18· ·secure.· It's actually a bank that's used the program


19· ·several times before, but hadn't in a couple years, so


20· ·we're trying to rekindle that relationship.· So we're


21· ·making headway, and we're trying different things to get


22· ·some activity going.· The new route seems to be getting


23· ·a little more attraction, and we're at least driving


24· ·interest because we've noticed that anytime we talk to a


25· ·business owner or a potential business owner, they learn
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·1· ·about the program, they're going knocking on their


·2· ·banker's doors with some papers and business cards and


·3· ·saying, "Here, call these guys."· And a lot of banks do.


·4· ·We're getting calls from banks that we typically would


·5· ·not work with or haven't really given us that much look


·6· ·in the past, the banks that are on that mid-tier level


·7· ·that meet more of a regional focus.· The community banks


·8· ·have always been the biggest users of our program, but


·9· ·we're starting to see some activity from these more


10· ·regionalized banks about the size of like a Hancock


11· ·Whitney.· They're starting to ask more questions and


12· ·spitball more potential projects with us.


13· · · · · · · · · ·So another big thing that we have


14· ·focused on is working internally with our BERG group in


15· ·particular.· The project earlier today was actually


16· ·brought by one of our BERG members, Charlie, and he and


17· ·the rest of BERG team has been very, very influential in


18· ·bringing especially two of the new four projects that we


19· ·have potential applications on right now, so that has


20· ·been another big success for us.


21· · · · · · · · · ·So with the staff, with myself and two


22· ·and a half other people, we're trying to cover the state


23· ·as much as possible, and we're touching a lot more


24· ·people by going to these, especially these B&I groups


25· ·and local chamber meetings, we're able to hit a lot more
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·1· ·people at one time, and we've had a lot of success with


·2· ·that.· And, of course, every other year we attend the


·3· ·LBA Banker's Association annual meeting, and that's


·4· ·always a big, big plus for us because for the next few


·5· ·weeks after that, we're constantly getting phone calls


·6· ·from new banks.· And what we've noticed, I know over the


·7· ·past 10 to 15 years, we've had a lot of changeover.


·8· ·You, yourself, may have this, Mr. Roy.· A lot of banks


·9· ·that have been in the industry for many, many years are


10· ·starting to retire and they're, you know, moving on, and


11· ·a new set of bankers are starting to take their place


12· ·and a lot of these new bankers are very, very green.


13· ·And banking has changed, especially over the last 10 to


14· ·15 years.· It's not as much of a -- it used to be a


15· ·traditional loan officer not only went out and found


16· ·that deal and worked with that client and built that


17· ·relationship, but they underwrote practically the whole


18· ·loan, pitched it to the committee and did the servicing


19· ·for the most part.· Today it's clanged differently where


20· ·it's in the house of underwriters at the main office and


21· ·a front guy that's the loan officers really just going


22· ·out there doing the marketing.· So we're having to


23· ·adjust our style a little bit.· We're trying to use the


24· ·loan officers to get us in the door and get us a


25· ·sit-down with the underwriters so we can actually
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·1· ·explain the program in detail to them, but have the loan


·2· ·officer go and sell it.


·3· · · · · · · · · ·It's a big relationship game, and staff


·4· ·has been doing a really good job of staying on top of


·5· ·that, so I've got to tip my hat to them.· In just 11


·6· ·months, I knew that we were hitting more people, but


·7· ·until you actually crunch the numbers, you really


·8· ·don't -- you really don't see it.· We're hitting quite


·9· ·almost a full 100 more people than what we did, and


10· ·that's in 11 month's time.


11· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:


12· · · · · · · · · ·Any questions or comments?


13· · · · · · · ·MR. JACKSON:


14· · · · · · · · · ·BERG group?


15· · · · · · · ·MR. BAHAM:


16· · · · · · · · · ·It's LED's Business Expansion and


17· ·Retention Group.· So we have essentially two different


18· ·groups or three different groups.· We have international


19· ·and we have our traditional marking group that goes out


20· ·and finds companies to come in or that are relocating


21· ·here.· BERG group focuses on homegrown businesses.· They


22· ·go out to the communities, they tap on the doors and


23· ·they find needs and they're meeting with companies every


24· ·single day, multiple companies.· And Secretary is very,


25· ·very familiar with what they do, probably more so than
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·1· ·what I am.· But we decided if we're going to focus on


·2· ·meeting with the companies, we need to get internally


·3· ·because they've already met with them.· So it's just a


·4· ·matter of maintaining those, getting a foot in the door,


·5· ·and once we get the foot in the door, a lot of times


·6· ·we're able -- and educating our own team sometimes,


·7· ·because a lot of times these guys are chasing, you know,


·8· ·the bigger deal, they're not sure what to do with the


·9· ·smaller company.· We told them, "Look, pass them to us.


10· ·We'll work with them.· And if they're looking for


11· ·financing, we'll definitely help them out."


12· · · · · · · · · ·And we also have a small business group


13· ·that we work side-by-side with, which is another group


14· ·that I forgot to mention.· They do a lot of the CEO


15· ·roundtables across the state, and we attend -- I'm


16· ·actually going to one across the street tomorrow to talk


17· ·about a program.


18· · · · · · · · · ·So we have really revamped how we're


19· ·doing things as far as from a marketing perspective.  I


20· ·mean, we realize that with such a small team, you kind


21· ·of have to diversify a little bit, utilize the resources


22· ·that we have available to us and let some other people


23· ·kind of do the talking for us because we can't be --


24· ·with two and a half people, we can't be in all places


25· ·within all times.
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·1· · · · · · · · · ·So, but, to answer your question, the


·2· ·BERG group is Business Expansion and Retention Group.


·3· · · · · · · ·MR. JACKSON:


·4· · · · · · · · · ·Okay.


·5· · · · · · · · · ·And, Mr. Chairman, Mr. Baham actually


·6· ·came and spoke to the CPAs at their monthly luncheon in


·7· ·Ouachita Parish a few months ago.· It was really very


·8· ·helpful.· So I guess we probably had 15 or 20 at that


·9· ·meeting, so it was a good opportunity to expose that


10· ·group of professionals as they work with their clients.


11· ·We're most appreciative.


12· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:


13· · · · · · · · · ·Very good.


14· · · · · · · · · ·One thought, you had me thinking as you


15· ·were describing your outreach to the LBA, and the staff


16· ·has done a great job of reaching out to the LBA at the


17· ·annual convention, I believe has been the primary for


18· ·us.· The LBA also does a great job on an annual basis of


19· ·training bankers, and they're really big -- Sue can echo


20· ·that, I'm sure.· And I would encourage you -- I know you


21· ·know Ginger.· Brenda does -- to reach out to Ginger


22· ·Laurent and try to get on the agenda.· They have these


23· ·regular training events for lenders, senior lenders, and


24· ·the like, and where the core lenders from these probably


25· ·primarily community banks, but you can certainly get
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·1· ·some of the bigger guys there as well, are all in


·2· ·attendance and it's right here in Baton Rouge, easy to


·3· ·access.· You know, Ginger, I think, would work with us


·4· ·on being placed on the agenda, and I think that could


·5· ·really help, because the LBA convention, you have the


·6· ·directors, the CEOs, sort of a different audience.· But


·7· ·getting right before the lenders themselves in some of


·8· ·these banks could really make some dividends, so I


·9· ·really encourage you to do that.


10· · · · · · · ·MR. BAHAM:


11· · · · · · · · · ·Definitely.


12· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:


13· · · · · · · · · ·Sue, do you have anything to add?


14· · · · · · · ·MS. DURAND:


15· · · · · · · · · ·I want to say that our chief lender


16· ·attends quarterly meetings in Baton Rouge.· His name is


17· ·Glenn Decou.


18· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:


19· · · · · · · · · ·They do a great job, as Sue's


20· ·illustrating, and would be a good place to start, or


21· ·another place, I should say.


22· · · · · · · · · ·Anyone else?


23· · · · · · · ·(No response.)


24· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:


25· · · · · · · · · ·All right.· Mr. Secretary.
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·1· · · · · · · ·SECRETARY PIERSON:


·2· · · · · · · · · ·Thank you, and as always, thank you for


·3· ·the important job and the important role that you play


·4· ·in managing the funds that we make available to


·5· ·companies that are giving us a commitment to continue


·6· ·their growth, their job growth, and their investment in


·7· ·our state, and a great team that deploys that.


·8· · · · · · · · · ·I'll just give you few highlights of


·9· ·some recent activities at the department.· I'll be happy


10· ·to answer any questions that you might have, but we're


11· ·experiencing a lot of very powerful growth in the state


12· ·at this time.· Just in really the last 30 to 45 days,


13· ·we've been with the Governor over in Lake Charles for


14· ·the decommissioning of the Lotte facility.· That is an


15· ·investment coming to us from Korea of $3.1-billion.


16· ·That's online now.· We're very pleased with that.


17· · · · · · · · · ·And in that joint venture, also Westlake


18· ·Chemical, a tremendous amount of activity related to


19· ·that.· The advanced chemical manufacturing sector has


20· ·just been very, very strong for our state.


21· · · · · · · · · ·While we have enjoyed a lot of success


22· ·basically in the Lake Charles area with the Westlake


23· ·Chemical manufacturing, with LNG facilities that are


24· ·being put online, we've not forgotten to work hard in


25· ·other parts of state, so we're really happy to report
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·1· ·that we were also able to cut the ribbon at the LaSalle


·2· ·Lumber facility, a computerized saw mill that's in one


·3· ·of our rural locations and a $115-million investment.


·4· ·That's a joint venture with a company from Canada, and


·5· ·115 new direct jobs at that lumber mill facility, but


·6· ·more importantly, in my mind, is that multiplier effect


·7· ·that it has doing a great deal for all of those that are


·8· ·engaged in the timber harvesting, all of the trucking


·9· ·and mechanics and the work that has to go on in the


10· ·forest to make all of that come together and work so


11· ·well.


12· · · · · · · · · ·And so revitalizing and being active in


13· ·our rural parishes is really something special.· It


14· ·follows on that we were able to do something very


15· ·similar, not with the forestry, but with advanced


16· ·chemical manufacturing with Delek with their


17· ·$150-million investment in St. Landry Parish, which was


18· ·also recently announced.· This contact was made by the


19· ·Governor in his trade mission and business recruit


20· ·mission to Israel last October, bringing some great web


21· ·service development activities to our community colleges


22· ·through this recent announcement with Amazon in forming


23· ·a relationship with our community technical colleges.


24· · · · · · · · · ·We just talked about a computerized saw


25· ·mill.· You know, everything is so digital, and this
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·1· ·transition is being able to bring this kind of


·2· ·instruction to our universities and community colleges


·3· ·remains an important focus.


·4· · · · · · · · · ·We participated with the Governor in a


·5· ·cyber securities symposium and summit in Shreveport.· It


·6· ·was sponsored in part by the National Governor's


·7· ·Association, so a tremendous amount of activity coming


·8· ·in from all over the nation to discuss those important


·9· ·elements of cyber security and relates to all of the


10· ·banking and financial professional that are here and,


11· ·again, just relates back to the broad digital spectrum


12· ·that's out there that we're seeking to make sure that


13· ·the state is presented with the opportunities to kind of


14· ·maintain and grow in that area.


15· · · · · · · · · ·A number of other announcements we've


16· ·had, just an entire robust, purine of engagement.· We


17· ·have a strong pipeline, I'm pleased to report to you


18· ·right now, that some will have the types of programs


19· ·that you administer being brought forward in the


20· ·not-too-distant future, sixty-seven projects that are


21· ·currently being managed by the Business Development


22· ·Group that Steve referred to, and he did a great job in


23· ·talking about the important work that our Business and


24· ·extension Retention Group does.· As part of our strategy


25· ·in that it's great to talk about new companies that we
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·1· ·want to recruit to Louisiana, but we know by this very


·2· ·focused interaction with what we call economic driver


·3· ·companies.· We select the larger companies, not in the


·4· ·retail or healthcare services sectors, but those that


·5· ·are more related to manufacturers, in that, those jobs


·6· ·have tremendous multiplier effects, and have those


·7· ·conversations occasionally.· We get to learn that this


·8· ·plant is in competition with other plants in the US, and


·9· ·we're able to, through that identification, be very


10· ·competitive about what we can bring to the table should


11· ·they choose Louisiana.· And so the BERG group does that.


12· · · · · · · · · ·A sidebar to that is working with the


13· ·regional organizations to make anywhere from between 600


14· ·and 800 total calls in a year's time, but by using LED


15· ·staff and staff that exists out of the regional economic


16· ·development organizations, all of the data is captured


17· ·in a customer management software program, and we're


18· ·able to see trends and things of that nature.· But we're


19· ·also able to make sure that we have a current database


20· ·for a lot of these senior executives that are running


21· ·these companies, and in the event of disaster, whether


22· ·it's a tornado, flooding, all kinds of operations that


23· ·can disrupt business were able to play a role in support


24· ·of business emergency operation centers, and this


25· ·current base of information and how to reach critical
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·1· ·executives that are part of these organizations and find


·2· ·out, you know, how they're being disrupted, they have


·3· ·power lines down, they have trees down or roads or rail


·4· ·or water or other types of issues impacting their


·5· ·facility, we can coordinate to help get people back to


·6· ·work faster.· And so our Expansion and Retention Group


·7· ·helps us grow jobs, but at the same time plays a very


·8· ·important rule in the resilience and recovery efforts


·9· ·when disaster strikes, and that's sometimes not noted,


10· ·but I think it's an interesting and important element of


11· ·their activities.


12· · · · · · · · · ·Legislative session just wrapped up on


13· ·the 6th of June.· We've not had a lot of focus on


14· ·economic development programs, per se.· It was a


15· ·lower-key type of session for us.· Really all of our


16· ·incentive programs have been reviewed over the last few


17· ·years.· A number of them have had certainly tweaks,


18· ·sometimes reductions, but basically they all have sunset


19· ·features now, which means that they will all be


20· ·revisited to make sure that they're effective and


21· ·efficient in doing the kinds of things that the state


22· ·seeks in order to build a vibrant economy.· So


23· ·everything from our Quality Jobs Program to our


24· ·entertainment programs have all been really put under a


25· ·lot of scrutiny over the last three and a half or so
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·1· ·years, all are positioned to be effective for the state,


·2· ·all will remain under evaluation going forward, but we


·3· ·didn't have a lot of those kind of issues as this


·4· ·particular session wrapped up.


·5· · · · · · · · · ·Probably the only significant thing I


·6· ·can report to you is I think that we have maybe $960,000


·7· ·in our budget request that was not provided to LED, so


·8· ·we'll be doing some belt tightening in certain parts of


·9· ·the department.


10· · · · · · · · · ·Some important new initiatives, I'm


11· ·pleased to say, we were granted some funding which has


12· ·to do with some coastal activities that we want to say


13· ·small businesses have a better foothold and a better


14· ·opportunity to participate in, and certainly we're also


15· ·able to and lobbied for our regional economic


16· ·development partners to get an increase in some of their


17· ·funding.· It's very difficult.· You heard Steve say it a


18· ·couple times, they're a very small staff, basically 100


19· ·people in this building, trying to cover 64 parishes,


20· ·paying attention to North Louisiana, paying attention to


21· ·Central Louisiana, where a lot of assistance is needed


22· ·in the economy today, but also reaching out in Southeast


23· ·and Southwest Louisiana.· The only way that we can


24· ·leverage our abilities and what this Board brings to


25· ·bear is to utilize these strong regional partners, which
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·1· ·we have eight of them across the state.· So I am pleased


·2· ·to report that we were able to get them a little more


·3· ·money to execute the programs that we asked them to


·4· ·participate in with us.· We don't simply write a check


·5· ·and pass it across the desk.· And actually we formed a


·6· ·contractural agreement with certain performance measures


·7· ·included in that, and sometimes it is those business


·8· ·retention calls that we ask them to make and then submit


·9· ·it to the computer software tracking system, but certain


10· ·tasks and requirements that they meet, and then


11· ·certainly they get the support from the state and some


12· ·significant funding that we do provide to them.


13· · · · · · · · · ·Our FastStart Program remains


14· ·exceptional.· It's a real asset to the state.· When we


15· ·talk to companies about either expanding here or


16· ·locating here, the ability to also indicate to them that


17· ·we will provide a turnkey workforce solution certainly


18· ·moves us to the front of the line in getting some of


19· ·these project wins.· And I'm very proud of their efforts


20· ·to have been designated as the Number 1 Workforce


21· ·Training Program in the Nation for nine years running,


22· ·and you don't maintain that position by sort of a


23· ·static, keep doing the same thing, maybe like bowling


24· ·pins are always in the same place and you can directly


25· ·bowl a 300 game.· For us in the workforce training
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·1· ·business, the goals are always moving, the types of


·2· ·technology are available that we can bring to bear are


·3· ·moving, and we're staying on the very front end of that.


·4· ·We are currently, for Exxon Mobil, executing visual


·5· ·reality training modules, actually you put on the


·6· ·goggles and you are positioned in the room and fire is


·7· ·breaking out and you've got to identify the alarm and


·8· ·the fire extinguisher and things of that nature.· It's


·9· ·revolutionary in some respects, but Louisiana and the


10· ·FastStart division are on the cutting edge of bringing


11· ·the latest technology to workforce training, and we're


12· ·pleased to see them continuing to make good progress


13· ·against that.


14· · · · · · · · · · We did host our SBA awards ceremony at


15· ·the Mansion, and also our Lantern awards, which are,


16· ·from each of the eight regions, we identify an


17· ·outstanding manufacturer that we can recognize for their


18· ·efforts.· So continue to have a very strong focus on


19· ·building small business outwork in our state and trying


20· ·to do that balance of attracting new business and having


21· ·a very robust portfolio of international state working


22· ·closely with the major economic drivers across our


23· ·state, and then all of those are supported by a very


24· ·important outwork of small businesses.· That big plant


25· ·won't run and operate if there's not maintenance and
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·1· ·services and supplies and kinds of things that need to


·2· ·run the plant available in the small business support


·3· ·system around that.


·4· · · · · · · · · ·So we've got a lot of ground to cover,


·5· ·but we're pleased to be able to execute on your behalf,


·6· ·and happy take any questions you might have.


·7· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:


·8· · · · · · · · · ·Anyone questions or comments?


·9· · · · · · · ·(No response.)


10· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:


11· · · · · · · · · ·Thank you.· Appreciate the words.


12· · · · · · · · · ·Any other business?


13· · · · · · · ·(No response.)


14· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:


15· · · · · · · · · ·All right.· Hearing none, I'll entertain


16· ·a motion to adjourn.


17· · · · · · · ·MR. ANDRE:


18· · · · · · · · · ·So moved.


19· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:


20· · · · · · · · · ·Motion.· Second.


21· · · · · · · · · ·All in favor "aye."


22· · · · · · · ·(Several members respond "aye.")


23· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:


24· · · · · · · · · ·All opposed, "nay."


25· · · · · · · ·(No response.)
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·1· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:


·2· · · · · · · · · ·Without objection.· Have a good day.


·3· ·Thank you.


·4· · · · · · · ·(Meeting concludes at 10:27 a.m.)
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·1· ·REPORTER'S CERTIFICATE:


·2· · · · · · · ·I, ELICIA H. WOODWORTH, Certified Court


·3· ·Reporter in and for the State of Louisiana, as the


·4· ·officer before whom this meeting for the Board of


·5· ·Directors of the Louisiana Economic Development


·6· ·Corporation, do hereby certify that this meeting was


·7· ·reported by me in the stenotype reporting method, was


·8· ·prepared and transcribed by me or under my personal


·9· ·direction and supervision, and is a true and correct


10· ·transcript to the best of my ability and understanding;


11· · · · · · · ·That the transcript has been prepared in


12· ·compliance with transcript format required by statute or


13· ·by rules of the board, that I have acted in compliance


14· ·with the prohibition on contractual relationships, as


15· ·defined by Louisiana Code of Civil Procedure Article


16· ·1434 and in rules and advisory opinions of the board;


17· · · · · · · ·That I am not related to counsel or to the


18· ·parties herein, nor am I otherwise interested in the


19· ·outcome of this matter.


20


21· ·Dated this 30th day of June, 2019.


22


· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·___________________________


23


· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·ELICIA H. WOODWORTH, CCR


24


· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·CERTIFIED COURT REPORTER
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 1               MR. ROY:

 2                   Morning.  I'll call to order the Board

 3   of Directors, Louisiana Economic Development

 4   Corporation.

 5                   Rollcall, please.

 6               MS. SIMMONS:

 7                   Good morning.

 8                   A.J. Roy, III.

 9               MR. ROY:

10                   Here.

11               MS. SIMMONS:

12                   Alden Andre.

13               MR. ANDRE:

14                   Here.

15               MS. SIMMONS:

16                   Louis Reine.

17               (No response.)

18               MS. SIMMONS:

19                   Charles E. Jackson, III.

20               MR. JACKSON:

21                   Here.

22               MS. SIMMONS:

23                   Mandi Mitchell.

24               (No response.)

25               MS. SIMMONS:
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 1                   Cal Simpson.

 2               MR. SIMPSON:

 3                   Here.

 4               MS. SIMMONS:

 5                   Nittin Kamath.

 6               (No response.)

 7               MS. SIMMONS:

 8                   Sue Durand.

 9               SECRETARY PIERSON:

10                   She's here.

11               MS. SIMMONS:

12                   Kimberly Johnson.

13               (No response.)

14               MS. SIMMONS:

15                   Todd McDonald.

16               (No response.)

17               MS. SIMMONS:

18                   Secretary Don Pierson.

19               SECRETARY PIERSON:

20                   Here.

21               MS. SIMMONS:

22                   We have a quorum.

23               MR. ROY:

24                   Very good.  Welcome, everyone.  I'll ask

25   everyone to please silence your cell phones.
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 1                   The first order of business is the

 2   ratification and approval of minutes, and I have a

 3   potential duty today.  We need to do a little

 4   housekeeping, so bear with me.  I'll be reading from a

 5   document so that we get it correctly.

 6                   The LEDC Board and Finance Company (sic)

 7   held a meeting on February 14th, 2019; however, the

 8   agenda for the meeting was not posted on the LEDC

 9   website 24 hours in advance of the meeting as required

10   by the Open Meetings Law.  Because actions were taken by

11   the Board during the meeting and were held without a

12   24-hour advanced posting of the agenda on the LEDC

13   website, the Board must ratify and approve all actions

14   taken during the February 14th, 2019 meeting.

15                   During the February 14th, 2019 meeting,

16   the following actions were taken by the Finance

17   Committee:  Agenda Item Number 3, the audit reports,

18   finance statements were approved, the finance statement

19   as of June the 30th, 2018, and validation of the LEDC

20   investments as of June the 30th, 2018.

21                   Let me stop there.

22                   Any questions of what I've said thus

23   far?

24               (No response.)

25               MR. ROY:
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 1                   All right.  During the February 14th,

 2   2019 meeting, the following actions were taken by the

 3   board:  Agenda Item Number 3, approval of the meeting

 4   minutes of the LEDC Board meeting held on December the

 5   17th, 2018; and Agenda Item Number 4, the approval of

 6   the Finance Committee Report; Agenda Item Number 5,

 7   Economic Development Award Program extension request by

 8   Fuji Oil New Orleans, LLC; Agenda Item Number 6,

 9   election of officers, chairperson, vice chairman; Agenda

10   Item Number 7, committee appointments from the various

11   committees, Executive, Screening, Policy, Finance and

12   Government Outreach.

13                   Do I entertain any motions or are there

14   any questions from the Board members?

15               (No response.)

16               MR. ROY:

17                   Comments?

18               (No response.)

19               MR. ROY:

20                   Any questions or comments from the

21   public?

22               (No response.)

23               MR. ROY:

24                   Hearing none, I will entertain a motion

25   to ratify and approve the Finance Committee and the LEDC
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 1   Board meetings held on February the 14th, 2019.

 2               MR. SIMPSON:

 3                   I move to ratify and approve.

 4               MR. ANDRE:

 5                   Second.

 6               MR. ROY:

 7                   Any discussion?

 8               (No response.)

 9               MR. ROY:

10                   Hearing none, all in favor -- any

11   comments from the public?

12               (No response.)

13               MR. ROY:

14                   Hearing none, all in favor, "aye."

15               (Several members respond "aye.")

16               MR. ROY:

17                   All opposed, "nay."

18               (No response.)

19               MR. ROY:

20                   Without objection.

21               MR. ROY:

22                   All right.  Next order of business is

23   the in-house approval of updates.

24                   Good morning.

25               MS. DOIN:
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 1                   Good morning.  Marissa Doin.  I have one

 2   loan update for y'all today.  This one is from Hancock

 3   Whitney Bank out of New Orleans.  The company is

 4   Advanced Cutting Solutions.  They're a core kitting

 5   company, and they supply core kits used to create wind

 6   turbines.

 7                   ACS was formed in 2014, and they began

 8   generating revenues in 2016.  In the past 16 months, ACS

 9   has seen significant growth and is on the path to

10   continue growing.

11                   Hancock Whitney requests a 75 percent

12   guaranty on a $250,000 line of credit backed by

13   inventories and receivables.  The funds will be used to

14   support working capital needs of the company as they

15   grow, and staff approved this loan on April 25th.

16                   Are there any questions?

17               (No response.)

18               MS. DOIN:

19                   Thank you.

20               MR. ROY:

21                   Thank you.

22                   Next order of business is under the

23   Economic Development Award Program, Gramercy Holdings 1,

24   LLC, D/B/A Noranda Alumina.

25                   Ms. Bigner.
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 1               MS. BIGNER:

 2                   Good morning.

 3               MR. ROY:

 4                   If you could, pull the microphones up.

 5               MS. BIGNER:

 6                   Susan Bigner.  This morning we have a

 7   request from Gramercy Holdings 1, LLC, doing business as

 8   Noranda Alumina for a $1-million unsponsored EDAP.

 9                   The facility is located in Gramercy in

10   St. James Parish.  With me are Noranda Bauxite & Alumina

11   company representatives, Scott Croft, Stacy Miller and

12   Anthony Laura.

13                   In 2018, New Day Aluminum Holdings, LLC

14   purchased the alumina line facility in Gramercy along

15   with a bauxite facility in Jamaica, which were both in

16   bankruptcy at the time.  The Jamaica facility mines and

17   ships bauxite, which is the principle ore of aluminum,

18   to the Gramercy facility and other New Day facilities.

19                   The St. James facility was built by

20   Kaiser Aluminum and Chemicals Corporation in 1958 and

21   has been operational ever since.  Operations under

22   Noranda began in October of 2016, and the company

23   announced a $35-million upgrade and expansion in May of

24   2017.  The expansion and upgrades include designing and

25   installing equipment to increase productivity, storage

0010

 1   and shipping as well as moving the corporate

 2   headquarters to the facility.

 3                   Currently the company is rehabilitating

 4   the administrative building for the headquarters and

 5   improving residual ponds on the property.  The EDAP will

 6   assist with the costs associated with the residual

 7   ponds.  The company has to expedite clay from one area

 8   of the property, transport it to the pond area and then

 9   build up the levee wall six to 10 feet to the permitted

10   height of 50 feet.

11                   The company has recently purchased

12   refurbished gas turbine generator that will be used as

13   collateral for the unsponsored EDAP, and Gramercy

14   Holdings will guaranty all commitments.

15                   Since the project was announced in 2017,

16   the company has commenced hiring employees and investing

17   CapEx.  The 42.9 projected cost listed in the EDAP

18   application exceeds the $35-million CapEx announced in

19   2017.  As of the end of March, the company imported

20   approximately 430 employees; therefore, it is expected

21   that the company will meet or exceed their first year

22   requirements of 432 employees with an approximate annual

23   payroll of 27.3-million.

24                   Staff recommends approval of the

25   unsponsored EDAP for $1-million with the normal
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 1   contingencies listed in the term sheet.  The company has

 2   agreed to retain approximately 395 jobs with an

 3   associated annual payroll increased annually by two

 4   percent while creating 65 new jobs with an estimated

 5   annual payroll of 7.1-million by 2025.  Of the 65 new

 6   jobs, 15 are expected to be headquarter jobs.

 7                   If the required jobs are created and

 8   retained at the stipulated annual payroll, then the EDAP

 9   will be considered satisfied.  However, if the company

10   does not create the projected jobs and payroll on an

11   annual basis, the unearned credit balance for that year

12   will be due and payable to LEDC plus interest.  All

13   credits will be based on payroll.

14                   At this time, I'm going to ask the

15   company representatives to tell you a little bit about

16   the project.

17               MR. LAURA:

18                   Thank you.  I'd like to introduce Scott

19   Croft, the company Chief Operating Officer.

20               MR. CROFT:

21                   Good morning.  Can everybody hear me

22   okay?

23               MR. ROY:

24                   Good morning.

25               MR. CROFT:
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 1                   As Anthony mentioned, I'm Scott Croft,

 2   Chief Operating Officer of Noranda Bauxite Alumina, and

 3   I'm one of those jobs Susan referred to.  I just joined

 4   the company in February, and certainly happy to be here

 5   and happy to help contribute.

 6                   I'm happy to answer any questions you

 7   have about the project, but I just really wanted to

 8   thank the Board for the consideration to help us

 9   continue our growth story and really to add to that

10   sustainable platform, which we're building down in

11   Gramercy.  It really is something to see and something

12   we can all be proud of for Louisiana.

13                   I'm happy to answer any questions.  This

14   project is teed up, ready to go as we are sort of

15   working through some of the final contract negotiations

16   as we sit here.  And Susan captured it quite well.

17               MR. ROY:

18                   Secretary.

19               SECRETARY PIERSON:

20                   I don't have a question.  I just wanted

21   to give a corresponding thank you for the efforts being

22   made and presented here.  On the one hand, you would

23   have a bankruptcy, 395 workers going home and looking

24   for new work in our state, but with this company

25   stepping up and pledging to invest more than 35-million
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 1   on the site, retain all of those workers and then bring

 2   us and ramping an additional 65 jobs in the coming years

 3   and already making great progress against those goals,

 4   it's a tremendous credit to the company for their

 5   confidence.

 6                   And I'd like to also point out that our

 7   team is out there working to find opportunities like

 8   this, to not only -- you know, you read about all the

 9   new companies that we're able to bring in the state, but

10   to working with our existing companies, and in this

11   case, be able to revitalize those efforts is

12   tremendously important.  So thank you.

13               MR. CROFT:

14                   Thank you.

15               MR. LAURA:

16                   Thank you.

17               MR. ROY:

18                   Anything else, or perhaps questions or

19   comments from the Board?

20               (No response.)

21               MR. ROY:

22                   Board members?

23               (No response.)

24               MR. ROY:

25                   What's the pleasure of the Board?
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 1               MR. JACKSON:

 2                   I move that we accept this proposal.

 3               MR. ROY:

 4                   Motion for acceptance as presented.

 5               MS. DURAND:

 6                   I second that.

 7               MR. ROY:

 8                   Second.

 9                   Any discussion?

10               (No response.)

11               MR. ROY:

12                   Hearing none, all in favor, "aye."

13               (Several members respond "aye.")

14               MR. ROY:

15                   All opposed, "nay."

16               (No response.)

17               MR. ROY:

18                   Without objection.

19                   Congratulations.  Please keep us posted

20   on your successes.  We always like to hear about that.

21               MR. CROFT:

22                   Absolutely.  Thank you very much.

23               MR. LAURA:

24                   Thank you very much.

25               MR. ROY:
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 1                   Were there any comments from the public

 2   on that?

 3               (No response.)

 4               MR. ROY:

 5                   Next order of business, the Treasurer's

 6   Report, Ms. Villa.

 7               MS. VILLA:

 8                   Good morning.  Anne Villa,

 9   Undersecretary for Louisiana Economic Development

10   presenting the Secretary Treasurer's Report as of May

11   31st, 2019.

12                   In summary, our total budget for Fy '19

13   is $10,538,938.  We have approved and projected

14   expenditures of $3,135,443, and we just had the Board

15   approval of a million-dollar project, so that gives us

16   an anticipated balance of 6,403,495.

17                   We still have a project under review of

18   375,000, so we have a projected year-end balance of

19   6,028,495.  Details of that consists of State Small

20   Business Credit Initiative and/or Financial Assistance

21   Program, which had a budget of 2,092,796.  I'm sorry.

22   $2,092,737.  And we had approved project expenditures of

23   624,443.  We don't have any projects under review

24   currently, so we have a projected balance of 1,468,354.

25                   Regarding our Capital Outlay
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 1   Appropriation for our EDAP programs and our EDRED

 2   programs, we had a budget of $8,446,141.  We had

 3   approved and projected expenditures of 2,511,000, and

 4   with the project that was just approved, we have a

 5   balance of 4,935,141.  And we do have a couple of

 6   projects that are under review that equate to 375,000,

 7   so we have a projected balance of 4,560,141.

 8                   You'll see the note at the bottom there

 9   that for our FY '19 budget, we did have a return of

10   appropriation from a project of 1,235,000, so that's

11   accounted for as well.

12                   Just for, I guess, for notification, we

13   ended the session last week, and I'll take the

14   opportunity now to let you know that for your EDAP

15   program, we do have $7-million worth of cash that was

16   given to in HBII in the Capital Outlay bill for our

17   projects, so for the Secretary's discretion to use for

18   upcoming projects, the ones that are in the pipeline,

19   and to meet any obligations we may have in FY '20 year.

20   So that's actually better than getting either Priority 1

21   or Priority 5 dollars, so it gives us -- the Secretary

22   some discretion to use that for big projects that he may

23   have in the pipeline.  So I wanted to give you a brief

24   update on that.

25                   And regarding our Fund Balance, which is
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 1   the last page of the report, our FY '19 projected Fund

 2   Balance available is $14,947,976 and we have

 3   expenditures expected of 12,027,483, which would leave

 4   us an Appropriation Fund balance of 2,920,483.  I have

 5   to increase the size a little bit.  493.  Sorry.

 6   2,920,493 is our expected balance at the end.

 7                   Any questions?

 8               (No response.)

 9               MS. VILLA:

10                   Okay.  Thank you.

11               MR. ROY:

12                   Questions, comments?

13               (No response.)

14               MR. ROY:

15                   Hearing none, I'll entertain a motion to

16   accept the Treasurer's Report.

17               MR. ANDRE:

18                   So moved.

19               MR. ROY:

20                   Motion.

21               MR. JACKSON:

22                   Second.

23               MR. ROY:

24                   Second.

25                   Any discussion?
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 1               (No response.)

 2               MR. ROY:

 3                   Without objection.

 4                   Any comments from the public?

 5               (No response.)

 6               MR. ROY:

 7                   All in favor, "aye."

 8               (Several members respond "aye.")

 9               MR. ROY:

10                   All opposed, "nay."

11               (No response.)

12               MR. ROY:

13                   Without objection.

14                   Next order of business, the Accountant's

15   Report.

16               MS. DALGO:

17                   Good morning.  Crystal Dalgo.  I'll be

18   presenting to you the LEDC Accountant's Status Report as

19   of April 30th, 2019.

20                   We'll start off with the EDAP Loan

21   Portfolio, it totals $994,572.  There are currently

22   three loans under this portfolio that consist of the

23   Town of Colfax, the City of Bastrop and Morgan City.

24   Morgan City is set to make their final payment by the

25   end of July this year.
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 1                   The allowance for the EDAP loans is set

 2   at 15 percent, and it totals $139,186.

 3                   Next on there is the SSBCI Guaranty Loan

 4   Portfolio.  It totals $4,838,273.  There are currently

 5   16 loans under this portfolio.  Two of the loans, C.

 6   Boutte Enterprises and Acadian Cypress are listed as

 7   high-risk loans, and they're being carried at 100

 8   percent.

 9                   The allowance for the SSBCI Guaranty

10   Loan Losses is calculated at 18 percent for the current

11   accounts and 100 percent on high-risk loans.  So as of

12   April 30th, 2019, the allowance totals $1,713,108.

13                   And that concludes the report for the

14   EDAP and SSBCI portfolios.

15                   Are there any questions?

16               MR. ROY:

17                   Questions, comments?

18               (No response.)

19               MR. ROY:

20                   Motion to accept the Accountant's

21   Report?

22               MR. SIMPSON:

23                   Motion.

24               MR. ROY:

25                   Second?
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 1               MR. JACKSON:

 2                   Second.

 3               MR. ROY:

 4                   Any discussions?

 5               (No response.)

 6               MR. ROY:

 7                   Hearing none, all in favor, "aye."

 8               (Several members respond "aye.")

 9               MR. ROY:

10                   All opposed, "nay."

11               (No response.)

12               MR. ROY:

13                   Without objection.  Thank you.

14               MS. DALGO:

15                   Welcome.

16               MR. ROY:

17                   Any comments from the public?

18               (No response.)

19               MR. BAHAM:

20                   Mr. A.J., I just passed out an

21   additional sheet to the Accountant's Report.  At the

22   previous meeting back in February, it was requested we

23   give an explanation of our current net asset position

24   for LEDC over the previous four years, and that's -- our

25   accountants, Crystal and Molly, put this together to
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 1   show our balances since Fiscal Year '14 all of the way

 2   through Fiscal '18, and I just wanted to give the

 3   information to the Board really quickly while I've still

 4   got Crystal up here to help me explain some of this

 5   stuff.

 6               MR. ROY:

 7                   This was -- just to refresh everyone,

 8   this is something that we requested staff to produce in

 9   the past, and so we appreciate you doing so.

10                   Who's going to explain it?

11               MR. BAHAM:

12                   You want me to go ahead?

13               MR. ROY:

14                   Or hit the high points?

15               MR. BAHAM:

16                   I'll just give you some highlights if

17   you'd like.

18                   You'll notice, just looking at it in

19   general, from Fiscal Year '14 all of way through Fiscal

20   Year '18, just looking at the total assets, you'll

21   notice that right off the bat they've gone down from

22   74-million down to approximately just under 50-million.

23                   To highlight some of the reasons as to

24   why and give you an explanation as to why that is

25   occurring, if you look under "Current Assets," the third

0022

 1   line down, "Due From Other Funds," you'll notice back in

 2   Fiscal Year '14, it was at 21-and-a-half-million, and at

 3   the end of Fiscal Year '18, it was at 4.7-million.  This

 4   is due to our reduction in Capital Outlay Funds that are

 5   associated with the EDAP program.  So that is something

 6   that, as Ms. Villa pointed out earlier, we get

 7   appropriated every year from the legislature of these

 8   funds, and over the years, these funds have dwindled

 9   down a little bit due to budget constraints from the

10   legislature and so forth.  So we're working off of a

11   little bit less money than what we've had in the past.

12                   Following further down, if you look

13   under "Noncurrent Assets," you'll notice under the first

14   line there, "Investments," in Fiscal Year '18 (sic), we

15   ended with 28-billion approximately in investment

16   dollars, and in Fiscal Year '18, we ended with just

17   21-billion.  That difference, what we attributed it to,

18   is back in Fiscal Year '14, we were -- our investments

19   have returned.  The returned investments have not been

20   as profitable as we had thought they would have been or

21   what we put into them, so that gives an explanation as

22   to why the investments have gone down some.

23                   Also, some of those investments have

24   been moved to the cash category as they come back, and

25   if you notice, back in the "Current Assets," the cash
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 1   pretty much stays approximately the same.  So we've

 2   exited some investments.  Some of them have not come

 3   back as we had hoped in years past, but we do have some

 4   on the horizon hopefully that we will be able to, you

 5   know, recoup some of that money as well.

 6               MR. ROY:

 7                   Do you have a breakdown of the

 8   categories, not necessarily the individual investments,

 9   but the categories that, you know, comprise the

10   definition of investments?

11               MR. BAHAM:

12                   Crystal may be able to help me with that

13   a little bit more.

14                   To my knowledge, the investments are

15   those long-term Venture Capital investments that were

16   made years and years ago that we still on have on the

17   books.  The majority of them were done in the early

18   2000s, which a lot of those funds are in their wind-down

19   stage.

20                   At this point in time, we do expect over

21   the next few years to have a lot of those close out.

22   We've actually been working -- Chaffe is getting ready

23   to do their valuations on those at the end of this

24   Fiscal Year again, and when we do the Chaffe reports in

25   the Finance Committee in January, it will possibly be a
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 1   lot clearer at that point.

 2               MR. ROY:

 3                   It's solely Venture Capital?

 4               MR. BAHAM:

 5                   It's mostly Venture Capital, and a lot

 6   of it is SSBCI funds that we have injected now and --

 7   now, those are brand new funds since 2011, so those are

 8   going to be on the books for a little while until some

 9   of those funds start to close out, but that's nearly,

10   I'd say, 100 percent.  There is one existing, BIDCO,

11   still that we carry on the books from the early/mid-90s

12   that still has an active license and still making loans,

13   so that is the only other thing other than the Venture

14   Capital investments that are showing up in that

15   "Investment" category.  So instead of breaking it down

16   by fund or individual investments, that's why it's just

17   lumped into one big category as "Investments," and

18   they're obviously long-term assets.

19               MS. DALGO:

20                   The Certificates of Deposits, 7.4, in

21   CDs is in that.

22               MR. BAHAM:

23                   That's also in there.

24                   So whenever we do a guaranteed loan, we

25   take a portion of that guaranty and we put it either
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 1   into a CD set aside or into a money market account, so

 2   that is also included in there as well.

 3                   Thank you, Crystal.

 4               MR. ROY:

 5                   And so with respect to the Venture

 6   Capital, perhaps, BIDCO investment, that number would

 7   reflect Chaffe's description of what the value is as of

 8   those specific dates?

 9               MR. BAHAM:

10                   Well, it should reflect it directly.  If

11   we go back to Fiscal Year '18, it should show that

12   value, because when Chaffe does their valuation, the

13   legislative auditor that's doing our audit of our

14   financials at the same time uses their valuation numbers

15   to reflect those investments dollars.  So, yes, to

16   answer your question, in short, because they work very

17   closely together because the auditor doesn't finish

18   their report until the Chaffe valuation is done.

19               MR. ROY:

20                   Any other questions?

21                   Yes, sir.

22               MR. JACKSON:

23                   Yes, just to clarify, obviously the

24   Venture funds are returning or they're suffering market

25   adjustments and things like that.
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 1               MR. BAHAM:

 2                   Right.

 3               MR. JACKSON:

 4                   But in general, shifts in our Fund

 5   Balance could also just be the fact that while we get

 6   those moneys appropriated from the legislature, we do

 7   the EDAPs and the EDREDs and stuff, those are actually

 8   expended back out.

 9               MR. BAHAM:

10                   Correct.

11               MR. JACKSON:

12                   So our Fund Balance could be declining

13   slightly because we're not receiving as much of an

14   appropriation to then be put out.

15               MR. BAHAM:

16                   That's correct.

17                   And if you scroll down to the bottom

18   there underneath the "Net Asset Position," you'll see

19   the different categories are "Restricted" and

20   "Unrestricted," and that is reflecting in those two

21   categories how it's balancing out.  The "Restricted"

22   account is made up of all of these EDAP balances from

23   previous years.  So like in Fiscal Year '14, we had a

24   little over 6-million in the restricted account.  Those

25   are committed funds to those projects that have been
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 1   approved this fiscal year that have just have not been

 2   expended yet.  The project maybe is a multiyear-phased

 3   project or it was approved close to the end of that

 4   current fiscal year, so the funds may have been

 5   committed in a previous fiscal year, but won't be

 6   expended until the following year.  So that does kind of

 7   play into it also because we're still carrying those

 8   funds on our books, even though they're committed, the

 9   legislature sees that you have "X" number of dollars out

10   there, so we're only going to commit this much because

11   of however.  I don't know if they have -- a lot of times

12   it's just gut feeling or restricted by the state budget.

13               MS. VILLA:

14                   Right.  Just to kind of add to what

15   Steve just said, for the past probably three to four

16   years, we've been working very closely with them on what

17   our true needs were to meet our obligations.  So in

18   prior years before, you know, we were faced with the

19   fiscal position that we were faced with, we were

20   automatically getting, you know, the $10-million of EDAP

21   just routinely given to the department to use, but

22   because of the situation we were in with HBII with

23   meeting the limits of it, so we would always work with

24   them very closely saying "What truly is your cash --

25   What truly are your cash needs?"  And so that's what we
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 1   were faced with, you know, during the past years.

 2               MR. JACKSON:

 3                   Right.  I guess what I'm getting at is

 4   while fund balance is important for a business,

 5   obviously you'd like to see that increasing because

 6   you're making money, we're really more investing it into

 7   the state, it doesn't stay on our books.

 8               MS. VILLA:

 9                   That's correct.

10               MR. JACKSON:

11                   So the level of our Fund Balance in any

12   particular year relative to other years is not

13   necessarily a cause for alarm.

14               MS. VILLA:

15                   Right.

16               MR. JACKSON:

17                   It's just a change in the way the funds

18   are coming together.

19               MR. BAHAM:

20                   That's correct.

21               MR. JACKSON:

22                   Thank you.

23               MR. ROY:

24                   Any other questions or comments at this

25   point?
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 1                   I have one more.  Under "Investments,"

 2   you said that that number reflects the CDs

 3   accumulatively.  Do we have an indication or

 4   breakdown -- and, of course, those are pledged for

 5   guarantees; right?

 6               MS. DALGO:

 7                   Correct.

 8               MR. ROY:

 9                   So do we have a breakdown of the

10   Guaranty Program for that year period of time and what

11   is happening in that respect?

12               MS. DALGO:

13                   Yes, we do.

14               MS. VILLA:

15                   We can have that at the next meeting.

16               MR. ROY:

17                   I'd be interested to look at that and

18   see where we were and where we are now.

19               MS. DALGO:

20                   And the number for the value of the CDs

21   have stayed the same consistently over the years on here

22   after we had moved some to the money market account, so

23   it's not a fluctuating number, but the guarantees, we do

24   have that.  I can get back to you.

25               MR. ROY:
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 1                   Okay.  Yes.  So maybe I think we changed

 2   the formula at some point, I can't remember when, for

 3   the pledging.

 4               MR. BAHAM:

 5                   I think it was when we received the

 6   SSBCI funds, part of the requirement on that Federal

 7   program was to try to obtain a 10-to-1 match, I believe,

 8   or leverage, and so to accomplish that, anytime we

 9   guaranty a loan, we would take 25 percent of that

10   guaranteed amount, instead of the full 100 percent that

11   we had done in the past, we put that in a CD so that

12   we're basically getting the 4-to-1 leverage on our

13   guaranteed loans.  And then the anticipation was with

14   the 4-to-1 on the guaranty and then the equity

15   investment, which also counts towards the leveraged

16   dollars, and then a portion of those SSBCI were put into

17   the VC investment, which also has a 20 percent

18   requirement of additional equity or more.  So we were

19   pushing -- I think our final leverage numbers at the end

20   of the '17 year in March when SSBCI closed was pushing

21   8-to-1.  So with the bulk of it being still tied up in

22   investments, they had not yet matured.  We feel after

23   those investments return, we'll hit that 10-to-1, and we

24   still have unspent SSBCI dollars that we still have yet

25   to leverage.
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 1                   So, but, to answer your question, we did

 2   reduce it down to 25 percent.

 3               MR. ROY:

 4                   Right.  And given that I was focusing on

 5   the Guaranty Program, if we could -- I think it would be

 6   nice to see what's happened on the dollar of the loans

 7   that we've guaranteed throughout time, so if you could

 8   give that to us, I think that would be beneficial.  The

 9   CDs are indicative of some of that, and I appreciate it,

10   but we changed the formula, et cetera, so that's

11   probably not a number we want to focus on.  So if we

12   have a description of the guarantees themselves total.

13               MS. VILLA:

14                   Yes.  We have -- the team does a great

15   job of giving internally LED a report on all of our

16   EDAPs every six months, and we just completed that about

17   six weeks ago, Susan?  So we have a pretty detailed

18   report that we can kind of share, you know, with the

19   Board.

20               MR. ROY:

21                   So, I mean, the EDAP would be nice to

22   see as well, but --

23               MS. VILLA:

24                   That's what I'm referring to is the

25   EDAP.  And we also, as a matter of fact, I have a
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 1   meeting tomorrow on the investments that we're going to

 2   be doing as well, so we can most definitely share that

 3   with the Board.

 4               MR. ROY:

 5                   Okay.  So guarantees and EDAPs will be

 6   good.

 7                   Anything else to add?

 8               MR. BAHAM:

 9                   That's all I have unless you have

10   anymore questions.

11               MR. ROY:

12                   Any other questions from the Board?

13   Comments?

14               (No response.)

15               MR. ROY:

16                   All right.  Thank you.

17               MS. DALGO:

18                   Thank you.

19               MR. ROY:

20                   All right.  It's nice to have the

21   Secretary with us today.  I know he's a very busy man,

22   and I look forward to hearing his report.

23               MS. VILLA:

24                   Steve, did you have anything else that

25   you wanted to update the Board on?  I noticed you
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 1   included the marketing update.

 2               MR. BAHAM:

 3                   We can just present -- we were at the

 4   President's Report, but I can go ahead --

 5               MS. VILLA:

 6                   No, no, that's fine.

 7               MR. ROY:

 8                   My mistake.  I'm jumping ahead because

 9   the Secretary is sitting on the side of me, but, anyway,

10   let's let you finish on the marketing side.

11               MR. BAHAM:

12                   Every six months or so we just do a

13   semi-annual update on our marketing efforts for Small

14   Business Loan Guaranty, and in your packet, I've

15   provided a short, two-page comparison.  What we decided

16   to do was take -- this is our year '18 effort that we

17   had done from June 1st of -- July 1st of 2017 through

18   June 30th of 2018 and compare it from the Fiscal Year of

19   '19.  And so for July 1st of 2018 through -- not quite a

20   full 12 months, but 11 months, through the end of May of

21   2019.

22                   And if you look at the chart, back in

23   2018, we touched approximately -- when I say "we

24   touched," we physically met with either one-on-one or in

25   a bank conference room with several different bankers,

0034

 1   answering questions, going through projects or with a

 2   chamber in their meeting rooms -- 288 individuals or

 3   lenders or CPA professionals and the like, business

 4   owners as well are included in that.  And in 2019, for

 5   comparison purposes, we actually have gone up, minus one

 6   month, to 357 individuals.  The differences that you can

 7   see there is back through Fiscal Year 2018 and prior

 8   years to that, our marketing efforts were concentrated

 9   on strictly traditional bank lenders, third-party

10   lenders and credit unions, and that's always been our

11   main focus because that's who utilizes the program.  And

12   that's all fine and good, but because of our activity

13   had not been to where we need it to be or want it to be,

14   we decided in 2019 Fiscal Year that we're going to shift

15   the focus to not just hit our bankers, but also put more

16   of an emphasis and an effort on hitting our economic

17   development allies, our local business chambers and also

18   our business owners.

19                   There's another area that we made a huge

20   effort, and staff has gone out into local communities

21   and been a part of local B&I groups and local chamber

22   meetings and just getting an on-the-ground level with

23   local mom and pop businesses, you know, that do

24   everyday, the bakers, the hair salons, the -- even auto

25   dealerships, I believe.  So they're meeting with anybody
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 1   and everybody, either if they own a business or even

 2   contemplating owning a business.

 3                   We also worked very closely with our

 4   SBDCs across the state because they work with the

 5   business owners or entrepreneurs or soon-to

 6   entrepreneurs on a regular basis, and that explains a

 7   lot of the differences in our numbers here and how we've

 8   been able to hit so many people in a shorter amount of

 9   time here in Fiscal Year '19.

10                   To give you an example of how we're

11   still touching our banks is if you look at 2018, we

12   brought to the attention of some of these new lenders,

13   and these aren't just individual lenders, these are new

14   banks that we counted approximately 37 in Fiscal Year

15   '18 were unique, individual banks that we had not

16   touched either in the previous year or the year before,

17   so two to three years we had not gone to that bank.  And

18   in Fiscal Year '19, in our efforts, while we were

19   focusing on outside of the lending community, we still

20   had to communicate with our banks.  So what we did was

21   we said, "Well, we are going to focus more on these

22   banks like we did in '18 to touch more of those banks

23   that hadn't heard about the program and hadn't seen it

24   in a couple years."  And we hit 25 new ones in that same

25   time period.  So while we're hitting less banks as far
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 1   as the one-on-one handshake and educating them on the

 2   program and trying to develop new relationships, we're

 3   still hitting new banks that we're developing these

 4   relationships with.

 5                   We're starting to see the fruits of

 6   that.  Just this week -- I know our Secretary

 7   Treasurer's Report indicated that we didn't have any

 8   projects under review right now, but that was as of May

 9   31st.  Just this first two weeks of -- not even two full

10   weeks of June, we've got two applications in, I think

11   one last week and one early this week, for loans.  And

12   then we are expected to get another loan application in

13   by the end of today, and that loan, we're really excited

14   about because I think it's going to be a really nice

15   one.

16                   We also have a fourth loan that I've

17   been working with a bank here in Baton Rouge to try to

18   secure.  It's actually a bank that's used the program

19   several times before, but hadn't in a couple years, so

20   we're trying to rekindle that relationship.  So we're

21   making headway, and we're trying different things to get

22   some activity going.  The new route seems to be getting

23   a little more attraction, and we're at least driving

24   interest because we've noticed that anytime we talk to a

25   business owner or a potential business owner, they learn
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 1   about the program, they're going knocking on their

 2   banker's doors with some papers and business cards and

 3   saying, "Here, call these guys."  And a lot of banks do.

 4   We're getting calls from banks that we typically would

 5   not work with or haven't really given us that much look

 6   in the past, the banks that are on that mid-tier level

 7   that meet more of a regional focus.  The community banks

 8   have always been the biggest users of our program, but

 9   we're starting to see some activity from these more

10   regionalized banks about the size of like a Hancock

11   Whitney.  They're starting to ask more questions and

12   spitball more potential projects with us.

13                   So another big thing that we have

14   focused on is working internally with our BERG group in

15   particular.  The project earlier today was actually

16   brought by one of our BERG members, Charlie, and he and

17   the rest of BERG team has been very, very influential in

18   bringing especially two of the new four projects that we

19   have potential applications on right now, so that has

20   been another big success for us.

21                   So with the staff, with myself and two

22   and a half other people, we're trying to cover the state

23   as much as possible, and we're touching a lot more

24   people by going to these, especially these B&I groups

25   and local chamber meetings, we're able to hit a lot more
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 1   people at one time, and we've had a lot of success with

 2   that.  And, of course, every other year we attend the

 3   LBA Banker's Association annual meeting, and that's

 4   always a big, big plus for us because for the next few

 5   weeks after that, we're constantly getting phone calls

 6   from new banks.  And what we've noticed, I know over the

 7   past 10 to 15 years, we've had a lot of changeover.

 8   You, yourself, may have this, Mr. Roy.  A lot of banks

 9   that have been in the industry for many, many years are

10   starting to retire and they're, you know, moving on, and

11   a new set of bankers are starting to take their place

12   and a lot of these new bankers are very, very green.

13   And banking has changed, especially over the last 10 to

14   15 years.  It's not as much of a -- it used to be a

15   traditional loan officer not only went out and found

16   that deal and worked with that client and built that

17   relationship, but they underwrote practically the whole

18   loan, pitched it to the committee and did the servicing

19   for the most part.  Today it's clanged differently where

20   it's in the house of underwriters at the main office and

21   a front guy that's the loan officers really just going

22   out there doing the marketing.  So we're having to

23   adjust our style a little bit.  We're trying to use the

24   loan officers to get us in the door and get us a

25   sit-down with the underwriters so we can actually
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 1   explain the program in detail to them, but have the loan

 2   officer go and sell it.

 3                   It's a big relationship game, and staff

 4   has been doing a really good job of staying on top of

 5   that, so I've got to tip my hat to them.  In just 11

 6   months, I knew that we were hitting more people, but

 7   until you actually crunch the numbers, you really

 8   don't -- you really don't see it.  We're hitting quite

 9   almost a full 100 more people than what we did, and

10   that's in 11 month's time.

11               MR. ROY:

12                   Any questions or comments?

13               MR. JACKSON:

14                   BERG group?

15               MR. BAHAM:

16                   It's LED's Business Expansion and

17   Retention Group.  So we have essentially two different

18   groups or three different groups.  We have international

19   and we have our traditional marking group that goes out

20   and finds companies to come in or that are relocating

21   here.  BERG group focuses on homegrown businesses.  They

22   go out to the communities, they tap on the doors and

23   they find needs and they're meeting with companies every

24   single day, multiple companies.  And Secretary is very,

25   very familiar with what they do, probably more so than
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 1   what I am.  But we decided if we're going to focus on

 2   meeting with the companies, we need to get internally

 3   because they've already met with them.  So it's just a

 4   matter of maintaining those, getting a foot in the door,

 5   and once we get the foot in the door, a lot of times

 6   we're able -- and educating our own team sometimes,

 7   because a lot of times these guys are chasing, you know,

 8   the bigger deal, they're not sure what to do with the

 9   smaller company.  We told them, "Look, pass them to us.

10   We'll work with them.  And if they're looking for

11   financing, we'll definitely help them out."

12                   And we also have a small business group

13   that we work side-by-side with, which is another group

14   that I forgot to mention.  They do a lot of the CEO

15   roundtables across the state, and we attend -- I'm

16   actually going to one across the street tomorrow to talk

17   about a program.

18                   So we have really revamped how we're

19   doing things as far as from a marketing perspective.  I

20   mean, we realize that with such a small team, you kind

21   of have to diversify a little bit, utilize the resources

22   that we have available to us and let some other people

23   kind of do the talking for us because we can't be --

24   with two and a half people, we can't be in all places

25   within all times.
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 1                   So, but, to answer your question, the

 2   BERG group is Business Expansion and Retention Group.

 3               MR. JACKSON:

 4                   Okay.

 5                   And, Mr. Chairman, Mr. Baham actually

 6   came and spoke to the CPAs at their monthly luncheon in

 7   Ouachita Parish a few months ago.  It was really very

 8   helpful.  So I guess we probably had 15 or 20 at that

 9   meeting, so it was a good opportunity to expose that

10   group of professionals as they work with their clients.

11   We're most appreciative.

12               MR. ROY:

13                   Very good.

14                   One thought, you had me thinking as you

15   were describing your outreach to the LBA, and the staff

16   has done a great job of reaching out to the LBA at the

17   annual convention, I believe has been the primary for

18   us.  The LBA also does a great job on an annual basis of

19   training bankers, and they're really big -- Sue can echo

20   that, I'm sure.  And I would encourage you -- I know you

21   know Ginger.  Brenda does -- to reach out to Ginger

22   Laurent and try to get on the agenda.  They have these

23   regular training events for lenders, senior lenders, and

24   the like, and where the core lenders from these probably

25   primarily community banks, but you can certainly get
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 1   some of the bigger guys there as well, are all in

 2   attendance and it's right here in Baton Rouge, easy to

 3   access.  You know, Ginger, I think, would work with us

 4   on being placed on the agenda, and I think that could

 5   really help, because the LBA convention, you have the

 6   directors, the CEOs, sort of a different audience.  But

 7   getting right before the lenders themselves in some of

 8   these banks could really make some dividends, so I

 9   really encourage you to do that.

10               MR. BAHAM:

11                   Definitely.

12               MR. ROY:

13                   Sue, do you have anything to add?

14               MS. DURAND:

15                   I want to say that our chief lender

16   attends quarterly meetings in Baton Rouge.  His name is

17   Glenn Decou.

18               MR. ROY:

19                   They do a great job, as Sue's

20   illustrating, and would be a good place to start, or

21   another place, I should say.

22                   Anyone else?

23               (No response.)

24               MR. ROY:

25                   All right.  Mr. Secretary.
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 1               SECRETARY PIERSON:

 2                   Thank you, and as always, thank you for

 3   the important job and the important role that you play

 4   in managing the funds that we make available to

 5   companies that are giving us a commitment to continue

 6   their growth, their job growth, and their investment in

 7   our state, and a great team that deploys that.

 8                   I'll just give you few highlights of

 9   some recent activities at the department.  I'll be happy

10   to answer any questions that you might have, but we're

11   experiencing a lot of very powerful growth in the state

12   at this time.  Just in really the last 30 to 45 days,

13   we've been with the Governor over in Lake Charles for

14   the decommissioning of the Lotte facility.  That is an

15   investment coming to us from Korea of $3.1-billion.

16   That's online now.  We're very pleased with that.

17                   And in that joint venture, also Westlake

18   Chemical, a tremendous amount of activity related to

19   that.  The advanced chemical manufacturing sector has

20   just been very, very strong for our state.

21                   While we have enjoyed a lot of success

22   basically in the Lake Charles area with the Westlake

23   Chemical manufacturing, with LNG facilities that are

24   being put online, we've not forgotten to work hard in

25   other parts of state, so we're really happy to report
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 1   that we were also able to cut the ribbon at the LaSalle

 2   Lumber facility, a computerized saw mill that's in one

 3   of our rural locations and a $115-million investment.

 4   That's a joint venture with a company from Canada, and

 5   115 new direct jobs at that lumber mill facility, but

 6   more importantly, in my mind, is that multiplier effect

 7   that it has doing a great deal for all of those that are

 8   engaged in the timber harvesting, all of the trucking

 9   and mechanics and the work that has to go on in the

10   forest to make all of that come together and work so

11   well.

12                   And so revitalizing and being active in

13   our rural parishes is really something special.  It

14   follows on that we were able to do something very

15   similar, not with the forestry, but with advanced

16   chemical manufacturing with Delek with their

17   $150-million investment in St. Landry Parish, which was

18   also recently announced.  This contact was made by the

19   Governor in his trade mission and business recruit

20   mission to Israel last October, bringing some great web

21   service development activities to our community colleges

22   through this recent announcement with Amazon in forming

23   a relationship with our community technical colleges.

24                   We just talked about a computerized saw

25   mill.  You know, everything is so digital, and this
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 1   transition is being able to bring this kind of

 2   instruction to our universities and community colleges

 3   remains an important focus.

 4                   We participated with the Governor in a

 5   cyber securities symposium and summit in Shreveport.  It

 6   was sponsored in part by the National Governor's

 7   Association, so a tremendous amount of activity coming

 8   in from all over the nation to discuss those important

 9   elements of cyber security and relates to all of the

10   banking and financial professional that are here and,

11   again, just relates back to the broad digital spectrum

12   that's out there that we're seeking to make sure that

13   the state is presented with the opportunities to kind of

14   maintain and grow in that area.

15                   A number of other announcements we've

16   had, just an entire robust, purine of engagement.  We

17   have a strong pipeline, I'm pleased to report to you

18   right now, that some will have the types of programs

19   that you administer being brought forward in the

20   not-too-distant future, sixty-seven projects that are

21   currently being managed by the Business Development

22   Group that Steve referred to, and he did a great job in

23   talking about the important work that our Business and

24   extension Retention Group does.  As part of our strategy

25   in that it's great to talk about new companies that we
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 1   want to recruit to Louisiana, but we know by this very

 2   focused interaction with what we call economic driver

 3   companies.  We select the larger companies, not in the

 4   retail or healthcare services sectors, but those that

 5   are more related to manufacturers, in that, those jobs

 6   have tremendous multiplier effects, and have those

 7   conversations occasionally.  We get to learn that this

 8   plant is in competition with other plants in the US, and

 9   we're able to, through that identification, be very

10   competitive about what we can bring to the table should

11   they choose Louisiana.  And so the BERG group does that.

12                   A sidebar to that is working with the

13   regional organizations to make anywhere from between 600

14   and 800 total calls in a year's time, but by using LED

15   staff and staff that exists out of the regional economic

16   development organizations, all of the data is captured

17   in a customer management software program, and we're

18   able to see trends and things of that nature.  But we're

19   also able to make sure that we have a current database

20   for a lot of these senior executives that are running

21   these companies, and in the event of disaster, whether

22   it's a tornado, flooding, all kinds of operations that

23   can disrupt business were able to play a role in support

24   of business emergency operation centers, and this

25   current base of information and how to reach critical
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 1   executives that are part of these organizations and find

 2   out, you know, how they're being disrupted, they have

 3   power lines down, they have trees down or roads or rail

 4   or water or other types of issues impacting their

 5   facility, we can coordinate to help get people back to

 6   work faster.  And so our Expansion and Retention Group

 7   helps us grow jobs, but at the same time plays a very

 8   important rule in the resilience and recovery efforts

 9   when disaster strikes, and that's sometimes not noted,

10   but I think it's an interesting and important element of

11   their activities.

12                   Legislative session just wrapped up on

13   the 6th of June.  We've not had a lot of focus on

14   economic development programs, per se.  It was a

15   lower-key type of session for us.  Really all of our

16   incentive programs have been reviewed over the last few

17   years.  A number of them have had certainly tweaks,

18   sometimes reductions, but basically they all have sunset

19   features now, which means that they will all be

20   revisited to make sure that they're effective and

21   efficient in doing the kinds of things that the state

22   seeks in order to build a vibrant economy.  So

23   everything from our Quality Jobs Program to our

24   entertainment programs have all been really put under a

25   lot of scrutiny over the last three and a half or so
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 1   years, all are positioned to be effective for the state,

 2   all will remain under evaluation going forward, but we

 3   didn't have a lot of those kind of issues as this

 4   particular session wrapped up.

 5                   Probably the only significant thing I

 6   can report to you is I think that we have maybe $960,000

 7   in our budget request that was not provided to LED, so

 8   we'll be doing some belt tightening in certain parts of

 9   the department.

10                   Some important new initiatives, I'm

11   pleased to say, we were granted some funding which has

12   to do with some coastal activities that we want to say

13   small businesses have a better foothold and a better

14   opportunity to participate in, and certainly we're also

15   able to and lobbied for our regional economic

16   development partners to get an increase in some of their

17   funding.  It's very difficult.  You heard Steve say it a

18   couple times, they're a very small staff, basically 100

19   people in this building, trying to cover 64 parishes,

20   paying attention to North Louisiana, paying attention to

21   Central Louisiana, where a lot of assistance is needed

22   in the economy today, but also reaching out in Southeast

23   and Southwest Louisiana.  The only way that we can

24   leverage our abilities and what this Board brings to

25   bear is to utilize these strong regional partners, which
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 1   we have eight of them across the state.  So I am pleased

 2   to report that we were able to get them a little more

 3   money to execute the programs that we asked them to

 4   participate in with us.  We don't simply write a check

 5   and pass it across the desk.  And actually we formed a

 6   contractural agreement with certain performance measures

 7   included in that, and sometimes it is those business

 8   retention calls that we ask them to make and then submit

 9   it to the computer software tracking system, but certain

10   tasks and requirements that they meet, and then

11   certainly they get the support from the state and some

12   significant funding that we do provide to them.

13                   Our FastStart Program remains

14   exceptional.  It's a real asset to the state.  When we

15   talk to companies about either expanding here or

16   locating here, the ability to also indicate to them that

17   we will provide a turnkey workforce solution certainly

18   moves us to the front of the line in getting some of

19   these project wins.  And I'm very proud of their efforts

20   to have been designated as the Number 1 Workforce

21   Training Program in the Nation for nine years running,

22   and you don't maintain that position by sort of a

23   static, keep doing the same thing, maybe like bowling

24   pins are always in the same place and you can directly

25   bowl a 300 game.  For us in the workforce training
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 1   business, the goals are always moving, the types of

 2   technology are available that we can bring to bear are

 3   moving, and we're staying on the very front end of that.

 4   We are currently, for Exxon Mobil, executing visual

 5   reality training modules, actually you put on the

 6   goggles and you are positioned in the room and fire is

 7   breaking out and you've got to identify the alarm and

 8   the fire extinguisher and things of that nature.  It's

 9   revolutionary in some respects, but Louisiana and the

10   FastStart division are on the cutting edge of bringing

11   the latest technology to workforce training, and we're

12   pleased to see them continuing to make good progress

13   against that.

14                    We did host our SBA awards ceremony at

15   the Mansion, and also our Lantern awards, which are,

16   from each of the eight regions, we identify an

17   outstanding manufacturer that we can recognize for their

18   efforts.  So continue to have a very strong focus on

19   building small business outwork in our state and trying

20   to do that balance of attracting new business and having

21   a very robust portfolio of international state working

22   closely with the major economic drivers across our

23   state, and then all of those are supported by a very

24   important outwork of small businesses.  That big plant

25   won't run and operate if there's not maintenance and
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 1   services and supplies and kinds of things that need to

 2   run the plant available in the small business support

 3   system around that.

 4                   So we've got a lot of ground to cover,

 5   but we're pleased to be able to execute on your behalf,

 6   and happy take any questions you might have.

 7               MR. ROY:

 8                   Anyone questions or comments?

 9               (No response.)

10               MR. ROY:

11                   Thank you.  Appreciate the words.

12                   Any other business?

13               (No response.)

14               MR. ROY:

15                   All right.  Hearing none, I'll entertain

16   a motion to adjourn.

17               MR. ANDRE:

18                   So moved.

19               MR. ROY:

20                   Motion.  Second.

21                   All in favor "aye."

22               (Several members respond "aye.")

23               MR. ROY:

24                   All opposed, "nay."

25               (No response.)
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 1               MR. ROY:

 2                   Without objection.  Have a good day.

 3   Thank you.

 4               (Meeting concludes at 10:27 a.m.)
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 1   REPORTER'S CERTIFICATE:

 2               I, ELICIA H. WOODWORTH, Certified Court

 3   Reporter in and for the State of Louisiana, as the

 4   officer before whom this meeting for the Board of

 5   Directors of the Louisiana Economic Development

 6   Corporation, do hereby certify that this meeting was

 7   reported by me in the stenotype reporting method, was

 8   prepared and transcribed by me or under my personal

 9   direction and supervision, and is a true and correct

10   transcript to the best of my ability and understanding;

11               That the transcript has been prepared in

12   compliance with transcript format required by statute or

13   by rules of the board, that I have acted in compliance

14   with the prohibition on contractual relationships, as

15   defined by Louisiana Code of Civil Procedure Article

16   1434 and in rules and advisory opinions of the board;

17               That I am not related to counsel or to the

18   parties herein, nor am I otherwise interested in the

19   outcome of this matter.

20

21   Dated this 30th day of June, 2019.

22

                                 ___________________________

23
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24
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			165									LN			6			24			false			24                   Hearing none, I will entertain a motion						false


			166									LN			6			25			false			25   to ratify and approve the Finance Committee and the LEDC						false


			167									PG			7			0			false			page 7						false


			168									LN			7			1			false			 1   Board meetings held on February the 14th, 2019.						false


			169									LN			7			2			false			 2               MR. SIMPSON:						false


			170									LN			7			3			false			 3                   I move to ratify and approve.						false


			171									LN			7			4			false			 4               MR. ANDRE:						false


			172									LN			7			5			false			 5                   Second.						false


			173									LN			7			6			false			 6               MR. ROY:						false


			174									LN			7			7			false			 7                   Any discussion?						false


			175									LN			7			8			false			 8               (No response.)						false


			176									LN			7			9			false			 9               MR. ROY:						false


			177									LN			7			10			false			10                   Hearing none, all in favor -- any						false


			178									LN			7			11			false			11   comments from the public?						false


			179									LN			7			12			false			12               (No response.)						false


			180									LN			7			13			false			13               MR. ROY:						false


			181									LN			7			14			false			14                   Hearing none, all in favor, "aye."						false


			182									LN			7			15			false			15               (Several members respond "aye.")						false


			183									LN			7			16			false			16               MR. ROY:						false


			184									LN			7			17			false			17                   All opposed, "nay."						false


			185									LN			7			18			false			18               (No response.)						false


			186									LN			7			19			false			19               MR. ROY:						false


			187									LN			7			20			false			20                   Without objection.						false


			188									LN			7			21			false			21               MR. ROY:						false
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			317									LN			12			20			false			20                   I don't have a question.  I just wanted						false
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